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OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA

Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.

Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON

Date//Time: Tuesday, January 12, 2021 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at
6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until
7:00 p.m.

Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to

COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/486766581. You can also dial in using

your phone: +1 (571) 317-3116. Access Code: 486-766-581.

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili,
Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa
Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM
(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend
the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email
hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
e Salt Awareness Week

2. Minutes and Reports:
Finance (12/22/20); CACP (10/6/20)

3. Public Comment Period:

e |f you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and
submit it by 6:30 p.m. on January 12, 2021. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.

4. Consent Agenda
A. December 22, 2020 Council Minutes
B. R-6-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses
to various applicants.

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

5. HEARING: Discussion and possible decision on the complaint seeking Revocation of the “Class
B” Reserve Combination License held by Shakers Saloon, LLC d/b/a Shakers Saloon located at 111
Chalet Dr. (Public Safety recommended revocation 5-0 on December 3, 2020)



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/486766581
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10.

11.

12.

13.

R- 1-2021- Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Project Plan of Tax Incremental District

No. 4, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (Plan Commission meets January 11, 2020. Joint Review
Board meets January 11, 2020. *Time Sensitive Agenda ltem*)

O-1-2021- An Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval of a

Portion of the Town of Rutland to the City of Stoughton, Dane County, WI (Plan Commission
approved 6-0 on December 14, 2020) FIRST READING

O- 2-2021- An Ordinance Providing for the Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval of a

Portion of the Town Rutland to the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (Plan Commission
recommended approval 6-0 on December 14, 2020) FIRST READING

O- 3-2021- Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-722 of the Stoughton Municipal Code (Plan

Commission recommended approval 6-0 on December 14, 2020) FIRST READING

R- 2-2021- Standard Construction Details for Concrete Sidewalk & Driveway Entrances
for the City of Stoughton (Public Works Committee recommended Common Council approval
5-0 on December 17, 2020)

R- 3-2021- Amending the Council Rules to Include updates to Public Comment Period (CACP
recommended approval 5-0 on January 5, 2021)

R- 4-2021- Amending the Agenda Items (Placement of) Policy (CACP recommended approval 5-0
on January 5, 2021)

R-5-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the continuation of the
City of Stoughton’s current COVID absence policy with the exception of excluding day care and
school closures (Personnel recommended approval 3-2 on January 4, 2020)

ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommaodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By:
Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch
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Finance Committee Minutes
December 8, 2020 @ 6:00 p.m.
GoToMeeting

Present:
Schumacher, Jenson, Reeves, Doom and Mayor Swadley

Absent and Excused:
None

Others Present:
Finance Director Friedl, Clerk Licht, Planning Director Scheel, Alders Tikalsky and Hundt

Call to Oder:
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Communications:
The Opera House received a CARES grant for $136,000.

Finance Director Friedl stated that the Senior Center Annex project has been sent back to the Senior
Center for further details.

Reports: the following reports have been entered into the record.

e (Contingency Report
e November 2020 Financial Report
e YTD November 30, 2020 CIP Report

Approval of the November 24, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0

Resolution to approve the City Attorney Agreement for Legal Services with Stafford Rosenbaum for
calendar year 2021

Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to recommend that council approve the agreement. Motion
carried 5-0.

Discussion and possible action regarding treatment of future special assessments

Reeves stated that it would be difficult to make up the revenue, especially with uncertainty in the next
couple years with the state. Doom and Schumacher agreed with Reeves. Jenson disagreed and would
like to have more information.

Adjournment:
Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to adjourn at 6:33 p.m. Motion carried 5-0.





CACP MINUTES
October 6, 2020 @ 6:00 p.m.

Present:
Heili, Ligocki, Hirsch and Mayor Swadley. Schumacher arrived at 6:56 p.m.

Also Present:
Clerk Licht

Call to Order:
Heili called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

Communications:

Rachel Synder gave an update on the food cart ordinance. She stated that City staff felt it was best to
address the issue in the zoning code and therefore it would go through Plan Commission. She stated
there were still some areas to be worked out including the definition of “temporary”.

Clerk Licht gave an update on the election. She stated that 50% of registered voters have received an
absentee ballot in the mail and 30% of registered voters have already returned a ballot. In-person
absentee voting will start October 20™ at City Hall. All regular polling locations will be open for the
November 3™ election. She added that they have plenty of poll workers and have seen a ton of new
applications come through.

Discussion and possible action regarding racial and social justice

Mayor Swadley noted that Title 6 updates have been made and updated in municipal buildings and taxi
cabs. Mayor Swadley also shared Racine County goals. Ligocki noted that she really wanted to have a
community listening session. Heili stated policing needs another look to see how to unwind some of the
duties we have given to police. He mentioned Eugene, OR has a Cahoots program. He also added that
we should have some prompts ready for a listening session and have some creative ways for outreach.

Discussion and possible action regarding 2020-2021 Council Goals

The committee decided that it would be best if each individual committee focused and worked on their
own goals. They directed Clerk Licht to send a follow up the council and also send to the leadership
team.

Approval of the September 1, 2020 CACP Minutes
Motion by Hirsch, second by Ligocki to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0.

Adjournment:
Motion by Ligocki, second by Hirsch to adjourn at 7:37 p.m. Motion carried 5-0.

Respectfully Submitted,

Holly Licht, City Clerk
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Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

STOUGHTON

Date//Time: Tuesday, December 22, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open
at 6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until
7:00 p.m.

Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to

COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/120234181. You can also dial in using
your phone: +1 (571) 317-3116 . Access Code: 120-234-181 .

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili,
Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa
Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky

CALL TO ORDER
Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 12 alders present.

Mayor Swadley presented the Proclamation for Law Enforcement Appreciation Day. Alder Jenson
echoed Mayor Swadley’s thanks for the Police Department.

Heili stated that the State is launching a new contact tracing and free at-home COVID testing.
Hirsch thanked Alders, staff and the Mayor for all their hard work in 2020.

Mayor Swadley thanked community members for the holiday cards for those living in assisted living
facilities.

Mayor Swadley stated that he would like CACP to look at the remote meeting policy, the public
comment period policy and agenda items coming to council the same night as the committee.

Minutes and Reports: the following minutes and reports were entered into the record.
A. Public Safety (10/28/20, 12/3/20); Parks & Rec (10/21/20); Rivers and Trails Task Force
(9/14/20); Plan Commission (11/9/20); Finance Minutes (11/24/20)
B. Public Safety Committee Report Re: Alcohol Beverage Licensing Proceeding Regarding
Shakers Saloon, LLC

Public Comment Period:

e Al Waller, 228 E McKinley St., spoke against the dam removal and Whitewater Park.
e Sharon Mason-Boersma, 243 E. McKinley St., registered against the dam removal and
Whitewater Park. Her comments were read.

e Randy Ree, 124 E Milwaukee St., registered against the future expansion of the Senior Center



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/120234181
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Annex Building. Comments were read.
e Steve Meyers, Shakers Saloon, spoke against the report the Public Safety Committee
recommended to council.
Consent Agenda
A. December 8, 2020 Council Minutes
B. R-183-2020- Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Amy Allen to the Seniors in Need
Committee Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code.

Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to approve the December 8, 2020 Council Minutes. Motion
carried 12-0.

Motion by Heili, second by Boersma to approve R-183-2020 Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of
Amy Allen to the Seniors in Need Committee Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. Heili stated he
would like to see more information on the committee appointments in the future. Motion carried 12-0.

OLD BUSINESS

R-180-2020- Resolution to approve the City Attorney Agreement for Legal Services with Stafford
Rosenbaum for calendar year 2021

Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to approve R-180-2020 Resolution to approve the City Attorney
Agreement for Legal Services with Stafford Rosenbaum for calendar year 2021.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion and decision on format of further arguments in Shakers Saloon, LLC Alcohol Beverage
Licensing Matter:
e Option A: Allow Only Oral Arguments at the next Council Meeting

e Option B: Allow Only Written Arguments and set a Deadline for filing the Briefs
e Option C: Allow Both Oral and Written Arguments and Set a Deadline for Filing the Briefs

Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to go with Option C and allow both oral and written arguments
with a deadline of January 6 at noon for Shakers Saloon and January 9 at noon for the prosecution.
Motion carried 12-0.

R- 184-2020- Approving a “Class A” Intoxicating Liquor and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage
license transfer for Marilyn J. Beckman d/b/a All Through the House from 160 E. Main St. to 144 E
Main St.

Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to approve R-184-2020 Approving a “Class A” Intoxicating Liquor
and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage license transfer for Marilyn J. Beckman d/b/a All Through the
House from 160 E. Main St. to 144 E Main St. Motion carried 12-0.





R-185-2020- Resolution Authorizing Opera House staff to invest an amount not-to-exceed
$52,000 from the Opera House Fund to purchase a streaming system

Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-185-2020 Resolution Authorizing Opera
House staff to invest an amount not-to-exceed $52,000 from the Opera House Fund to purchase a
streaming system. Motion carried 11-1 with Boersma voting ‘no’.

R-186-2020- Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City Official (s) to enter into an agreement
with the Tree Wise Men, LLC to preform tree trimming services on City owned trees

Motion by Majewski, second by Reeves to approve R-186-2020 Resolution authorizing and directing
the proper City Official (s) to enter into an agreement with the Tree Wise Men, LLC to preform tree
trimming services on City owned trees. Motion carried 12-0.

Discussion regarding Advance Directive Initiative
Alder Ligocki presented the Advance Directive Initiative.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn at 8:12 p.m. Motion carried 12-0.

Respectfully Submitted,

Holly Licht, City Clerk






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants.

Committee N/A
Fiscal Impact: N/A
File Number: R-6-2021 Date Introduced: January 12, 2021

WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from
the following applicants:

Name Place of Business
Jesse Brown BP
Kaylee Behnke Deaks

WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an
Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city

official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named
applicants.

Council Action: |:| Adopted |:| Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:| Accept |:| Veto

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote






STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF STOUGHTON DANE COUNTY

In the Matter of the Consideration
Of the Revocation of the Class B
Reserve Combination License Held by T w7220
Shakers Saloon, LLC

5 B o gy
HECEIVED

SWORN COMPLAINT

Complainant, Gregory Leck, alleges as follows:

1. I am an adult resident of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.

2. I am the Chief of Police for the City of Stoughton Police Department, and
have been for over 9 years. I also served as the Chief of Police of the McFarland
Police Department for 12 years, and have been a police officer for over 41 years.

3. As Chief of Police, my duties include managing the City of Stoughton
Police Department, supervising patrol officers, and monitoring various investigations.

4, The City of Stoughton granted Shakers Saloon, LI.C (“Shakers™), a Class B
reserve liquor license for the 2020-2021 liquor licensing year. A copy of the liquor
license is attached as Exhibit A.

5. Chata Huffiman is identified as Shakers’ registered agent.
Count 1: Shakers Maintains a Riotous, Disorderly, Indecent, or Otherwise

Improper House.

Shooting at Shakers.





0, On information and belief, on the night of October 9, 2020, Shakers held a
“hip-hop” style event that involved a large crowd at Shakers’ licensed premises. It is
estimated that over 100 people were at the event.

7. On information and belief, oﬁ October 10, 2020, at approximately 2:00am,
a report of shots fired on Shakers’ premises was reported to the Stoughton Police
Department.

8. Stoughton officers arrived at Shakers to investigate. Upon arrival, many
people were fleeing the scene.

0. On scene, officers observed numerous bullet casings, indicating that
firearms had been discharged. Blood was on the ground of Shakers parking Jot.

10.  On information and belief, officers interviewed residents living in the motel
next to Shakers. Residents told police that they had heard chaos at Shakers at
approximately 2:00am, and heard numerous gunshots fired in Shakers parking lot.

11,  Oninformation and belief, one person was shot in Shakers’ parking lot. The
victim of the shooting, Charad Temple, was attending a party at Shakers. At
approximately 2:00am on October 10, 2020, Charad Temple was intoxicated and got
into an argument with another person also attending the party at Shakers. The
argument led to a shootout in Shakers® parking lot, and Mr. Temple was shot six
times.

12.  Oninformation and belief, Mr. Temple was transported to Edgerton

hospital and later transported to a Madison hospital via helicopter for medical





treatment of his gunshot wounds. At the hospital Mr. Temple was also diagnosed with
COVID-19, an infectious disease that has been declared a global pandemic by the
World Health Organization.

13.  Officers recovered 9mm and .45 caliber shell casings in the parking lot of
Shakers. In total, approximately 15 shots were fired in the parking lot of Shakers.

Shakers’ Former Agent Possessed Cocaine with the Intent to Deliver on the
Licensed Premises.

14.  Upon information and belief, on December 18, 2019 officers from the Drug
Enforcement Agency and Wisconsin Division of Criminal Investigations arrested
Dale Kittleson on suspicion of selling cocaine. The arrest took place at Shakers
Saloon, located at 111 Chalet Drive, Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589.

15.  Upon information and belief, on December 18, 2019 officers searched Mr,
Kittleson, and found approximately 1 ounce of a white powdery substance. Based on
the officers’ training and experience, they believed the white powdery substance to be
cocaine, Based upon my training and experience, this amount of cocaine is for seiling
and distributing, not personal use.

16.  Upon information and belief, after arresting Mr. Kittleson, officers searched
Shakers Saloon pursuant to a duly executed search warrant on December 18, 2019. In
the office area of the bar, officers located approximately an additional 1.5 ounces of a
white powdery subsitance. Field tests indicated the white powdery subsfance was

cocaine, Based on my training and experience, possessing approximately 2.5 ounces






of cocaine would be for selling and distributing, not for personal consumption. Also
located within the office was a small container of methamphetamine.

17.  Upon information and belicf, on December 18, 2019 an officer also
searched, pursuant to a duly executed search warrant, Mr. Kittleson’s truck that was
parked at Shakers Saloon. In the truck, an officer located a pocket notebook that
contained numerous names, dollar amounts, and weights and fractions, such as
quatter, eighth, etc. Based on my training and experience, 1 believe this was a ledger
for tracking drug sales.

18.  Based on my training and experience, Dale Kittleson did possess cocaine, a
controlled substance, with the intent to distribute or deliver said cocaine, while on the
Shakers Saloon premises.

19. At ihe time of Mr. Kittleson’s arrest, he was the registered agent for
Shakers.

20.  On April 14, 2020, the Stoughton City Council found that Dale Kittleson
possessed cocaine with the intent to deliver on Shakers’ licensed premises in violation
Wis. Stat. 125.12(2)(ag)6. and Stoughton Municipal Code § 14-31(1)g., and
suspended Shakers’ combination Class B liquor license for 48 days.

Shakers’ Miscellaneous Illegal Conduct.
21.  On information and belief, on February 22, 2020, Stoughton officers

observed that Shakers’ “open” sign was lit at approximately 2:40am.





22.  Officers conducted a bar check after seeing the lit sign. Inside the bar they
witnessed two people sitting at the bar consuming beer.

23,  Wisconsin Statute 125.32(3) mandates that bars close and cease alcohol
sales prior to 2:30am on weekends.

24.  Based on the patrons drinking beer at the customer side of the bar, officers
determined that Shakers was allowing alcohol consumption after closing hours.

25.  Officers issued Shakers a citation for violating closing hours.

26.  On information and belief, at approximately 12:00am on October 10, 2020,
Stoughton police officers conducted a bar check at Shakers.

27.  Shakers’ staff initially denied the officers entry into the bar. Eventually
Bradley Dillman, a Shakers manager, permitted the officers to enter the bar. Officers
estimated that 100-150 people were inside. Officers observed that people were
standing in close proximity and only an estimated 10 percent of occupants were
wearing facemasks.

28.  On that date, Dane County Emergency Order 9 was in place, prohibiting
taverns from allowing consumption of alcoholic beverages indoors and on premises.
Additionally, Emergency Order 9 limifs indoor gatherings to 10 people or less and
requires people to wear facemasks while indoors.

29.  On that date, Wisconsin Department of Health Services Emergency Order 3

was in effect, This order limited public gatherings to no more than 25 percent of






occupancy limits. Under this order, Shakers could have no more than 37 people on its
premises.

30.  Officers believed that the amount of people in the bar consuming alcohol
constituted a violation of Dane County Emergency Order 9 and the Department of
Health Services Order 3.

31.  On information and belief, on October 11, 2020, Sergeant Frisch of the
Stoughton Police Department attempted to perform an inspection of Shakers’
premises with Shakers’ registered agent, Chata Huffman.

32. When Sergeant Frisch arrived at Shakers with Chata Huffiman, Bradley
Dillman was on the premises. Mr. Dillman prohibited Sergeant Frisch from entering
the premises.

33.  Section 14-40(g) of the Stoughton Municipal Code states the holder of a
liquor license “shall be deemed to have given consent to entry and inspection at any
time by any police officer or alderperson without warrant. Refusal by the licensee or
holder of a manager's or operator's license to permit such inspection shall be deemed a
violation of this article.”

34.  Shakers violated Section 14-40(g) by prohibiting police to inspect the
licensed premises on October 11, 2020.

35.  Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 125.12(2)(ag)2. and Stoughton Municipal Code §
14-31(1)b. the City of Stoughton may revoke a liquor license if the licensee maintains

a disorderly or riotous, indecent or improper house.





36. Based on the above incidents, Shakers has maintained a riotous, disorderly,

indecent, or otherwise improper house and revocation of its combination Class B

liquor license is appropriate.

Chlef of Pohce
City of Stoughton

Subscribed and sworn to before me
thi@day of (J(Ao\pt. v . 2020.

Print name: HZ 1”3 { “ (g 3\:
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

My commission expires ::jﬁ?_ﬁ'{-—]] -2.3
we











EXHIBIT A

City of Stoughton
County of Dane
State of Wisconsin

Licenses

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, State of Wisconsin, has, upon application duly made,
granted and authorized the issance of the following Licenses:

r Issued to:

SHAKERS SALOON, LLC 111 CHALET DRIVE
STOUGHTON, WI 53589

Chatta Huffman, Agent

r Trade Name:
Shakers Saloon 111 Chalet Drive
STOUGHTON, WI 53589
License Type License No Effective Expires Fee
Amusement Devices AM DEV 11 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 280.00
Qty: 8
Cabaret CABARET 3 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 100.00
Class B Reserve Liquor & Class "B" Beer B RES COMB 2 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 600.00
Publication fee: 20.00

4,862 SQ FT DOWNSTAIRS BAR AND BANQUET ROOM INSIDE BUILDING, STORED IN
LOCKED CLOSETS

Jukebox JUKEBOX 10 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 10.00
Pool Table - Coin Operated POOLTABLE 7 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 70.00

WHEREAS, this license is subject to all resolutions, ordinances, regulations, and
provisions as may be at any time imposed by the local governing body or any laws of
the State of Wisconsin, and is subject to revocation as provided by law.

Given under my hand and the Great Seal of the City of Stoughton,
County of Dane, this 25th day of June, 2020.

Total fee: %@y P

$1,080.00 :
Holly Licht

This document must be framed and posted on the premises.
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CITY OF STOUGHTON CITY COUNCIL
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

*x X X X X kX kX X KX kX k¥ k¥ k¥ k¥ k¥ kX * Kk Kk Kk * K*x *x *x *x Kk X *x *

CITY OF STOUGHTON
POLICE DEPARTMENT,

Complainant,
—vs-—
SHAKERS SALOON, LLC,

Licensee.

* X *x *x *x X X X * k¥ k¥ k¥ k¥ k¥ * k% k% * * Kk *x X*x *x *x X*x kX *x *x *

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED VIDEO CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS

Held on: Thursday, December 3, 2020

Transcribed by: Sandra L. McDonald
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TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED VIDEO CONFERENCE
PROCEEDINGS, held in the City of Stoughton on December 3,
2020, as transcribed by SANDRA L. McDONALD, a Notary

Public in and for the State of Wisconsin.

THE COMMITTEE: GREG JENSON, CHAIR
0zZzZIE DOOM
JEAN LIGOCKI
MAYOR TIM SWADLEY
JOYCE TIKALSKY

* K*x Kk K* %

A PPEARANCES

RICK A. MANTHE,
STAFFORD ROSENBAUM, LLP
Attorneys at Law
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
appearing on behalf of the City of
Stoughton;

ALLEN REUTER,
REUTER, WHITISH & EVANS, S.C.
Attorneys at Law
44 Fast Mifflin Street, Suite 306
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
appearing on behalf of the Public Safety
Committee.

FOR SHAKERS SALOON: JOSH QUISLING
STEVE MEYER
BRADLEY DILLMAN
AARON McCARROLL
CHATTA HUFFMAN

ALSO PRESENT: CITY CLERK HOLLY LICHT
POLICE CHIEF GREG LECK

*x kx Kk *x %

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC
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TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS

12/3/20

3
* Kk ok Kk
INDEX OF WITNESSES
FOR THE COMPLATNANT: DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
Brandon Hill 32 33 — ——
Allen Adams 41 50 61 62
Hector Covarrubias 65 70 —— ——
Patrick Frisch 74 78 - -
Paul Johnson 82 - - -
FOR THE LICENSEE: DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
Steve Meyer 88 91 - ——
x Kk Kk x *x
EXHIBTITS
Q EXHIBIT NOS.: IDENTIFTIED OFFERED
RECETVED?
1 38 38 47
2 38 38 47
3 38 38 47
4 38 38 47
5 46 46 47
6 47 47 47
7 47 48 48
8 48 48 48
9 49 49 49
10 85 85 85

* K* Kk Kx %

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS,

LLC
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TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

(Original transcript filed with City Clerk Holly Licht)

CHAIRMAN JENSON: I will call the
meeting to order at 6:01. And the first thing
I'd like to do is take care of one piece of
business for the Committee, the Public Safety
Committee. And what I'd like to do is talk to
you, the committee members, about our meeting
that's scheduled for December 23rd. Obviously,
that's right there in Christmas week.

We do have a couple of items that I
would like to get discussed before the end of
the year, so if the Committee is okay with
moving that to the 16th, could I get some
comments on that, please, if you're able to do
that, yes or no?

MAYOR SWADLEY: Yes, that works for

me.
MS. TIKALSKY: Yes. This is Joyce.
MR. DOOM: Yes.
MS. LIGOCKI: The time we are meeting,
Greg?

CHATIRMAN JENSON: It would be at the
normal meeting time, which I believe is 6:00,
and it would be on the 16th.

MS. LIGOCKI: I would be open to

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC
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TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

moving it to 5:30, given I have the Library
Board of Trustees meeting at 6:30.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: All right. Is the
Committee okay with that?

MS. TIKALSKY: Yep, that's fine with

me.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Ozzie?

MR. DOOM: That's a Tuesday evening?

CHATIRMAN JENSON: That's a Tuesday
evening at -- or excuse me.

MS. LIGOCKI: Wednesday.

MS. TIKALSKY: Wednesday.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Wednesday evening,
the 1l6th.

MR. DOOM: I can make that work.

CHATRMAN JENSON: Okay.

MS. LIGOCKI: Thanks, Ozzie.

MR. DOOM: You're welcome.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: We have a consensus
on that then, Holly, so you can make a note.

MS. LICHT: Sounds good.

CHATRMAN JENSON: It will be 5:30 on
the 16th.

MR. DOOM: Yes.

MS. TIKALSKY: Thank you very much.
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CHATRMAN JENSON: Thank you, okay.
Then one last piece of business that we need to
do is under normal circumstances I would chair
this, but because this is a hearing and we have
hired Attorney Reuter, I would like the
Committee's permission to hand off the duties of
chair to Attorney Reuter. And we would need a
motion to do that, so I would make that motion.
I need a second and a vote from the Committee.

MS. LIGOCKI: Second.

CHATIRMAN JENSON: Okay. So we have a
second. And is the Committee in favor, yes or
no-?

(All committee members vote in the affirmative)

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Okay. Thank you
very much. Attorney Reuter, the hearing is in
your hands.

MR. REUTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We'll open the hearing on the Matter of the
Consideration of the Revocation of the Class B
Reserve Combination License Held by Shakers
Saloon, LLC. This action was commenced by the
issuance of a summons on October 27th of 2020,
and the original summons called for a hearing

date of November 5th of 2020. That was
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postponed to today's date by stipulation of the
parties.

Are both parties present and prepared
to proceed tonight?

MR. QUISLING: We're —-- we're here.
We don't have an attorney, so we are sort of
defending ourselves.

MR. REUTER: And who are you, sir?

MR. QUISLING: My name is Josh
Quisling. I'm one of the managers of the
Shakers Saloon, LLC corporation or LLC, limited
liability company.

MR. MANTHE: And Attorney Rick --

MS. HUFFMAN: I'm here as well. I'm
the licensee for the bar.

MR. REUTER: I'm sorry. I didn't
catch the beginning of that.

MS. HUFFMAN: I said I'm here as well,
Chatta Huffman.

MR. REUTER: Okay.

MR. MANTHE: And Rick Manthe appearing
on behalf of the complainant, Police Chief
Greg Leck. We are ready to proceed, Attorney
Reuter.

I guess it's a little unclear whether
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or not Shakers is asking for more time to hire
an attorney. I guess this has been pending for
a little over a month, and when I spoke to them
last they were in the process of hiring an
attorney. So I guess I don't know if they --
it's unclear if they've indicated whether or not
they're ready to proceed, but we are.

MR. REUTER: I guess I'll ask somebody
representing Shakers.

MR. QUISLING: I guess 1f I could just
get a bit of clarification, I don't quite
understand, and forgive my lack of knowledge on
the process here. But you've turned over -- the
City has hired an attorney and turned over chair
to that attorney. Can that be explained to me
and just briefly overview what the whole process
is here?

MR. REUTER: Sure. The city
ordinances authorize the chair of the Public
Safety Committee to conduct hearings on license
revocation matters. It also authorizes the
chair to delegate that authority to someone
else. My role --

MR. QUISLING: Understood.

MR. REUTER: -- in conducting the
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hearing would be to make sure that everybody has
got an opportunity to present the evidence that
they want to present so that the Committee can
make an informed decision on the complaint.
Does that answer your question?

MR. QUISLING: That does.

MR. REUTER: Okay. So are you
prepared to proceed tonight, or are you

requesting more time or what? What's the deal?

MR. QUISLING: I -- I would say I
guess we're prepared to proceed. I don't know
what evidence -- I mean, I haven't had any sort

of conversations with anybody that's got any
sort of evidence.

MR. REUTER: Okay. Well, during the
process of the hearing we'll start with the
complainant presenting its evidence. You have
the right to cross-examine any witnesses
presented by the complainant. After the
complainant's case is presented, you'll have the
opportunity to present any witnesses or other
evidence that you think is relevant to the
determination of the Committee of what action,
if any, they should take on the complaint.

So with that, I guess I would ask,
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starting with Mr. Manthe, do you want to make an
opening statement or call your first witness?

MR. MANTHE: Thank you, Attorney
Reuter. 1I'd be happy to make an opening
statement, and then I'll call my first witness.
So first off, I would just like to thank all
members of the Committee tonight for meeting to
hear this.

MR. McCARROLL: Excuse me.

MR. MANTHE: I know these are less
than --

MR. McCARROLL: I'm sorry to
interrupt. I'm sorry to interrupt. I just want
to be clear on one thing with the remaining
parties. Steve and Brad, are you guys ready to
deal with this, or should we ask for more time
right now since we do and have spoken in brief
today?

MR. QUISLING: I think we would like
to have more time. This is Josh Quisling.

MR. McCARROLL: I see you, Josh.

MR. QUISLING: We would like to have
more time. We do have an attorney, but he's not
able to be here tonight, and I think in our best

interests that would be --
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CHAIRMAN JENSON: Sorry, you're -- you
seem to be slightly -- you were cutting in and
out.
MR. QUISLING: I didn't hear any of
that.

MR. MANTHE: I guess I'm not sure what
just happened, so --

MR. QUISLING: Yeah, I'm not getting
any audio from whoever is talking there.

MR. REUTER: Mr. Quisling, let me just
ask you, are you asking the Committee to do
something other than proceed with the hearing?

MR. QUISLING: I'm asking for a bit
more time.

MR. REUTER: Okay. And that's an
issue that I would defer to the Committee on.
This matter was scheduled, as I said, by a
subpoena, originally scheduled for November 5th.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hello? Hello?

MR. REUTER: I'm going to ask you to
mute your microphone until I'm finished here.
The hearing was postponed a month at the request
of the complainant, or with the agreement from
the complainant. It would be up to the

Committee whether or not to grant the request
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for a postponement and, if so, determine when
the hearing would take place.

CHATRMAN JENSON: So that would be --
well, I guess, yeah, let's have the Committee's
consensus on that. This is Chairperson Greg
Jenson. Joyce, do you have a preference on
this? Do you want to respond?

MS. TIKALSKY: I think it's
unfortunate the attorney isn't here. At the
same time this puts the Committee in a crunch as
well, and a lot of people have committed their
time for this evening. I'd like to see it go
forward.

CHATRMAN JENSON: Thank you.

MR. DOOM: I would agree. This is
Ozzie. I would agree with Joyce, that I think
we're ready to move forward. It's been delayed
once already for a good month, so --

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Jean, do you have --

MS. HUFFMAN: If I may say something,
the delay that occurred was because one of our
managers was in the hospital with a serious
medical condition, so that was the reason that
we were not able to have the meeting in the

first place. And he just recently had gotten
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released, and so he hasn't had -- I don't know,
Steve-0, if you want to chime in on this as
well.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Well, you're out of
order right now, so please just wait. So next
was Jean. What was your comment on it?

MS. LIGOCKI: Thank you. I would like
us to proceed tonight, and the reason I'm asking
us to proceed tonight is they have had plenty of
time. And I do know that issues of health are
in the mix, but the public safety, to me, of
them having events where there was positive
COVID as well as numbers of people should not be
delayed. This is a matter of public safety. I
would like us to proceed tonight.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: All right, thank
you. And I'm in agreement with the -- with the
members. So with that said, we should proceed
then. Attorney Reuter, I'll hand it over.

MR. REUTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Manthe, why don't you go ahead with your
opening statement.

MR. McCARROLL: I don't see where this
even got us any further where you delegated the

power to the attorney and now you're going back
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to the chair to delegate the power back to these
folks. Out of fair shareness and out of respect
for the public safety and for the business, we
would ask for more time to consult with the
attorney, which we just spoke with this morning.
He's just, unfortunately, unable to be here this
evening.

However, if that is a big issue,
because we went through lengths as well to try
and accommodate the City and the public to get
more people and to get evidence ourselves, which
we have not had an ample amount of time to go
over at all from the police department and to
confer with an attorney, I think it would be
fair for the public's interests and for the
safety of the bar and for the public and as a
citizen of the United States, that you give us
more time. Whether it be a week from now would
be totally fine with us. I mean, you guys just
booked something for Wednesday, the 16th. We're
not against a week in time. I mean, we're just
asking for a little time. If not, we can go
ahead and proceed.

MR. REUTER: All right, all right.

Sir, your request has been presented to the

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC
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Committee, and it's been denied. The Committee
obviously feels that you'wve had, you know, well
more than a month to consult with an attorney.
If you consulted with one this morning, that's
probably a little late in the game to be
expecting somebody to show up at a hearing.

We've got an entire committee here of
people who are taking their time out to
participate in this, and because of that, we're
going to be proceeding with the hearing tonight.
Mr. Manthe?

MR. McCARROLL: Go ahead.

MR. MANTHE: Thank you. As I was
saying before, thank you, all committee members,
for being here. I understand these are less
than ideal circumstances having to conduct this
hearing virtually, but I appreciate all of your
patience.

And I guess what this case is really
about is Shakers throwing away its second
chance. Six months ago the City suspended
Shakers' license because its former owner and
registered agent possessed cocaine with the
intent to deliver while on the licensed premises

of Shakers. The evidence you will hear today
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will show that Shakers threw away that second
chance that the City provided, as the bar had
numerous legal violations and has been unable to
maintain an orderly establishment since
receiving its liquor license.

You'll hear about Shakers in the
midst of a global pandemic holding a COVID-19
superspreader event. On October 10th,

October 9th and 10th, Shakers held a party
involving over a hundred people. This was in
violation of State and County health orders
limiting gatherings, business occupancy and
prohibiting taverns from operating.

Additionally, we know of at least one
COVID-19-positive person who attended that
party. On the same night or morning of the
superspreader event a shooting occurred in
Shakers' parking lot involving people who were
actually attending the party. Approximately
15 shots were fired, and one individual was shot
at least six times. Not only that, but it
occurred in an area surrounded by residences
while people were sleeping.

You'll rehear about the incident

involving the former owner and registered agent
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for Shakers, Dale Kittleson. Mr. Kittleson
possessed roughly two and a half ounces of
cocaine on his person and in his effects while
on the Shakers licensed premises, and the amount
of cocaine was presumed to be with the intent to
deliver.

Additionally, Shakers has violated
liquor laws. In February they received a
closing hours violation citation, and then after
the shooting they refused to allow a police
officer entry for inspection, despite a clear
ordinance prohibiting such action.

After hearing all of the evidence, we
will ask that you revoke Shakers' liquor
license. The number and, more importantly, the
severity of the violations will mandate that
action. Thank you.

MR. REUTER: Does anybody on behalf of
Shakers want to make an opening statement?

MR. QUISLING: Sure. This is
Josh Quisling. So thank you for having us, and
I hope that you will keep an open mind here and
not solely base this on the historical previous
incident that took place.

As far as we understood it, the Tavern
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League told us that we were allowed to be open,
and we took that as the ability for us to hold a
party. We don't feel that we have the ability
to control patrons' or non-patrons' actions
outside of the bar.

The shooting that took place, we
don't have any clear evidence or recollection
of that person being in the bar that night.
Whether or not that person was in the bar, how
can you revoke a liquor license based on the
action outside of the bar, as the bar was
closed?

All the patrons were out of the bar at
the time of the shooting, and at no point did
the police ever come into the bar and question
any of the staff. The first notification that
we had was when Brad Dillman went outside,
taking the trash out, and was told to return
into the bar. And after that, nobody came in to
question him any further.

As far as the COVID-19, all of the
events that we have had during this pandemic, we
have taken temperatures of people as they enter,
and we were under the impression we were

limiting it to one-third of our capacity. 1In
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response to the statements in the complaint that
we refused entry to a police officer, we didn't
actually refuse entry to a police officer. That
was actually a patron that denied entry to the
police, and we later, when we were informed
inside, came out and allowed the officer in,
clearly and concisely.

We don't feel that we have thrown away
our second chance here, and we kind of question
the ability to move forward with a second chance
if we are constantly living under the guise of
what someone else did or did not do in the bar
previously. We don't have an affiliation with
that person anymore, and we don't want that to
smear the image of Shakers Saloon, but it seems
that it's impossible for us to clean that
from -- from the future.

So with that, I guess I'll pass it
back to the Chair.

MR. REUTER: Thank you, Mr. Quisling.
Mr. Manthe, your first witness?

MR. MANTHE: TI'll call Detective
Brandon Hill.

MS. HUFFMAN: I'm sorry. Is there a

chance where I would be able to speak on the
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bar's behalf as well?

MR. REUTER: You're talking about
making another opening statement?

MS. HUFFMAN: Well, I had some things
I wanted to add to it. I can most definitely
save it for later if you wish.

MR. REUTER: Well, are you going to be
testifying?

MS. HUFFMAN: I would --

MR. QUISLING: Yes.

MS. HUFFMAN: -- like to.

MR. REUTER: All right. Well, then
why don't we wait until you testify.

MR. MANTHE: Attorney Reuter, I guess
at this point I'd request that Shakers sort of
designate somebody that is the lead on their
team, instead of having several people try to
talk all at once.

MR. QUISLING: Yeah, I'll be that
lead, Josh Quisling.

MR. REUTER: All right. Then I'm
going to ask everybody else on behalf of Shakers
that unless you're called to testify that you
please mute your mic and don't interrupt the

proceedings.
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MS. HUFFMAN: Well, excuse me. I'm
not trying to interrupt, but I would just try to
reiterate that I am the license holder of the
bar, so I believe at some point I should be
allowed to speak on behalf of the bar. Yes,
Josh is, as discussed, going to be the lead on
it. However, I don't believe it's fair that the
rest of us are not being allowed to speak on
behalf of the bar.

MR. REUTER: Is there anything that
you have to say that you can't say while you're
testifying?

MS. HUFFMAN: Well, I guess not. It
seems like you're willing to -- go ahead.

MR. REUTER: You'll -- you'll get a
chance to testify to whatever it is that you
have to say that's relevant to this matter, but
we really would like to get the hearing going
with the testimony. Detective Hill, would you

raise your right hand, please?

BRANDON HILL,
having been first duly sworn on oath,

was examined and testified as follows:
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MR. REUTER: Go ahead, Mr. Manthe.
MR. MANTHE: Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. Manthe:

Q

Detective Hill, could you just spell your name for
the record?

It's Brandon Hill, B-r-a-n-d-o-n, H-i-1-1.

And how are you currently employed?

I am a detective for the City of Stoughton Police
Department.

And how long have you been a detective with the City
of Stoughton?

10, almost 11 years.

And did you have any prior police experience prior to
becoming a detective?

Yeah, I was a patrol officer. I've been with the
City of Stoughton for a total of 20 years, and prior
to that I worked part-time for the State of
Wisconsin, as well as the City of Evansville for

one year.

Could you just briefly describe some of your duties
as a detective currently?

General investigation of crime. I collect evidence.
I interview people. I take statements. I prepare

reports. I present those reports to attorneys. I
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testify in court.
Thank you. Were you working the early morning hours
of October 10thv?
I was sleeping until I got called in to work.
And what was the nature of the call?
A report of a shooting in the parking lot of
Shakers Saloon.
And do you remember approximately what time you
received the call?
(Video conference inaudible)
CHATIRMAN JENSON: Can you rephrase or
restate the question?

Okay. And do you remember around what time you
received a call to come into work?
2:30-1ish.
And you said that you received a call for responding
to a shooting. Did you respond to that call?
Yes, I did. I came into work, got some equipment
ready, and then I went to the parking lot of
Shakers Saloon.
And what, if anything, did you observe when you
arrived on scene?
Police were present. There was crime scene tape up.
I met with Sergeant Johnson, who walked me through

the crime scene. I saw numerous shell casings on the
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ground, spent, you know, shell casings, some live
rounds and a puddle of blood.

And after you arrived on scene, were you there, I
guess, the entire morning?

No. While I was being shown around, we received a
report that a shooting victim had shown up at
Edgerton Hospital, and I responded there, assuming
that it was probably related.

So after you arrived at the hospital -- well, did you

go to the hospital?

Yes, I did.

What happened after you arrived?

I met with Edgerton Police, who escorted me into the
hospital. I met with the on-duty emergency room
doctor who was treating the patient. I identified
the patient and our subsequent victim. He had been
asked by the doctor if he was from the Stoughton
shooting, because they had heard about it before.
All the hospitals had been notified that we were
looking for a victim. He said he was.

I then met with him briefly and asked him if he
knew who shot him or why he was shot, and he said he
did not know who shot him or why. At that point in
time he was then Med-Flighted to UW Hospital in

Madison, where I later interviewed him.
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Did you learn how many times he had been shot?

Yeah, the doctor -- well, he didn't know exactly. He
said six to eight because he couldn't tell exactly
what were entrance and exit wounds, but he had what
he felt to be six to eight times that he was shot in
the lower abdomen, upper legs, pelvic region.

Were you able to do an interview with the victim?
Yes, later in the same day I interviewed him up at
UW Hospital.

And what was his name?

Sherrod Temple.

And what did you learn from your interview with

Mr. Temple?

Well, the first thing I learned when I got up there
is that he had tested positive for COVID-19, because
I had to put on the full gown and mask and
everything else and he was on a COVID-positive wing
of UW Hospital. And then when I interviewed him he
had said that -- we kind of ran through the whole
day.

He and his cousin had met up with two girls
somewheres in the Cottage Grove area and had come to
Stoughton for a party. He didn't know the name of
the bar that he went to the party at, but he said it

was the bar where he was shot in the parking lot at.
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He felt he was at this party for somewheres between
half an hour to an hour before bartime was called and
he went out into the parking hot.

He said once out in the parking lot, he said he
and another subject, which he provided me a brief
description of, got into an argument that turned into
a fist fight. That subject then pulled a handgun on
him and started shooting him numerous times. He said
after that he kind of blacked out.

MR. QUISLING: I'm sorry. Could you
repeat the first part of that testimony?

THE WITNESS: The fact that I went to
the hospital and learned that he was
COVID-positive?

MR. QUISLING: No, the part about --
the part about the altercation that took
place.

THE WITNESS: That at bartime he had
gone out into the parking lot, got into an
argument with a subject in the parking lot, and
that subject had pulled a gun on him and shot
him.

So based on that information that is available to
you, do you -- is it your understanding or do you

have an opinion as to whether he was at Shakers
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Saloon?

He was at Shakers Saloon. He said he was at a party
at the bar where he was shot in the parking lot. I
also later interviewed his cousin, who he said would
remember more. He was identified as Quavell Mayo,
and he was the one that had driven, and he did know
it was Shakers Saloon that they were at a party at.
And do you know if Mr. Temple had been drinking that
night?

He had. He admitted to drinking, and his cousin also
said that he was very intoxicated that night.

And you said that he -- just to clarify, how long did
Mr. Temple say that he was at Shakers?

He felt half an hour to an hour.

Did he have a sense for how many people were actually
in the bar?

He said a lot when I asked him about that. I don't
know what his definition of a lot is, but --

So turning your attention now to December 18th of
2019, were you working on that day as well?

Yes, I was.

And on that day did you have reason to go to

Shakers Saloon?

I did. I was requested by the DEA, the U.S. Drug

Enforcement Administration, and their task force

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC






10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

- Ol S )

28

which works with DCI, which is the Wisconsin
Department of Justice, Department of Criminal
Investigations, to assist them in a joint drug
investigation that they were working on regarding
Dale Kittleson, who at the time was the license
holder and part of the business for Shakers Saloon,
and they were looking to see if he was there, as they
had probable cause to arrest him for delivery of
cocaine charges based on a case they were working.
And were you able to locate Mr. Kittleson at the bar
that day?

I located his vehicle and then notified the task
force, who came down and made initial contact with
him, and then I was in contact with him as part of
that.

And did they arrest Mr. Kittleson that day?

Yes, they did.

Did they perform a search of Mr. Kittleson's person?
Yep. Right when they went into the bar they arrested
him or informed him that he was under arrest and
immediately searched him. When they did, they found
a little kind of Tupperware-type container in his
pocket, and when they opened that there was kind of a
pressed hard white ball or rock-like substance that

based upon my training and experience looked to be
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cocaine. And based upon my training and experience,
I estimated it to be about an ounce worth. Later,
members of that task force did test that substance,
and it did test positive for cocaine.

And was there a search conducted of the premises?
Yes. A search warrant was drafted, and a couple
hours later I was requested to come back to Shakers
and assist in the search of the bar. While doing
that, members of the task force located another about
ounce of cocaine in a bag with a handgun. We located
a rifle, located another half to three-quarters of an
ounce of cocaine and a small amount of what later was
found to be methamphetamine.

So the subsequent substances that were found prior to
the search of him, were those also tested?

The substances found as part of the search warrant
were also tested, and those tested positive for
cocaine and then the methamphetamine.

And did you conduct a search of Mr. Kittleson's
truck?

Yes, I personally searched his truck. There were a
bunch of sharp weapons and clubs and things like
that, and then the most prominent thing of note was a
notebook that, based upon my training and experience,

appeared to be a drug ledger. It had names or
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nicknames and then what looked to be amounts, you
know, like eighth, quarter and dollar amounts written
next to them. Based on my drug training, drug
dealers use that to keep track of, you know, either
money owed to them or money they owe to other people

and amounts.

Did you find any -- any other sort of drug
paraphernalia?
I personally did not. I can't remember exactly what

all that team found. 1It's not my case. It's their
case. I was assisting them.

So approximately how much cocaine was located both on
Mr. Kittleson and within the -- the bar, or the
office area, I should say?

I didn't weigh it personally. I can't say exactly,
but what I saw I would estimate to be somewheres
between two and a half to three ounces of cocaine.
And is that more consistent with personal use or for
distribution?

Absolutely distribution. I've never in my career
seen personal use for two to three ounces.

And just for a sense, how much would -- what amount
would be used for personal use?

Typically when I've arranged or done drug buys if

we're doing a personal use-type of buy, you're buying
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an eighth of an ounce, and that's a couple doses. Of
course it's different for everybody. It's not like,
you know, a prescribed amount, but the typical amount
of use would be a gram or so. There's 28 grams in an
ounce, so we're talking about over 80 doses at that
point in time approximately. I mean, depending on
people's tolerances and things like that, it can
change, but quite a few doses of cocaine.

Do you have any sort of indication what that might be
worth or that amount of cocaine might be worth?

I -- I don't know currently the street value of it.
It's thousands of dollars.

And just to clarify, this was all located on

Shakers' -- all the controlled substances were
located on Shakers' licensed premises?

Yes. The one ounce was removed from Dale Kittleson's
pocket. The other ounce and a half to two ounces and
the methamphetamine were found within the office area
kind of in the back of Shakers.

So now I want to turn your attention to a different
matter. So during the first -- obviously, this is
our second revocation hearing.

Yep.

Did you serve the summons on Shakers during the first

revocation hearing?
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To Dale Kittleson, I did.

Do you recall what the address was that you served
that to?

I —- it's a single-digit number on Odana Lane. I
can't remember exactly.

What city is it located in?

City of Madison, Dane County, Wisconsin.

So when you went and -- do you know if that's

Mr. Kittleson's residence?

It's the one he provides to law enforcement, it's the
one he provides to courts and the one he provides to
DOT, and I made contact with him there, so I would
assume it is.

So when you first served the summons to him, who
answered the door when you arrived?

Chatta Huffman.

Did you serve the summons for this revocation
proceeding?

Yes, I did, and the previous one that was canceled.
I served all three.

And who did you serve the most recent summons to, I
guess the two most recent summons to?

Both of those I handed directly to Chatta Huffman.
And where did you serve those upon her?

The first one I served her or the second service, she
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had me park in the Hy-Vee parking lot, which is
directly across the street from Odana Lane. I
watched her come out of Mr. Kittleson's apartment,
walk across the street, and I served it to her there.
The summons for this hearing that we're having
now I served to her. She again asked me to go to
Hy-Vee, and I just parked directly in front of
Mr. Kittleson's residence, and I called her and said
I was in front of her house. She corrected me and
said I was in front of Dale's house, and she then
exited Dale's, and I served her there.
MR. MANTHE: I have no further
questions.
MR. QUISLING: Okay.
MR. REUTER: Go ahead, Mr. Quisling.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUISLING:

Q

So you stated that Mr. Temple tested positive for
COVID. Do you know, to your knowledge, was he tested
at the hospital when he arrived, or was he tested
prior?

At the hospital. He told me he didn't know he even
had it until he got to the hospital.

Okay. You stated that you arrived at the Shakers

parking lot. Do you have a designation of what is
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Shakers' parking lot and what is the hotel's

parking lot?

I believe it's just one kind of shared parking lot.
Okay. Where in that allegedly shared parking lot
were the shell casings and the pool of blood --

The shell casings --

-- if you were facing the building.

Yep, so if you're facing the building, the shell
casings that I was shown, there were a couple of them
kind of what I would call dead center of the parking
lot. And, I mean, the parking lot is like a big U
shape all the way around the building, if we're going
to talk about what serves -- well, it's actually a
circle all the way around the building if we talk
about what serves the church, Shakers --

Correct.

-— and the hotel. But on the west side, which is the
front of Shakers and the front of the majority of the
hotel, on that side, in the middle of the parking lot
which is right next to Chalet Drive there were some
shell casings, and then there were gquite a few more
shell casings on kind of the southwest area of the
parking lot, and then the blood was on the southwest
side of the parking lot but much closer to the

building.
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And if you had to estimate the distance to the door
of the bar, approximately what would be your best
guess for both the shell casings and the pool of
blood?

The first group is shell casings, and I'm just kind
of estimating, 20 yards. And then the other stuff,
40 yards. They were right at the end of the
building, if anybody is kind of familiar with it.
Okay. So the farthest point from the Shakers door?
I mean, and still be on the property, a farther
point, but --

Pretty close?

The farthest end of the building from, vyes.

And when you say 20 yards and 40 yards, would you
say that's an approximation from one end of the
building to the other, or is that from where the
shell casings are to the building or where they were
horizontally?

That's from I would say from where the shell casings
were to -- the question you had asked, you said the
front of Shakers, so I was just going like from
Shakers' door.

Yep, so 40 yards from the door?

Yeah.

And what's the proximity to the trash cans and the
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entrance on Chalet Drive?

Are you asking distance? I mean, it's kind of close
to there.

Okay.

I would say closer to -- and for everybody to know,
by trash cans, I assume you're talking about the
dumpsters that are on the far southwest corner?
Yes, I am.

They're closer to those dumpsters than they are to
Shakers' door.

And when you arrived were there any reports or did
you see any other people from the bar still there?
There might have been a few people around. I don't
believe there really was many people at all.

Is there -- did you question anyone from Shakers
Saloon that night?

No.

Is there a reason that you didn't?

I went to interview the victim. There were other
officers present. They were doing canvasses, other
officers and another detective present who were
collecting evidence. And he'll be able to answer the
distances and things like that. But my role in it
was to go and interview the victim.

Okay. And you stated that Mr. Temple had stated that
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he had met up with two girls in another city who
brought him to a party?
He and his cousin Quavell had met up with two girls
because they wanted go to this party but they didn't
know exactly where it was. Those girls knew how to
get there, so he met up with the girls in, he felt,
Cottage Grove, and then came down to Stoughton to the
party.
Okay. You stated that Mr. Temple got into an
altercation outside of the bar; is that correct?
That is correct.
Did he state approximately what time or that they had
been -- that the bar had closed?
He had said the party had ended and most people were
leaving. He felt it was around bartime.
MR. QUISLING: Okay. That's all I've
got for right now.
MR. REUTER: Any redirect,
Mr. Manthe?
MR. MANTHE: No.
MR. REUTER: Does anybody on the
Committee have any questions for Detective Hill?
MS. LIGOCKI: I do not.
MR. REUTER: All right. It looks like

there are none. Thank you, Detective Hill.
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Your next witness, Mr. Manthe?

MR. MANTHE: Thank you, Attorney
Reuter. Actually, if I could do just a little
housekeeping, there are a couple exhibits that I
would just like to have entered right away.
They're government documents. I don't think we
need to have anybody testify to them. I labeled
them as Exhibits 1 through 4. It's Jjust
Shakers' liquor license, their application for
the assignment of agent, the Dane County public
health order and the State public health order
that were in effect at the time.

MR. REUTER: All right. Mr. Quisling,
any objection to the Committee considering
Exhibit No. 17

MR. QUISLING: I don't even have the
exhibits, so is there a way that they can be
e-mailed to me or --

MR. MANTHE: I can certainly email
them. I just need an email address.

MR. QUISLING: Yeah, just send them to
josh@ggsand.com.

MR. REUTER: Are you going to send
him all the exhibits that you're going to offer,

Mr. Manthe?
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MR. MANTHE: Yes, I can do that. All
right. I just emailed all the exhibits.

MR. REUTER: Okay. Mr. Quisling, let
us know when you've received those and have had
a chance to look at them.

MR. QUISLING: Yeah, I'm looking for
them right now.

MS. LIGOCKI: Holly, could you bring
up the title of Exhibit No. 3? Thank you.
Emergency Order No. 9. Thank you.

MR. QUISLING: I'm not seeing anything
come in. Oh, it looks like I just got it.
Yeah, I still don't have these.

MS. LICHT: Are you able to see the
screen?

MR. QUISLING: Oh, there I got it.
I've got it. Which exhibits? Holy cow. Which
exhibits did you just enter?

MR. MANTHE: 1 through 4.

MR. QUISLING: Okay.

MR. MANTHE: Exhibit 1 is the liquor
license for Shakers. Exhibit 2 is just the
application for the liquor license and to have
Chatta as the registered agent. Exhibit 3 is

the Dane County public health order, and
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Exhibit 4 is the Department of Health Services
public health order.

MR. QUISLING: Gotcha. If you'll just
indulge me for a minute here, it's going to take
me a second to get all of these open. Do you
have the date of Exhibit 4? I don't see a date
when this order actually was issued.

MR. MANTHE: It should be on the
bottom of the order.

MR. QUISLING: Yeah, okay.

MR. REUTER: Any objection to those
being admitted into evidence, Mr. Quisling?

MR. QUISLING: No, I have no
objection.

MR. REUTER: Okay.

MS. LIGOCKI: Mr. Quisling, did your
question get answered about Order No. 9 Amended,
when it was in effect?

MR. QUISLING: It did. I believe that
the signature on the bottom of that order, if
I'm understanding it correctly, is October 4th,
if I could get a consensus of agreement on
that.

MR. MANTHE: Well, that last

paragraph just says that it goes into effect
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October 8th, so I think that would be the
effective date.

MR. QUISLING: Okay. That was what I
wanted clarification on.

MR. MANTHE: My next witness will be
Detective Adams.

MR. REUTER: I'm not seeing Detective
Adams. Is he on the 1line? I'm sorry. Would

you raise your right hand, please?

ALLEN ADAMS,
having been first duly sworn on oath,

was examined and testified as follows:

MR. REUTER: State your name for the
record and spell your last name, please.

THE WITNESS: Allen Adams. My last
name is spelled A-d-a-m-s.

MR. REUTER: Your witness,
Mr. Manthe.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MANTHE:

Q Detective Adams, how are you currently employed?
A I'm a detective with the City of Stoughton Police
Department.
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And how long have you been a detective with
Stoughton?

Since 2008, 12 years approximately.

And how were you employed prior to becoming a
detective?

As a police officer also.

How long have you been in law enforcement?

Now over 25 years.

Were you working on the early morning of

October 10th?

I was.

Did you have reason to go to Shakers Saloon that
morning?

I did.

And what was the purpose of going there?

I was going to assist Detective Hill with processing
a crime scene, specifically a shooting that took
place in the parking lot that serves Shakers Saloon.
And what was your role on scene?

On scene I coordinated with the patrol sergeant
there, who showed me where various evidence might be.
I took control of the crime scene and began
processing the items of evidence that were there to
be collected.

And what were your observations there?
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The crime scene was spread primarily through the
southern part of the parking lot beginning at the
entrance onto Chalet Drive southward towards the
apartment buildings directly to the south and up to
the beginning of the back parking lot of the hotel
area.

And what evidentiary items did you find, if any?
There was blood where it appeared the victim would
have been located directly south of the hotel portion
in the parking area between or next to a car, a
couple different pools of blood there. Around those
pools of blood there were shell casings of a larger
type consistent with a .45 caliber round. As you
went more towards the access driveway to the lot, the
rounds became of the 9-millimeter variety, which is a
smaller round.

And approximately how many shots do you think were

fired?
I found at the scene eight 9-millimeter casings. I
found six casings for .45 rounds. I did also find

some spent rounds, the actual lead portion,
approximately three of those around the pools of
blood. I also found a bullet hole actually in the
siding of the motel as well, as well as some damage

to the car that was next to the pools of blood where
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it looked like a round had skimmed the roofline of
the vehicle.

So -- and I apologize if this question is not clear,

but were you able to draw any conclusions from, I
guess, the location of the shells?

The shells were consistent, the .45 rounds, the
amount of lead looked consistent with those rounds
being fired. Some of them were left on the ground.
It seemed to look like two different areas and
definitely two different styles of handgun were being
used during that altercation or whatever took place.
So did it appear that, I guess, the individuals were
shooting at each other potentially?

That is a possibility.

Could you describe the surroundings of Shakers, I
guess the neighborhood?

Yes. It is adjacent to Highway 51/East Main Street
and is in the kind of square of Chalet Drive and 51.
Just south are apartment buildings, multi-family
housing, and farther down the street are some
residences, and finally where it comes up to the next
road, an elementary school. Directly across from the
hotel and Shakers is a daycare, a laundromat as you
get closer more back up towards 51, so a very

mixed-use area.
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So just to, I guess, summarize, there are both
residential -- it's a residential area, and there are
some commercial properties?

Correct.

As part of your investigation, did you review any
video footage from Shakers?

I did. We did perform a search warrant a couple days
after the incident, I believe the 15th, where we did
go into Shakers Bar, and I did observe several video
camera setups, actual cameras around the bar,
approximately 10. We did go back into the office
area and did find that these cameras were hooked up
to a monitor, which was viewable, and you could see
the camera footage from that monitor back in the
office. It was also hooked up to various modems.
There was a server back in the office and also a DVR,
so —-—

So you'd --

Yeah, go ahead.

You had indicated that you got a search warrant for
that or for the cameras. Prior to obtaining the
search warrant did Shakers or any representatives
from Shakers say if they had cameras for the bar?

I was informed that they did not have any video

footage and that those cameras did not work.
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And after executing the search warrant, were you able
to obtain video?
I was.
So there were actually recordings that you could
view?
10 cameras' worth, yes, for several days.
And did you actually review the video from that
night?
I did.
So at this point it may be a little difficult because
I'd like to introduce some still frames. So I guess
first I'm going to show you what's marked as
Exhibit 5. So I don't know, Holly, if you want to
bring that up. Okay. So could you please identify
what Exhibit 5 is?
This is a shot from the camera that is at the
northern part of the main bar in Shakers. It is
pointed southwards, and you can see the various
patrons there unmasked and the bartenders unmasked as
well that I noticed throughout the night as being the
primary two bartenders there.
MR. Manthe: All right. At this point
I'd like to introduce Exhibit 5 into the record.
MR. REUTER: Any objection,

Mr. Quisling?
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MR. QUISLING: No, no objection.
MR. REUTER: All right. Exhibit 5
will be received, along with 1 through 4.
At this point I'd like to show you what's marked as
Exhibit 6. And could you please identify Exhibit 6,
Detective?
That is from the same camera, and that is the third
bartender, also the gentleman I talked to out in the
parking lot that night as I was processing the crime
scene that I later identified as Mr. Dillman.
MR. Manthe: At this point I'd like to
enter Exhibit 6 into the record.
MR. REUTER: Any objection,
Mr. Quisling?
MR. QUISLING: No objection.
MR. REUTER: Exhibit 6 will be
received.
And at this point I'd like to show you what's been
marked as Exhibit 7. Could you please identify this,
Detective?
This is the south end of that main bar. It is the
camera closest to the entrance of the bar that I
could find, and this is basically what I observed
around, as I was viewing the footage, the main bar

area, and the approximate distances people were from
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each other as they were in the bar. It was pretty
packed.
MR. Manthe: At this point I'd like to
enter Exhibit 7 into the record.
MR. REUTER: Any objection,
Mr. Quisling?
MR. QUISLING: No objection.
I'd like to show you what has been marked as
Exhibit 8.
MR. REUTER: Exhibit 7 will be
received.
And, Detective, could you please identify what
Exhibit 8 is?
This is another camera view. This camera was more on
the east side from the kind of office area pointed
back towards the main bar to the west and is again
kind of representative of the spacing of people
within the bar.
MR. Manthe: At this point I'd like to
enter Exhibit 8 into the record.
MR. REUTER: Any objection?
MR. QUISLING: No objection.
MR. REUTER: All right. Exhibit 8 is
received.

The last photo here, I'd like to show you what's been
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marked as Exhibit 9. And could you please identify
Exhibit 9, Detective?
This is back to the main bar area with that
southerly-faced camera, again showing one of the main
bartenders and patrons at that bar.

MR. MANTHE: I'd like to enter

Exhibit 9 into the record.

MR. REUTER: Any objection?

MR. QUISLING: No objection.

MR. REUTER: Exhibit 9 is received.
Detective, are you familiar with the individual by
the name of Sherrod Temple?
I am.
When you were reviewing the video footage were you
able to identify whether or not Mr. Temple was at
Shakers?
Yes, he was.
Do you have any sense of for how long he was in the
bar?
He wasn't there right away at the beginning when
patrons started coming in at approximately 10 p.m.,
but he did arrive and was there for a couple hours,
if not three hours. He was consistently back and
forth through that main bar area and actually did go

back into -- unfortunately, we don't have an exhibit
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for it -- more of an VIP area where the actual
birthday party group was housed and the birthday
person was getting his 32 shots poured by
Mr. Dillman. So, yeah, he was there for quite some
time, and actually, that is where possibly the
interaction took place with the suspect.
MR. MANTHE: I have no further
questions.
MR. REUTER: Any questions,
Mr. Quisling?
MR. QUISLING: Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUISLING:

Q

Given the fact that we, at Shakers Saloon, had no
knowledge that -- to access this DVR, how did you
access the video? How were these images obtained?
Dane County Sheriff's Office Deputy Kunz is a
specialist in video forensics, actually my instructor
in video forensics, and he does have specialized
forensic software that is specific to DVRs and
designed to decrypt video from DVRs, even if the
password i1s not available.

Per your investigation of the shooting, have you come
to a conclusion of the other party or parties

involved?
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The investigation has led to possibly suspects based
on the interactions between.

And in your viewing of the video surveillance that
you obtained from the forensics, have you found any
altercation that took place inside the bar?

There was contact both inside the bar and right at
bartime, within minutes, outside the bar. Once --
Can you define contact for me?

Visual. Basically there appears from the video to be
at least eye contact interaction.

Eye contact or physical contact?

No physical contact at that point that I could
ascertain outside.

Okay. So from all of your forensic video, there was
no physical altercation that took place in the bar;
is that correct?

Not that I observed, no.

In all the review of that, was there any sign of a
weapon or any flashing of a gun or guns on any
individual in there?

Can you define flashing?

Yielding, showing or otherwise a visible weapon.
That is a possibility.

Can you elaborate on that, please?

There may be a frame that shows a flashing.
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Okay. I -- I need more concrete than maybe.

That's what I can give you.

Okay. So you conclusively have no video evidence of
a weapon being shown?

I have a possibility of a weapon being shown.

You have a possibility?

Correct, sir.

So no altercation in the bar. Is there any video
evidence outside the bar?

Define evidence of which.

Well, it's my understanding that there's a camera
that overlooks the parking lot. 1It's a City camera.
Again, what are you asking about specifically?

I'm asking if the only video evidence that you
procured for your investigation was that of wvideo
evidence inside the bar.

That is incorrect.

Okay. What other video evidence do you have of this
altercation?

Motel residents, neighbors, the daycare.

Is there any specific reason that that evidence
hasn't been -- can you elaborate on that evidence?
What does that evidence show?

I think one example might be available -- I don't

know if it's been introduced yet -- in Exhibit 15.
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That's --
I don't have an Exhibit 15.
MR. MANTHE: Yeah, I have only
provided 10.
Okay. Again, if you could repeat your question?
MR. QUISLING: Well, I'm going to
hold -- hold on for one second here. I'm going

to ask a question, if the Committee would grant
me a little latitude here and if the attorney, I
don't have any of this video evidence, if you
could send me this Exhibit 15 that you have sort
of sitting on the sidelines.

MR. MANTHE: Well, I wasn't actually
planning on introducing it, so it won't Dbe
evidence.

MR. QUISLING: I don't exactly have
access to any of this evidence.

MR. MANTHE: I have not received any
requests from anybody at Shakers.

MR. QUISLING: Well, I wasn't fully
understanding that I needed to make a request
for that stuff, as I am not a licensed attorney.
I don't know if the City Council or the Public
Safety Committee would grant me a little

latitude?
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MR. REUTER: What is it that we're
talking about in terms of this Exhibit 15? What
is it?

MR. QUISLING: Well, I have not had
the ability to see any of this evidence or any
of these exhibits or have any sort of discovery
from the attorney on the other side. And I am
not an attorney, and I didn't really understand
that this was what was going to be happening
tonight, so I'm a little unprepared and a little
uninformed. And there is other video evidence
and other exhibits that he may or may not be
presenting, but I don't have any idea what he's
presenting at all.

MR. MANTHE: This is all the exhibits
that I plan on introducing.

MR. QUISLING: Right, but I'm asking
for what this officer said is potential other
camera video evidence that you supposedly have
in an Exhibit 15, and I'm just asking to see it.

MR. MANTHE: I believe Exhibit 15 is
just a police report.

MR. QUISLING: Okay.

MR. REUTER: So Exhibit 15 is a police

report?
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MR. MANTHE: Yes. And I guess to
clarify, I had marked it as an exhibit and shown
it to the detective and then ultimately decided
not to introduce it.

MR. REUTER: Okay.

Okay. Detective Adams, could you tell me if you have
viewed any other wvideo evidence that would show the
parking lot at the time of the incident?

Yes, I did, and could make a comparison between how
many vehicles were in the lot prior to Shakers
closing to how many were left once I arrived and
after the shooting had taken place.

And in that video evidence how long after the closing
of the bar did the actual shooting take place?
Within a matter of minutes.

Okay. And --

Three to four.

I'm sorry? Say that again.

Three or four.

In what proximity to the actual entry of the bar was
this shooting?

Well, given the 9-millimeter casings, and if you
judge them by where they landed, which is not always
where the shot took place from -- they do travel a

bit -- I would say Detective Hill's estimation was
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pretty good. The 9-millimeter casings landed, three
of them, basically right in front of the entrance off
of Chalet. They were approximately 30 feet away from
the edge of the hotel end towards the roadway of
Chalet, in that kind of driveway area entrance.

The others were at the south end of the hotel
where the vehicles were parked for those patrons.
And once I got there, there was only one vehicle left
that was actually belonging to a motel patron. The
other three vehicles parked in those -- I believe
there's four stalls there -- were kind of involved as
friends of the victim and had left by that time. So
that's what --
Did you actually have -- did you actually have wvideo
of the shooting live?
Of the shooting?
Yes, do you have video evidence of the shooting? 1In
other words, did you catch the actual event on camera
in any of the footage that you reviewed?
We found one, as I discussed, yep.
I'm sorry. I couldn't hear that.
That is correct.
And was that one shooter, two shooters?
I would say it's inconclusive from what you can see,

but you can see some elements of the shooting.
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And in that video evidence, were these Wisconsin
residents or out-of-state residents, or is that --

MR. MANTHE: Objection, relevance.

MR. QUISLING: I didn't hear that.

MR. MANTHE: I don't see the relevance
of that question.

MR. REUTER: Well, I'1ll allow the
question.

MR. QUISLING: Okay. I'm asking
relevant to whether or not these shooters were
on foot and whether the shooters were in the
bar.

MR. REUTER: Why don't you pose your
question to the detective. I'm not sure where
we are here.

MR. QUISLING: I don't either.

MR. McCARROLL: Josh.

Detective Adams --
MR. McCARROLL: Well, go ahead.
-— in the video evidence that you have, were these
shooters on foot?
The suspect is on foot, correct.
And the second shooter?
I think that would draw a conclusion that there was a

second shooter, which I am not stating that there
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was.
Okay.
It's possible, but I'm not going to draw that
conclusion.
But the shooting did take place outside of the bar?
In the lot that services the bar, yes.
MR. QUISLING: No further questions.
MR. REUTER: I Jjust have a couple of
guick things just to clarify. At the beginning
of your testimony you said that this shooting
occurred on October 10th, right?
DETECTIVE ADAMS: The early morning of
October 10th. And I was going to clarify with
some of your exhibits that there is a time
discrepancy between the difference between
Grand Meridian Time and Central Time, so be very
careful when you look at that not to draw the
conclusion that it's, you know, five hours later
or whatever.
MR. REUTER: My question was Jjust
that this was 2020, right, that we're talking
about?
DETECTIVE ADAMS: Correct.
MR. REUTER: Okay. And I think you

said that somebody told you that there was no
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video recording available from the cameras. Did
I hear that right?

DETECTIVE ADAMS: That was
Joshua Quisling in a conversation with him about
the server that he told me about.

MR. REUTER: And when did that happen,
that conversation?

DETECTIVE ADAMS: That was after the
search warrant when he called to find out the
status of the server, which was the 15th, I
believe.

MR. REUTER: That's all I have. Does
any member of the Committee have any questions?

MAYOR SWADLEY: I have a few. And my
first question is do we know who made the 911
call? Was there a 911 call?

DETECTIVE ADAMS: I'm not aware of
that. I was, again, basically handling the
processing and then the forensics afterwards.

MAYOR SWADLEY: So I'm just wondering
how the police department was notified that
there was a shooting.

DETECTIVE ADAMS: That might be better
for the other witnesses.

MAYOR SWADLEY: Okay. And would you
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have any idea of the blood alcohol level of the
victim?

DETECTIVE ADAMS: Other than being
described to me as very intoxicated, no.

MAYOR SWADLEY: And then do you know
what -- does somebody know what the occupancy of
the building is?

MR. QUISLING: Yes. I believe it's
299.

MR. MEYER: The occupancy 1is 299.

MAYOR SWADLEY: 2997

MR. MEYER: The occupancy limit at
Shakers is 299.

MAYOR SWADLEY: Okay.

MR. MEYER: COVID, after 25 percent,
is 70. We had 69 patrons in the bar that night.

MAYOR SWADLEY: And how do you know
that?

MR. MEYER: We had a checker. We had
two door guys. We had a checker at the door, a
clicker clicking the numbers, because our --
because the rest of the patrons were not allowed
in and they stayed in the parking lot.

MAYOR SWADLEY: That's all I have.

MR. MEYER: Excuse me?
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MAYOR SWADLEY: That's all the
questions I have for now.

MR. REUTER: Does anybody else on the
Committee have any questions?

MR. DILLMAN: Yeah, and we want --

MR. REUTER: Nobody else?
Mr. Manthe, did you have any redirect?

MR. MANTHE: The only -- just a quick
question, a couple quick questions.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MANTHE:

Q

LGN ©

So, Detective Allen, you said that you had reviewed
footage that, I believe you said, was overviewing the
parking lot or footage of the parking lot?

That is correct.

Were there a lot of cars in the parking lot?

Yes.

Was it -- I guess it may be hard to quantify, but was
it full, half full?

It was full. 1If you know the shape of the parking
lot, primarily the hotel patrons will park on the
west side of the hotel. Obviously, it's more a motor
style, so the entrances to the rooms are on the
outside, and they park their vehicles in front of

their rooms.

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC






10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

62

The patrons were parked primarily on the outer
rim of the parking lot, directly in front of Shakers,
all along there, all along the dumpster area, all
along the south edge of the parking lot by the
apartments and then most of the stalls on the south
side of the hotel, and then also they were parking on
Chalet.

MR. MANTHE: I have no further
questions.

MR. QUISLING: Can I ask a few more
questions here after that?

MR. REUTER: Sure, if you limit
yourself to the topic that was just discussed,
you can.

MR. QUISLING: Sure.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUISLING:

Q

In reviewing that footage outside in the parking lot
prior to the bar closing, how many people were in the
parking lot approximately?

Prior to the bar or after bartime when the lights
went on?

Prior to the bar closing.

Prior to the bar closing? When do you understand the

bar closing? Is that when the lights go on or when
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Mr. Dillman actually reacted to what was going on
outside and turned the lights off?

No, 2:00 is when we close, close the bar, 2 a.m.

My footage showed patrons in there after 2 a.m., and
that was verified by body cam comparison.

Correct, correct. We close down the bar and have a
time frame that we have to move people out of the
bar.

Okay.

We have -- we have patrons exit the bar at 2:00.
They started to exit at 2:00 from what I viewed,
yes.

My -- my question was in the parking lot prior to
closing, how many people approximately were in the
parking lot?

The footage that I viewed showed a large group
outside of probably about 40 people in that northwest
corner of the lot and then several stragglers around
in different groups by the dumpsters and then also
groups over by the south end of the hotel. Again,
it's approximations of like 10 over in that southwest
corner and maybe another seven or eight over on the
south side of the hotel, but still there was people
in the bar too, and it was kind of a constant, you

know, slow, slow walk of people.
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And even when Mr. Dillman shut off the lights,
there was still people in there, but I could not
identify them as like the 15 people being staff or
patrons or what.

Okay. But my question -- my question was prior to
the bar closing, so prior to, say, 1:45, how many
people were in the video footage outside the bar?
I would say there was stragglers kind of throughout.
I did not observe large groups prior to the closing
footage that I viewed.
MR. QUISLING: I have no further
questions.
MR. REUTER: Anything more,
Mr? Manthe.
MR. MANTHE: No.
MR. REUTER: Any more witnesses?
MR. MANTHE: I would like to call

Officer Hector Covarrubias. I hope I'm

pronouncing that correctly.

OFFICER COVARRUBIAS: Yes, you are.

MR. REUTER: I'm sorry. What was the
name again?

MR. MANTHE: Hector Covarrubias.

MR. REUTER: Would you raise your

right hand, please?

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC






10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

65

HECTOR COVARRUBIAS,
having been first duly sworn on oath,

was examined and testified as follows:

MR. REUTER: Would you state your name

again and spell your last name?
THE WITNESS: Officer Hector

Covarrubias, C-o-v-a-r-r-u-b-i-a-s.

MR. REUTER: All right. Go ahead,

Mr. Manthe.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MANTHE:

Q Could you —-- or how are you currently employed?

A I'm a police officer with the City of Stoughton.

Q How long have you been a police officer with
Stoughton?

A Seven years.

Q Do you have any prior experience before joining
Stoughton?

A I do. I was a police officer in the Village of

Maple Bluff for six years.

Q So approximately how many years have you worked in

law enforcement?

A 13.
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And as a police officer, what are just some of your
duties that you perform?

To report to calls for service, to assist people in
need and to do criminal investigations and write
reports and testify as well.

Were you working for the Stoughton Police Department
on the early morning hours of October 10th of 20207
I was.

Do you recall what you were doing around just after
midnight on that day or early morning?

Myself, Officer Olson and Sergeant Johnson went to
Shakers Saloon to perform a bar check.

When you arrived at Shakers, what were your initial
observations?

The entire street of Chalet and the parking lots were
all full of cars. There were people in the parking
lots. As we walked up to the front door, we were met
by a female who appeared to be a bouncer, as we
walked, as we approached the business.

And can you give an approximate time of when this
was?

Around midnight.

Were you able to -- when you first arrived, were you
able to gain entry into Shakers?

No, we were not.
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And why was that?

The female would not let us in, and then

Jeffrey Veith came outside and also advised us that
we could not come in, as it was a private party, and
denied us access.

Were you eventually able to gain access to the
interior?

Yes, we were.

What did you observe while inside Shakers?

I observed that there were several people in the bar
area and everywhere I could see. Approximately
there appeared to be about 100 people, and no --
well, 10 percent maybe were wearing masks. No one
was socially distancing.

Were the bartenders wearing masks?

I do not recall.

Could you see Shakers implementing or, I guess, the
staff implementing any sort of health protocols at
the time?

I did observe one male with a thermometer-type device
in his hand. I did not check to see if it was
working or if they were using it.

So I guess it's already been introduced into
evidence, but were you aware of any public health

orders that were in effect at the time?
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I believe Public Order No. 9.

And if you know, could you just describe what that
Public Health Order No. 9 is?

I believe it had -- in regards to taverns, or what
are you looking for specifically?

Yes, yes, we'll limit it to taverns.

Okay. As far as taverns go, I believe it states in
the order that customers may enter taverns only for
purposes of ordering, pickup and payment of food or
beverages or while in transit.

But not to, I guess, stay in the bar area?

No.

Did you take any action after you had these
observations?

I personally did not. Officer Olson did write a
report and send that report to the Dane County Human
Health and Services.

So after you did your bar check did you leave Shakers
premises?

We did.

Did you have cause to go back to Shakers later that
morning?

Yes, we did.

And what was the purpose of that?

There was a call for shots fired, so we responded.
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And you responded?

Yes, I did.

All right. And when you arrived on scene, what was
your role?

I arrived on scene as one of the first officers on
scene and observed people in vehicles as well as on
foot fleeing the area, screaming and running away.
Do you recall approximately what time this was?

I believe it was around 2 a.m.

And did you conduct a further investigation after you
arrived?

I did. Myself and Sergeant Johnson canvassed the
area for any victims, which I did not locate. We did
locate several shell casings as well as blood on the
south end of the building.

Okay. Did you interview any, I guess, neighboring
residents to the Shakers property?

Yes, I did.

Did you interview a person by the name of

Austin West?

Yes, I did.

And what did you learn from Mr. West?

Mr. West was in Unit 202, so that's on the second
floor of the building. He stated that he was just

watching TV and heard the normal loud noises coming
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from the parking lot due to Shakers always being
loud. He then stated he heard several bangs,
approximately 20, ran into his bathroom and called
911.

0 And did you interview an individual by the name of
Jody Heitke?

A Yes, I did.

0 Where does she reside?

A She resides in the residential area south of
111 Chalet at 201 Chalet Drive.

Q And did she -- what did she describe that she was
doing just prior to the shooting?

A Jody stated that she was just laying in bed unable to
sleep due to all the noise and the ruckus from the
outside of her residence.

0 And did she hear shots fired?

A She did. She stated that she heard, again,
approximately, she estimates, 20 shots.

MR. MANTHE: I have no further
questions.
MR. REUTER: Mr. Quisling-?
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. QUISLING:
Q So in your time with the Stoughton Police Department

prior to the shooting and the dispatch on
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October 9, 2020, how many times did you receive a
call at Shakers Saloon?

Since I've been a police officer here in Stoughton?
As a police officer, how many times were you
dispatched to Shakers Saloon on an official call?

I do not recall how many times.

Would you say it's more than once?

Yes.

So you've been dispatched to Shakers Saloon on an
actual complaint of some sort more than once?

Yes.

But you don't recall when or how many?

No. 1I've been a police officer here for seven years.
I do not recall every call that I take.

Okay. You stated previously that you were refused by
who appeared to be a female bouncer and then a
gentleman named Jeffrey?

Correct.

Neither of those people are employees of Shakers
Saloon. So when you were permitted entry, who came
and permitted you entry?

Bradley Dillman.

And did Brad at the time that he asked -- or you
asked to enter, did he allow you entry?

Yes, he did.
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Did he offer to take your temperature?
No, he did not.
He didn't request to take your temperature?
No, he did not request to take my temperature.
MR. DILLMAN: Can I say something?
Yes, I did. Everyone that came through, and
there was --
MR. REUTER: Hold on.
MR. MANTHE: TI'd object to
Mr. Dillman speaking at this point. If he has
testimony, he can offer it later.
MR. DILLMAN: Okay, well.
MR. REUTER: Go ahead, Mr. Quisling.
You stated that when you arrived at approximately
midnight there were several people in the parking
lot. Can you approximate how many people were in the
parking lot?
I'd say, I don't know, probably around 10 people
maybe.
And when you —--
They were all just arriving.
Okay. And would you approximate the number of cars
on the street and in the parking lot, total?
Probably at least 40, if not more.

And you stated that there were approximately a
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That's just my estimation. I didn't count anybody.

Okay. Did you ask for the bar to provide what their

current count was in the bar?

I did not.

Was there any sort of disturbance or problem inside

the bar when you arrived?

No, there was not.

And was there any disturbance or problem outside the

bar when you left?

No, there was not.

MR. QUISLING: I have no more

questions.

MR. REUTER: Mr. Manthe?

MR. MANTHE: No further questions.

MR. REUTER: Does anybody on the

Committee have any questions for

CHATRMAN JENSON: None
you.

MR. REUTER: Your next
Mr. Manthe?

MR. MANTHE: I'd like
Sergeant Frisch.

MR. REUTER: I have to

on my --

the officer?

from me. Thank

witness,

to call

find him here

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS,

LLC
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THE WITNESS: I'm here.
MR. REUTER: Would you raise your

right hand, please?

PATRICK FRISCH,
having been first duly sworn on oath,

was examined and testified as follows:

MR. REUTER: Would you state your name
and spell your last name for the record, please?

THE WITNESS: Sure, Patrick Frisch,
F-r-i-s-c-h.

MR. REUTER: Go ahead, Mr. Manthe.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MANTHE:

Q Mr. Frisch, how are you currently employed?

A I'm a police sergeant with the City of Stoughton
Police Department.

Q And how long have you have been employed by the

police department of Stoughton?

Just over 24 years.

And how long have you worked in law enforcement?

Same, 24 years.

(ORI ©

Were you working for the Stoughton Police Department

on October 10th?
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I was.

Did you have reason to contact Chatta Huffman on that
date?

I did. She had called the police department.

And who is Chatta?

She identified herself to me as the license -- liquor
license holder for the Shakers Saloon.

And what was the nature of your conversation with
her?

She told me she had heard there was an incident
there. I confirmed that there was, and she told me
that she was upset about that and wanted to surrender
the liquor license and asked how to do that.

Did she give a reason why she wanted to surrender the
license?

She said that she initially told the owners or other
people involved apparently that she did not want it
open due to the COVID concerns, and they were open
that night, and then heard about the shooting
incident as well.

So after she had indicated she wanted to relinquish
the liquor license, what did you do?

She had asked how to go about it. I told her she
could simply go to the bar, take the liquor license

off the wall and return it to the police department.
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And did that happen?

It did not.

And do you know why not?

Chatta had called the police department shortly --
well, several hours, I should say, after that,
indicating she had gone to Shakers to get the liquor
license off the wall and she was physically removed
by one of the owners and now denied access to the
building, so she couldn't take it off the wall and
give it to us.

And after that conversation with her, did you take
any further action?

I did. I responded to the Shakers Saloon and met her
in the parking lot and spoke to her there. She asked
if there were any other options. I told her that she
could surrender the liquor license to us and created
a form that indicated she wanted to surrender the
license to us. And she worked with Officer Sargent
to complete that form, and he later provided her a
copy of that, asking to surrender the liquor license
on that day's date, on the 10th of October.

Did you try to gain entry into Shakers?

I did. I went to the front door. It was locked. I
knocked loudly on the door enough to hurt my knuckles

and received no response from somebody inside, and
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she told me that she had just recently spoken to
Bradley Dillman, who was inside.

And she wasn't able to gain entry at that time?

She was able to get inside the front door, and she
was actually, as she put it, physically removed from
the premises. I asked her if she wanted to pursue
charges of battery. She told me she did not.

And so you said you had knocked and shouted. Did
anybody respond to your actions?

Not at that time, no.

Were you -- or did you talk to Bradley Dillman after
that event?

I did. I returned to the police department, and I
placed a phone call to the number we have on file for
him, and he answered.

Did you ask him about whether or not Shakers has any
cameras?

I asked him if there were video cameras, and he told
me there were, but he told me they were
closed-circuit television cameras only, where they
didn't record and he could watch but he couldn't
rewind and see what happened previous.

And just to clarify, he said the cameras did not
record?

That's correct. As a matter of fact, Detective Hill
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was standing outside my office at the time while I
was on the phone, and I wrote a note on a Post-it
note that says, "Cameras don't record," and showed it
to him so he could get that information immediately.
MR. MANTHE: I have no further
questions.
MR. REUTER: Mr. Quisling?

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUISLING:

Q

Okay. Sergeant Frisch, you stated that

Chatta Huffman identified herself as the agent of
the liquor license; is that correct?

She said she was the liquor license holder, yes.

To your knowledge, is an agent able to surrender a
liquor license or is just their positions as the
agent?

I am not sure. She just said she wanted to surrender
it, and I was going to facilitate that.

And how many times have you been called down to
Shakers Saloon prior to October 10th, do you recall?
Are you just asking when as it's been named Shakers?
How many times have you been called down to Shakers
on a report or a call-in, somebody calling in for a
problem?

I don't believe I've been there at all personally,
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but it's only been Shakers a few years. I've been
there for other businesses.
Yeah, solely when it has been Shakers.
Yeah, I've been there. I work during the day, so
it's not my wheelhouse.
And was the liquor license surrendered by
Chatta Huffman?
Verbally she asked to surrender the license. She
said she wanted nothing else to do with it, so we had
her complete the surrender form, and she signed it.
To your knowledge, on the day that she claimed to
have wanted to surrender the liquor license was she
under the impression that the shooting had taken
place in the bar?
I don't know if she believed it had taken place in
the bar. I'm not sure exactly where she -- where her
impression was of where it took place.
And on the -- and do you recall whether or not the
news had reported that the shooting had taken place
in the bar?
I don't know if the bar -- if the news said the bar,
said it took place inside or not.
MR. QUISLING: I don't have any
further questions.

MR. REUTER: Any follow-up,
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Mr. Manthe?

MR. MANTHE: No further questions of
this witness.

MR. REUTER: Any questions by members
of the Committee? Seeing none, any more
witnesses, Mr. Manthe?

MR. MANTHE: One last witness. I just
want to do one more housekeeping thing. At this
point I'd like to take -- ask to take judicial
notice of a City of Stoughton ordinance, and
that is Ordinance 14-40, Subsection G. It's
entitled Consent to Inspection of Premises,

"The holder of any license issued under this
article shall be deemed to have given consent to
entry and inspection at any time by any police
officer or any other person without warrant.
Refusal by the licensee or holder of a manager's
or operator's license to permit such inspection
shall be deemed a violation of this article."”

MR. QUISLING: And can I ask for the
relevance of this being a point of order? I
don't -- I don't understand.

MR. REUTER: Well, he's asking -- he's
asking the Committee to take official notice

that there's an ordinance that exists that says

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC






10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

81

what he just read, and in other words, the
ordinance would become part of the record. Do
you have any objection to that?

MR. QUISLING: I don't have any
objection to the ordinance. I have an objection
to I don't know where that became relevant, as
no part or employee of Shakers Saloon has
refused entry to a police officer, alderman or
council member, if I understand the statute.

MR. REUTER: That's an argument that
you can make.

MR. QUISLING: Sure.

MR. REUTER: As far as the ordinance
goes, we will take official notice of the
ordinance as stated.

MR. QUISLING: Gotcha, gotcha.

MR. MANTHE: My final witness is
Paul Johnson.

MR. REUTER: Mr. Johnson, would you

raise your right hand, please?

PAUL JOHNSON,
having been first duly sworn on oath,

was examined and testified as follows:
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MR. REUTER: Thank you. Would you
state your name and spell your last name for the
record, please?

THE WITNESS: Paul Johnson,
J-o-h-n-s-o-n.

MR. REUTER: Go ahead, Mr. Manthe.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MANTHE:

Mr. Johnson, how are you currently employed?

I'm currently employed with the City of Stoughton
Police Department as a police officer.

And how long have you been a police officer with the
City of Stoughton?

Almost five years now.

And do you have any law enforcement experience prior
to joining the City of Stoughton?

Yes. I was a police officer in the City of Edgerton
for two years, and prior to that I spent three
summers in the Lake Geneva area as a police officer.
Were you working for the Stoughton Police Department
on the early morning of February 23, 20207

Yes.

And I guess what shift were you working?

I am currently assigned to the third shift patrol,

which is 10 p to 6 a.m.
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Do you recall what you were doing at approximately
2:40 a.m.?

I was on routine patrol in the area of the

100 block of Chalet Drive in the City of Stoughton,
Dane County, Wisconsin.

Did you observe anything of note at that time?

I noted that the Open sign for Shakers Saloon was
illuminated.

And what did you do after seeing the 1lit sign?

I pulled into the parking lot and walked up to the
main entrance of the saloon and was able to see in
through the glass window in that door and observed
that there was two female bartenders, two males
sitting at the bar consuming alcoholic beverages and
one male standing near the bar.

And did you find that odd at 2:40 in the morning?
That is correct, because our local ordinance is that
bars are not to sell or have alcohol consumed on the
licensed premises after 2:30 a.m. on Fridays and
Saturdays.

So after making these observations, did you enter the
bar area?

I did.

And did you follow up on your observations or, I

guess --
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I did, I did. I made contact with a male that I had
become familiar with as Bradley Dillman. I advised
him that his Open sign was currently on and it was
now 2:42 a.m., and he advised that the four people I
had observed are employees and that he had bought
them alcoholic beverages as a, quote, thank-you,
end quote, for working tonight.
And did it appear that all the people that were
drinking were employees?
The two females were behind the bar drinking and I
would describe it as doing job duties after a bar had
closed, and the two males were sitting on the patron
side of the bar, consuming alcohol, not doing any
job-related duties.
Did you issue a citation —--
I did.
-— based on your observations?
I did.
And what was that citation?
The City of Stoughton ordinance. I don't have the
ordinance number or anything or the citation number,
but I issued a municipal citation for the violation
of being open after hours.

MR. MANTHE: I have no further

questions.
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MR. REUTER: Mr. Quisling, any
questions?

MR. QUISLING: No questions.

MR. REUTER: Do any members of the
Committee have any questions? Okay. Hearing
none, Mr. Manthe, anything else?

MR. MANTHE: The last one is just a
final exhibit. 1It's Exhibit No. 10, and these
are City Council meeting minutes from
April 14th. The minutes just reflect the prior
revocation action regarding Shakers, that their
license was suspended for 48 days.

MR. REUTER: Has this been sent over
to Mr. Quisling?

MR. MANTHE: Yes, I did send this
over.

MR. REUTER: Mr. Quisling, any
objection to receipt of Exhibit 107

MR. QUISLING: I'm pulling it up.
Give me one second.

MR. MANTHE: I believe since it's a
regularly-kept government record, it --

MR. QUISLING: Yeah, no objection.

MR. REUTER: Okay. Exhibit 10 is

received.
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MR. MANTHE: I have no further
witnesses.

MR. REUTER: Okay. We've been going
just about two hours. Does anybody on the
Committee want to take a break? No? All
right.

MR. QUISLING: If T could --

MR. REUTER: Go ahead.

MR. QUISLING: If I could take a break
for 10, 15 minutes so I could kind of prepare
something.

MR. REUTER: Does anybody on the
Committee have an objection to a 10-minute
break? Okay. We'll take a 10-minute break and
be back at 8:05.

MR. QUISLING: All right.

(A recess 1is taken)

MR. QUISLING: This is Josh Quisling.
I'm back on the line.

MR. REUTER: All right.

MR. McCARROLL: I'm back, Josh. I'm
just going to leave my camera off for now.

MR. QUISLING: Who is that?

MR. McCARROLL: That's Aaron.

MR. MANTHE: Attorney Reuter, I guess
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I don't know if we're starting back up yet, but
do we have -- can we let our witnesses go, I
guess, unless the defense wants to call them
back up?

MR. REUTER: Yeah, Mr. Quisling, do
you have any plans to call any of the
complainant's witnesses again?

MR. QUISLING: No.

MR. REUTER: They can all be
released.

MR. MANTHE: Thank you.

MR. REUTER: Do we have the whole
committee here now?

MS. LICHT: I believe so.

MR. REUTER: Okay. Then let's go back
on the record. Mr. Quisling, do you want to
call your first witness?

MR. QUISLING: Yes. I call Steve
Meyer.

MR. MEYER: I'm here.

MR. REUTER: Hold on just a minute.

Would you raise your right hand, please?

STEVE MEYER,

having been first duly sworn on oath,
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was examined and testified as follows:

MR. REUTER: Go ahead, Mr. Quisling.

MR. QUISLING: I'm going to let
Mr. Meyer sort of testify ad lib, and then I'll
follow up with some questions after he's done
talking.

MR. MANTHE: I guess I would object to
just ad lib testimony. I believe that there
should be questions asked if it's direct exam.

MR. REUTER: Yeah, I think in order to
at least keep us on relevant topics --

MR. QUISLING: Well, I mean, he has
something that he wants to say, so --

MR. REUTER: Well, and you can't ask
him a question that will elicit that result,
that statement?

MR. QUISLING: Sure.

MR. MEYER: All I need is five
minutes, please.

MR. QUISLING: What's that?

MR. MEYER: All I need is five
minutes, but I appreciate it.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUISLING:

Q Mr. Meyer, can you give us your take on this
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situation? What is your take on this situation?

MR. MANTHE: I guess that calls for a

narrative. That's not really a question.
Well, first of all --

MR. QUISLING: Look, guys, I'm not an
attorney, so, you know, I don't know what the
formal proceeding is here. I'm just trying to
get him to state his piece, and then we'll be
done.

MR. REUTER: All right, hold on.

I'm going to allow the testimony. We'll see

where it goes. If it starts getting too

long, I'm going to cut it off, but go ahead,

Mr. Dillman -- or Mr. Meyer.
That's fine. I'm Mr. Meyer. I'm Mr. Meyer. So I'm
the owner of the bar, and I appreciate everybody
taking their time today to listen to this testimony.

And with that even said, that evening on the
10th there was something that happened in the parking
lot. There was nothing that happened in the bar.
There was no evidence that shows that there's
anything that happened in the bar. There was no
arguing. There was no fighting. There was nothing.

We do have a -- we do have a wand in which we

check every patron that comes into the bar, and we
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have two bouncers at the door. We checked every
patron. Nobody brought in a weapon.

It's unfortunate. Thank God that no children
were killed or nothing, no stray bullets, but that
didn't happen in the bar. That happened in a parking
lot that we share with a motel, okay?

I'm not taking anything away from the
seriousness of that, but we at the bar take things
serious too. We check temperatures. We check IDs.
We make sure that every patron has a mask. We had
69 people on a clicker in the bar, not around about,
not an I'm not sure, not what I could see. That's
actual factual numbers that we had.

And -- and I appreciate the City Council giving
us the opportunity to explain ourselves. That's
about it. That's about all I have. We run -- we
don't run -- we run a very well-established bar. We
don't have any police calls. We don't even have one.
We don't have any police calls in the entire year
that we've been open, not one police call.

We have one violation, and that's Bradley giving
the employees a drink, and that's it. That's it.
Dale is completely dissolved from the company, and he
was dissolved before the last -- before the last

revocation hearing in which you guys gave us a second
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opportunity. And we've lived up to that opportunity.
We do not throw crazy riotous parties down
there. We don't use foul language. We don't --
we're a righteous bar. COVID has hit all of us in
the gut, and but we do not run a riotous bar.
Okay. Thanks, Steve.
I appreciate it. I have many friends that wear blue.
I have friends that are detectives in the Madison
Police Department, and I appreciate everyone that
serves, but the bar had nothing to do with this
shooting. Thank you.
MR. QUISLING: I have no further
questions.
MR. REUTER: Mr. Manthe?
MR. MEYER: Thank you for listening.
Any questions? Go right ahead.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

MR. MANTHE:
Mr. Meyer, what's your affiliation with Shakers?
MR. REUTER: We're not hearing you,
Mr. Meyer. Can you repeat that?
MR. QUISLING: Steve.
I didn't hear your question.
What's your affiliation with Shakers?

Oh, sorry. Yes?
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Mr. Meyer, what's your affiliation with Shakers?
I own it, a hundred percent of the shares.
How often are you at the bar?
I own Shakers Saloon. I own a hundred percent of the

shares.

How often are you at the bar?

Well, other than my injury, I try to be there every
week.

Were you there on —--

Other than my injury, I wasn't there at all.

Were you there on the night of October 9th and into
the morning of October 10th?

I was not. I was in the hospital.

As owner of the bar, do you have any sort of
managerial responsibilities?

Yes, teach my staff.

And do you stay up to date on the public health
orders?

We do.

So you were aware of the Dane County public health
order that was in place?

We're aware of the Dane County public 25 percent
occupancy rating that we were given, yep, by the --
we not only got that from the Urban League, but we

also got that -- we got that from the governor.
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Were you —-- excuse me. Were you aware that on
October 8th that Dane County had prohibited taverns
from any occupancy?
We had -- we had governor's orders that we could have
25 percent occupancy. I wasn't --
But you weren't aware of the Dane County order?
I don't know if I read it or received it.
And just a --
I was aware that other bars -- that the bars in
Stoughton and other bars in Dane County are at
25 percent.
But you were not aware --
Tailgaters was at 50 percent.
-— 0of the Dane County order prohibiting taverns from
being open?
I didn't hear what you said.
MR. QUISLING: Can you repeat that

question?
Mr. Meyer, on October 9th and 10th you were not aware
that Dane County had prohibited bars from being open
and having any occupants?
No, I wasn't aware of that. The rule and the orders
have been changing, so --
Thank you, Mr. Meyer. So then on October 9th and

10th, you had people in the bar?
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We did. There was a birthday party.
And it sounded like you were attempting to keep it at
around 75 people?
No, we did keep it at 70 people -- 69 people that
came in the door, and then I had six people working.
So you're saying that there were at least -- or at
most, 69 people in the tavern?
I'm saying that there was 69 occupants and then with
my six staff members, it totaled 75.
MR. MANTHE: I have no further
questions.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
MR. REUTER: Any redirect,
Mr. Quisling?
MR. QUISLING: No.
MR. REUTER: Any questions from --
MR. QUISLING: I have no further
witnesses either.
MR. REUTER: Any questions from
committee members?
MR. DOOM: This is Alderman Doom. I
have one question.
MR. REUTER: Go ahead.
MR. DOOM: The question I'm asking is

if they took temperatures at the door of
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everybody that came into the bar, what were they
using to take the temperatures with?

MR. MEYER: A temperature thing.

MR. QUISLING: They were using a
thermometer.

MR. DOOM: And if they were using a
thermometer, were they disinfecting it between
each?

MR. QUISLING: No, no, you're
misunderstanding. It's a temperature gauge
thermometer, so you shoot it at somebody's
forehead. You've seen them in the airports --

MR. DOOM: Okay, yes.

MR. QUISLING: -- and hospitals.

MR. DOOM: I'm aware of what they look
like, yes. My question was were they
disinfecting that particular thing between each,
each time they used it?

MR. QUISLING: There was no physical
contact in order to take the temperature, so
there was no need.

MR. DOOM: Okay. I have no further
questions.

MR. REUTER: Is the answer no then, it

was not disinfected?
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MR. QUISLING: No, it was not
disinfected because there was no need to
disinfect it. It never came in contact with --
with a person.

MR. REUTER: I just wanted to make
sure the answer was clear on the record. Does
anybody else have questions?

MS. LIGOCKI: Yes, I do.

MR. REUTER: Go ahead.

MS. LIGOCKI: Mr. Meyer, I am
wondering how you -- there have been a number of
emergency orders. I work in healthcare.
There's lots of changes.

MR. MEYER: Yes.

MS. LIGOCKI: But many of us work to
stay on top and understand what is keeping
people safe. I'd like to know -- I'd like to
know how you communicated information to your
staff about what the orders and the standards
for your establishment were and besides taking
temperatures how they -- how they were informed
and how you thought they were carrying that out.

MR. MEYER: So basically --

MS. LIGOCKI: What standards did you

set?
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MR. MEYER: Thank you for that
question because we aim to be a little bit above
and differentiate ourselves with other
establishments. We make sure --

MS. LIGOCKI: My question is how. My
question is how you informed your staff,
please.

MR. MEYER: So I informed Bradley
Dillman, my manager in charge of the bar -- I
wasn't there, I was in the hospital -- that we
make sure that people maintain -- that they wear
a mask to get into the bar and that we would
check temperatures and that we would -- and then
we had hand sanitizer solution, and at the bar
we had it. We would wipe down people's seats
after they left.

MS. LIGOCKI: Respectfully, Mr. Meyer,
I'm going to interrupt you, and I'm asking you
not what measures you took, but how did you
inform your staff about the standards? And do
you think you kept them? That is really my
question.

MR. MEYER: I think we kept them, yes,
because all the rigorous -- all the rigorous

systems that I made sure that Brad went through
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with keeping the standards up at the bar, from
making sure everything was cleansed. How did I
portray, are you asking?

MS. LIGOCKI: How did you communicate
to your staff the standards to keep the bar
safe?

MR. MEYER: Yeah, verbally, verbally,
verbally talked on the phone about how we were
going to deal with making sure the public is
safe and that people that are coming to the bar
are safe and not spreading this, this
sickness.

MS. LIGOCKI: Thank you, Mr. Meyer.

MR. MEYER: You're welcome. Thank
you, ma'am.

MAYOR SWADLEY: I have a question.

My question is, Mr. Meyer, are you aware if
there were any complaints filed by anybody in
the City of Stoughton regarding events at your
establishment?

MR. MEYER: That there's been
complaints? None, none to my knowledge, none to
my knowledge, nobody, nobody. No police officer
informed me. No health official has called me.

I don't -- I'm not aware that there's any at
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all.

MR. REUTER: Any other gquestions from
the Committee?

MR. DOOM: I have one more quick
question. Why weren't people working in the bar
wearing their masks that evening?

MR. REUTER: Mr. Meyer, did you hear
the question?

MR. MEYER: Oh, I'm sorry. I didn't
hear the question. I'm sorry.

MR. REUTER: The question was why the
employees of the bar were not wearing their
masks on October 9th and 10th.

MR. MEYER: Well, I made sure that
they had them, and I'm sure Brad made sure they
had them, whether they were wearing them on
their chin, wearing them partially on their
face. I know there was a picture that I saw
where it showed that they hadn't had it on at
that particular time, but they had them on that
night. Everyone in the bar is supposed to have

been wearing their face masks and such, so that

incident -- but I know that they had them, and I
know that they were -- that they were wearing
them.
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MR. REUTER: Anybody else? No more
questions?

MR. MEYER: We make sure all chairs
are six feet apart. We make sure that it's
cleanliness on the bar, that Brad knows to keep
everything clean, wipe everything down with
disinfectant.

MR. REUTER: Okay. Mr. Quisling, I
think you said you don't have any other
witnesses?

MR. QUISLING: I don't have any other
witnesses.

MR. REUTER: All right. Then we'll
close the evidence of the hearing. And,

Mr. Manthe, do you want to make a closing
argument?

MR. MANTHE: Yes. Thank you.
Shakers squandered the second chance provided by
the City of Stoughton. As everyone knows, its
license was suspended after Mr. Kittleson, the
former owner and registered agent, was arrested
with roughly two and a half to three ounces of
cocaine in his possession while at Shakers.
Shakers received a stiff penalty, over 40 days

of license suspension, yet they were able to
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open back up in June of this year.

However, recent events clearly
demonstrate that Shakers learned nothing from
the punishment. In the same night there were
two events that endangered the public, a
COVID-19 superspreader event and a shooting.

Officers did a bar check at midnight
because they received information that Shakers
was violating emergency health orders. When
officers arrived, Shakers originally -- or
somebody denied them entry, which appears to be
a pattern.

When the officers were allowed to
enter, they witnessed around 100 people inside.
No social distancing occurred. Very few people
were wearing masks. As the exhibit showed,
staff were not wearing masks. Shakers should
not have even been operating under the County
health orders at that time. Even under State
orders, they were either right at the limit or
possibly one over their occupancy limit.

However, we know of at least one person who
tested positive for COVID-19 while at that
event, and he had been there for at least an

hour, potentially longer. Everyone knows the
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state of the pandemic in this state and in this
country. It's all over the news that Wisconsin
is one of the highest infection rate states in
the country.

However, not only did Shakers hold a
superspreader event, but Shakers' manager
forcibly removed the registered agent and locked
her out of the building after the agent raised
an objection to the opening. So not only is it
patently irresponsible and reckless to hold
these events, but it raises a significant
question of who's actually in charge of Shakers.
Is Ms. Huffman just the paper agent and it's
really somebody else that's operating the
facility? I guess at this point we don't really
know.

And during the superspreader event a
shooting occurred. At approximately 2 a.m. a
shootout began in the Shakers parking lot
resulting in 15 shots fired, approximately, and
one person being shot at least six times.
Shakers is located in a building with a motel
and surrounded by residential buildings, so not
only did Shakers' negligence put two people at

risk that were involved in the shooting, but the
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surrounding community as well.

We've heard tonight Shakers argue
that, well, this shooting happened outside of
the bar, so it's not our responsibility. That
argument holds no weight. Wisconsin courts have
held that activity of bar patrons after leaving
the bar is entirely relevant to determine
whether the bar is indecent or improper.

There are two cases directly on point
here. I will cite them, and maybe this is just
for Attorney Reuter's benefit, but it's
State ex rel. Ruffalo versus Common Council of
City of Kenosha, and that's 38 Wisconsin 2d 518,
where they found that disturbances in the street
were relevant to determining whether a bar was
disorderly or indecent.

And then there's Smith versus the City
of Milwaukee, and that's citation 2014 Wisconsin
Appellate 95. And in that court case it
explicitly stated that the actions of patrons
after leaving the bar can be considered when
making the determination of whether or not an
establishment is indecent, improper, riotous or
otherwise disorderly.

Not only that, but we have a closing
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hours violation, refusal to admit a police
officer on premises and noise complaints from
neighborhood residents. Then we have the
Kittleson incident from last December, as this
committee is familiar with. The former owner
and registered agent was arrested with large
quantities of cocaine while on Shakers licensed
premises, and they received a suspension for
that.

I guess the facts in these events are
not really in dispute here. 1It's really up to
the Committee to determine whether or not these
facts amount to Shakers being a disorderly,
riotous, indecent or improper house. Obviously,
that's a very broad definition, but clearly,
Shakers' conduct satisfies that. Here we have
very serious conduct that cannot be tolerated,
the cocaine on premises, a shooting and a
superspreader event.

Allowing Shakers to keep its license
sends the wrong message to the community and
other licensed establishments. If this does not
warrant revocation after Shakers already
received a suspension, then there's really no

incentive for any establishment to follow the
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rules. I think, clearly, a shooting shows that
that bar is riotous or disorderly. A
superspreader event shows an indecent or
improper house. Any one of those on their own
would be enough. The owner possessing cocaine
with intent to deliver was obviously enough to
warrant a suspension, and then you have the
violating closing hours and prohibiting police
entry.

Again, in sum, the totality of events
can lead to no other outcome than revocation.
Context is also important to when these events
occurred. Personally, if I'm operating a bar
and my license was suspended, following that I
would be on my best behavior, making sure that
I'm following all the local rules and health
orders, especially in the midst of a global
pandemic. That was not the case with Shakers.

Shakers obviously doesn't care about the
rules or thinks the rules don't apply. It
reflects very poorly on a company if it gets in
trouble once and then continues to have
problems. Shakers was given a second chance to
show that they could be a responsible business

worthy of the privilege of a liquor license.
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Instead, they've endangered the community, both
by holding a COVID-19 superspreader event, that
we know of at least one, which from the
testimony it appears that multiple events were
being held at Shakers, and they're obviously not
able to maintain an orderly crowd.

Accordingly, we request that you
find Shakers in violation of Stoughton
Ordinance 14-31, Subsection 1, Subsection B and
Wisconsin Statute 125.12(2) (ag) (2), by
maintaining a riotous, indecent or otherwise
disorderly house, and we ask that the City
revoke the license. Thank you.

MR. REUTER: Thank you, Mr. Manthe.
Mr. Quisling, do you have a closing argument?

MR. QUISLING: Okay. So the attorney
there has pointed out that there are some cases
out there that a bar can be held responsible for
its patrons. I don't know those cases, and I
don't know if that's -- you know, what the
circumstances of those cases were.

Shakers Saloon did not condone or
invite someone to shoot another patron or
another person. It did not happen in the bar,

and to state that the bar is responsible for
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every person that enters or exits the bar and
that because a bar is having a birthday party,
which is basically my understanding of the
premise of a bar, as a place to go and consume
alcohol and have a good time, to say that we are
responsible for the actions upon the exit of
that bar is a far difficult task for us to
maintain control of people outside of the bar.

It's a large task to maintain control over
those people inside the bar. We have taken the
proper precautions for maintaining that by
wanding and providing the security inside the
bar. If the -- if the City and the law is
asking us to maintain civil order outside of the
bar, then what is the police for?

As far as our track record and the
history, yes, we got off to a rocky start and
had problems in the beginning. We eliminated
those problems, and we have had a hiccup here
and there. I know of plenty of other bars in
Dane County that have had far worse and
maintained their liquor license, and all we're
asking is for a continued opportunity.

The COVID-19 pandemic has hit the bar

and restaurant industry very, very hard, and
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keeping the business alive is a difficult task
in these times. To say that we're having a
superspreader or endangering the public but not
allowing us to perform any sort of business, it
is a death sentence for the business itself.

We have taken the precautions that we
can and tried to execute those to the best of
our ability. We'wve provided masks and taken
temperatures of people as they enter. We are
not trying to cause a public endangerment in
either allowing a shooting, which we did not, or
trying to encourage or create an environment
that spreads COVID-19.

I feel that this incident is being
pinned on Shakers Saloon and not on the
perpetrators of the incident, and I feel that
our liquor license does not need to be revoked
as a result of the shooting incident. I thank
you for your time and your patience with my
inexperience and lack of knowledge in this
process. Thanks.

MR. REUTER: Thank you, Mr. Quisling.
Any rebuttal, Mr. Manthe?

MR. MANTHE: No.

MR. REUTER: Okay. We will then call
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the hearing closed, and I'll return the gavel
back to the Committee chair.

CHATRMAN JENSON: Thank you, Attorney
Reuter. So we would move on then to Item No. 3,
which is closed session. So at this point
anyone who is not on the Committee, so but that
would include Attorney Reuter and the Clerk. I
guess, Holly, you would be on this as well.
Everybody else I would ask --

MS. LICHT: We need a motion.

CHATIRMAN JENSON: Everybody else I
would ask to close their computers.

MR. QUISLING: And how will we know
when you've finished your closed session?

CHAIRMAN JENSON: That's a good
question, because I'm not exactly sure how we're
going to be able to do this.

MR. REUTER: Well, my suggestion would
be give us email addresses, and we can shoot you
an email when the Committee comes out of closed
session, and then you can connect back in. I
think that will work, won't it, Holly, from a
technical standpoint?

MS. LICHT: Yes, that will work, or I

could give someone a call.
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CHATRMAN JENSON: Yeah. And I think
if we take five minutes for them to send emails,
and then we will go into closed session.

MR. QUISLING: And where do you want
us to send the emails?

CHAIRMAN JENSON: You can send —--
there should be a -- up in the upper right-hand
corner, there should be an area there for --

MR. QUISLING: I'm not on -——- I'm only
on the phone call. I'm not on the computer.

CHATIRMAN JENSON: Oh, okay, okay.
Well, then you can --

MS. LICHT: I —--

CHAIRMAN JENSON: I'm sorry, Holly.

Go ahead.

MR. QUISLING: I can give you my
email. I can give you my email right now.

MS. LICHT: Okay, that works.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Go ahead. Give it
to Holly.

MR. QUISLING: Jjosh@ggsand.com.

MS. LICHT: Okay. Then I will email
you as soon as the Committee is out of closed
session.

MR. QUISLING: Okay. And then if you
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could just give me five minutes to put everybody
else back on after that, I think that would be
the fastest way to do this.

MR. REUTER: Mr. Chairman, the
Committee should actually move to go into closed
session before kicking people off the meeting.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Okay. And so that's
what we'll do then is closed session. We'll
enter into closed session pursuant to Wisconsin
State Statute 19.85(1) (a) for deliberations
concerning a case which was the subject of a
quasi-judicial hearing before the Public Safety
Committee. The Public Safety Committee will
conduct deliberations concerning the Matter of
the Consideration of Revocation of the Class B
Reserve Combination License held by Shakers
Saloon, LLC. And that's my motion to go into
closed session. Is there a second?

MR. DOOM: I'll second that motion.

MS. LIGOCKI: Second.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Okay. We have a
second. All in favor?
(A1l members vote in the affirmative)

CHATIRMAN JENSON: Okay. Any opposed?

(No response)
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CHAIRMAN JENSON: Hearing none, we are
in closed session.

MS. LICHT: So those of who remain on
the line that are not part of the Committee need
to exit the meeting.

(Committee deliberating in closed session)

CHAIRMAN JENSON: The chairmanship
will be back with me now. This is Alder
Jenson.

MR. QUISLING: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: We'll give them a
few more minutes.

MR. QUISLING: Are you guys able to
hear me?

CHATIRMAN JENSON: Yes.

MR. QUISLING: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Well, Josh, it
doesn't look like anybody else is getting back
on here, so what I'm going to do is --

MR. QUISLING: Okay.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: -- I'm just going to
go ahead, and you can relay the information to
your people.

MR. QUISLING: Sounds fine.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Yep. So Item No. 4
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is to reconvene in open session to issue a
determination or take action, other action in
regard to the Class B Reserve Combination
License held by Shakers Saloon, LLC. And it's
my duty to tell you that we made an unanimous
decision that our recommendation to Council will
be to revoke the license.

The attorney, our attorney, Reuter,
will be creating what's called findings, and
those will be sent to you so that you can review
them. There is a process that we will go
through. Once -- once we have those findings,
the Committee, Public Safety Committee, will
meet again, and we will review those findings
and make a recommendation on those findings.

There will then be a council meeting where
the findings will be presented, and then it has
to be done -- you know, statutorily, it has to
be done twice, at two separate council meetings.
So as it is, as it stands right now, it appears
that it will be presented in our first meeting
in December, was it -- or no, our second meeting
in December, and then the second reading would
be the first meeting in January.

MR. QUISLING: Okay.
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CHATIRMAN JENSON: And your attorney
should have an opportunity to look through the
information, through the findings, and I believe
you will also have an opportunity to object.
Attorney Reuter, is there anything else that
I've missed?

MR. REUTER: No. The only other item
is that the parties, that is, both the
complainant and the licensee, have the
opportunity to submit arguments to the Council.
The procedure for that is something that the
Council can determine. It's either oral
presentation, written presentation or both. But
that's something that the Council can determine
at its next meeting.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: And that would be --

MR. QUISLING: Is that -- is it
possible to -- is it possible to get what you've
just stated in sort of some sort of written form
so that I, you know, can understand everything
that's going to happen-?

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Holly, can you give
him a transcript?

MS. LICHT: I can do that.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Okay.

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC






10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF TAPED PROCEEDINGS 12/3/20

115

MR. QUISLING: You have my email,
correct?

MS. LICHT: I do.

MR. REUTER: You're just looking for
what the process is from here?

MR. QUISLING: Yeah. I mean, that was
a bit of a lot to try and figure out exactly
what's going to happen, so if I could -- you
could send me just that section. I don't need
an entire transcript, I guess, if it makes --
whatever makes it easiest.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Holly can send you
the process step by step.

MR. QUISLING: Yes.

MR. REUTER: If we shoot you an email
that just explains what the process is from
here, that will take care of your request?

MR. QUISLING: Yes, it will.

MR. REUTER: Okay. Holly and I can
coordinate on that and get something out.

MS. LICHT: Sounds good.

MR. QUISLING: Thank you all very much
for your time.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: All right. And

thank you for yours.
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MR. QUISLING: Anything else?

CHAIRMAN JENSON: The only thing we
have left to do is for adjournment.

MR. DOOM: I make the motion to
adjourn.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: I have a motion to
adjourn. Is there a second?

MS. LIGOCKI: Second.

CHATRMAN JENSON: We have a second.
Any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor?
(A1l members vote in the affirmative)

CHATRMAN JENSON: Thank you all.

MR. DOOM: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN JENSON: Yep. We'll see you
at 5:30 on the 16th. Thank you much, and thank
you, Attorney Reuter.

MR. REUTER: You're welcome. It's a
pleasure. I'll be in touch in the next few
days.

CHATRMAN JENSON: Thank you. Good
night all.

(Adjourned)
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CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE
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CITY OF STOUGHTON
POLICE DEPARTMENT,
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—vs-
SHAKERS SALOON, LLC,
Licensee.
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CERTIFICATE

I, SANDRA L. McDONALD, do hereby certify as the
duly-appointed shorthand reporter, I took in shorthand and
transcribed the recording of the proceedings held in the
above-entitled matter held on December 3, 2020, and that
the attached is a true and correct transcription of the
proceedings so taken, to the best of my ability.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my seal of office this 4th day of January,

2021.

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My Commission Expires 10/08/22

MADISON FREELANCE REPORTERS, LLC







STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF STOUGHTON DANE COUNTY

In the Matter of the Consideration
of the Revocation of the Class B
Reserve Combination License Held by

SHAKER’S SALOON, LLC

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION OF
THE STOUGHTON PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

A hearing was held before the City of Stoughton Public Safety Committee on December
3, 2020 on the complaint of Stoughton Police Chief Greg Leck filed in the above-captioned matter
on October 22, 2020. The Complainant appeared by Attorney Richard Manthe, The Licensee was
represented at the hearing by Chatta Huffman, its agent, Bradley Dillman, its manager and Steve
Meyer, the sole member of Shaker’s Saloon, LLC (hereinafter “Shaker’s” or “the Licensee™).
Shaker’s designated Josh Quisling as ifs representative to present evidence and arguments, The
Committee heard testimony from all witnesses proffered by both parties, and received Exhibits 1-
10 into the record.

The Complaint alleges that Shaker’s Saloon, LLC violated §125.12(2)(ag)2 of the
Wisconsin Statutes and identical provisions contained in §§14-31(1)b. of the City of Stoughton
Municipal Code. Those provisions effectively prohibit the licensee from maintaining a “disorderly
or riotous, indecent or improper house.” The Complaint includes allegations of 6 separate
incidents which the Complainant asserts constitute a violation of the “disorderly house” statute.
Briefly summarized, those allegations are:

1. On October 10, 2020, a patron attending a party at Shaker’s was involved in an
argument and was shot 6 times in the Shaker’s parking lot.

2. On December 18, 2019, Shaker’s knowingly allowed its license agent to possess, with
intent to deliver, quantities of controlled substances consisting of cocaine and methamphetamine
on the licensed premises.

3. On February 22, 2020, Shaker’s allowed the consumption of alcohol beverages inside
the bar at approximately 2:40 a.m. which was after the legally required closing time.

4, On October 10, 2020, Shaker’s staff refused entry by police officers for a bar check in
violation of §14-40(g) of the Stoughton Municipal Code.

5. On October 10, 2020, Shaker’s had approximately 100-150 people on the licensed

premises who were generally not following social distancing recommendations and only
approximately 10% of whom were wearing face coverings, in violation of Wisconsin Department
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of Health Services (WDHS) Order No. 3 and Public Health of Madison and Dane County
(PHMDC) Emergency Order No 9.

6. On October 11, 2020, the manager of Shaker’s refused entry to a police officer in
violation of §14-40(g) of the Stoughton Municipal Code.

Five officers of the Stoughton Police Department testified on behalf of the Complainant.
The Licensee presented testimony from Steve Meyer, the sole member of Shaker’s Salcon, LLC.

Exhibits offered and received during the hearing consisted of:

e Exhibit 1: Amusement Device and “Class B” Reserve Liquor & Beer License issued to
Shaker’s on June 25, 2020,

o Exhibit 2: Shaker’s Alcohol Beverage License Application and Agent Appointment dated
May 4, 2020, Auxiliary Questionnaire and General License Application.

¢ Exhibit 3: PHMDC Emergency Order #9 Amendment

¢ Exhibit 4: WDHS Emergency Order #3 dated October 6, 2020,
o Exhibit 5: Security Camera Photo ID3530.

¢ Exhibit 6: Security Camera Photo ID3531,

o Exhibit 7: Security Camera Photo ID3542.

¢ Exhibit 8: Security Camera Photo 1D3528.

o Exhibit 9: Security Camera Photo ID3530.

Exhibit 10: Minutes of April 14, 2020 Stoughton Common Council meeting.

All oral testimony offered by witnesses and all exhibits offered were received by the
Committee without objection by either party.

Based upon the evidence and arguments presented by the parties, the Committee makes the

following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Recommendation for action by the Common
Council:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The City of Stoughton issued Shaker’s a combination Class B liquor license on June 25, 2020
for the 2020-2021 licensing year. That license is currently in effect. (Exhibit 1)
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The licensed premises consist of property located at 111 Chalet Drive, Stoughton, WI 53589.
(Exhibit 1 & 2)

On the evening of October 9 and into the early morning hours of October 10, 2020, Shaker’s
hosted a birthday party on the licensed premises.

A patron attending the party at Shaker’s was shot 6-8 times in the Shaker’s parking lot at
approximately the time the bar was closing. The shooting victim was infected with the
COVIDI19 virus at the time of the party and shooting,

The shooting involved at least two separate firearms, and 14 shell casings were found at the
scene. A stray bullet struck a parked car, and another was lodged in the wall of a neighboring
hotel.

The victim of the shooting was highly intoxicated at the time,

On December 18, 2019 Detective Brandon Hill of the Stoughton Police Department
participated with agents from the DEA in the arrest of Dale Kittleson for previous deliveries
of cocaine in a “controlled buy” involving DEA agents. Officers arrested Kittleson while he
was in the bar area of Shaker’s.

Officers searched Kittleson upon his arrest and the Shaker’s licensed premises shortly
thereafter. Law enforcement discovered approximately one total ounce of cocaine on Mr,
Kittleson’s person, another % to % ounce in another location on the premises,
methamphetamine and a drug ledger in Mr. Kittleson’s truck.

The quantity of drugs and the drug ledger demonstrate that the drugs were possessed by
Kittleson for the purpose of sale and not for personal use,

Shaker’s is a limited liability company and was required to appoint an agent for alcohol
beverage licensing purposes.

At the time of his arrest, Kittleson was the agent of Shaker’s.

On February 22, 2020, Shaker’s allowed four individuals sitting at its bar to consume beer at
approximately 2:40 a.m. which was after the legally required closing time,

10.  On October 10, 2020, two individuals at the enfrance of Shaker’s refused entry by police

1.

officers who were attempting to conduct a bar check.

On October 10, 2020, Shaker’s had at least 69 individuals on the licensed premises who were
generally not following social distancing recommendations and only approximately 10% of
-whom were wearing face coverings.

12. Many of the employees of Shaker’s working on the evening of October 9 and the early morning

of October 10, 2020 were not properly wearing face coverings.
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13. On October 10, 2020, Chatta Huffiman, Shaker’s current agent, was physically removed from
the licensed premises by one of the “owners” of the business.

14. Later that same day, the bar manager, Bradley Dillman, refused to answer the door of the
licensed premises when Stoughton police attempted to make contact with him.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Committee makes the following conclusions of law based on the foregoing factual findings:

1.

Clear and convincing evidence has been presented that on December 18, 2019, Kittleson
possessed controlled substances with intent to deliver those substances in violation of
§961.41, Wis. Stats.

Because Kittleson was Shaker’s agent, Shaker’s is responsible for his actions involving the
licensed premises.

Possession of controlled substances on the licensed premises was a matter related to
Shaker’s business as it is one of the activities the Licensee is obligated to prevent.

Section 14-40(h) of the Stoughton Municipal Code allows employees performing job-
related functions to remain on the licensed premises after closing, but prohibits their
consumption of alcohol beverages during that time.

On February 22, 2020, Shaker’s was required to close its business at 2:30 a.m. per
§125.32(3), Wis. Stats.

Shaker’s violated Section 14-40(h) of the Stoughton Municipal Cde by allowing four
employees to consume beer at the bar of the licensed premises on February 22, 2020 at
approximately 2:40 a.m,

PHMDC Emergency Order #9 was issued on September 1, 2020, took effect on September
2, 2020 and was in effect on October 9-10, 2020.

Section 2(a) of PHMDC Order #9 requires that every individual age five (5) or older wear
a face covering whenever in an enclosed building where people other than the individual’s
own living unit are present.

Section 3 of PHMDC Order #9 also prohibits “mass gatherings” of greater than 10
individuals, excluding employees at any indoor location, and requires physical distancing.
A “mass gathering” is defined by the order as “a planned event with a large number of
individuals in attendance, such as a concert, festival, meeting, training, conference,
performance, show, or sporting event.”
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10. Section 5(d) of PHMDC Order #9 requires all businesses to develop and implement a
written protective measure policy that includes “ensuring individuals are at least six (6)
feet from others whenever possible” and “ensuring employees are provided with and wear
face coverings at all times when required under section 2” of the Order.

11, Section 6(b)(v) of PHMDC Ozrder #9 provides that “customers may enter taverns only for
the purpose of ordering, pick-up, and payment of food or beverage or while in transit.”

12, WDHS Order #3 was issued on October 6, 2020 and took effect on October 8, 2020. Order
#3, by its terms, remained in effect until November 6, 2020,

13. Section 2(a) of WDHS Order #3 limited public gatherings to no more than 25% of the total
occupancy limit for the room or building established by the local municipality.

14. The birthday party and related gatherings at Shaker’s on October 9-10 of 2020 constituted
a public gathering under WDHS Order #3.

15. The totality of the violations of legal requirements at Shaker’s Saloon between October 18,
2019 and October 10, 2020 demonstrate that Shaker’s is maintaining a “disorderly house”
within the meaning of §125.12(2)(ag)2, Wis. Stats. and constitute grounds for revocation
or suspension of Shaker’s alcohol beverage licenses.

DISCUSSION

The Committee determines that the Complainant has met its burden of proof with regard to several
of the incidents alleged in the Complaint, as discussed more fully below. Based on those events,
the Committee recommends that the Common Council accept the Committee’s determination that
Shaker’s has operated a disorderly house, and that its combination “Class B” alcohol beverage
license be REVOKED.,

1. The meaning of “Disorderly House,”

Section 125.12(4)(ag)2 of the Wisconsin Statutes provides for the revocation or suspension
of an alcohol beverage license if the licensed premises are maintained as a “disorderly or riotous,
indecent or improper house.” The term “disorderly house™ has been defined by the Wisconsin
Supreme Court as follows:

A house the inmates of which behave so badly as to become a nuisance to the
neighborhood is esteemed, at common law, a disorderly house, and so of one which
is kept in such a way as to disturb or scandalize the public generally, or the
inhabitants of a particular neighborhood, or the passers-by.

Hawkins v. Lutton, 95 Wis. 492 (1887). The Committee has applied this definition in making its
findings and recommendations,
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A “disorderly house” can be found based on a single incident. In City of Cudahy v. DeLuca,
49 Wis, 2d 90, 181 N.W.2d 374 (1970), the defendants were convicted of keeping or maintaining
a “disorderly house, house of ill fame” for allowing their patrons to show pornographic films and
watch “go go girls” dance nude in their tavern. The Wisconsin Supreme Court held that the single
incident charged was sufficient to support a finding that the defendants maintained a “disorderly
house.”

In a more recent case, a federal district court upheld the validity of §125.12(2)(ag)2 against
a challenge by a licensee that the “disorderly house” provision was unconstitutionally vague.
Hegwood v. City of Equ Claire, 2011 WL 13187125 (W.D. Wis. 2011); affd. Hegwood v. Cify of
Eau Claire, 676 ¥.3d 600, 602 (7th Cir. 2012). In that case, the court held that “disorderly house”
can be defined with reference to Wisconsin’s disorderly conduct statute as “one in or around acts
which occur that are ‘violent, abusive, indecent, profane, boisterous, unreasonably loud or
otherwise disorderly.” Id. at 9. Both the District Court and Court of Appeals found the numerous
bar fights, obstructions of police and overserving involved in that case to fit squarely within the
definition of a “disorderly house.”

These cases demonstrate that, while “disorderly house” cannot be reduced to a definition
requiring only the application of a simple formula, the common theme is that the acts occurring on
around the licensed premises are of sufficient frequency, and have an actual negative effect on the
neighborhood, such that they have become a nuisance,

2. Incidents Establishing a “Disorderly House.”

A. Possession on the Licensed Premises of Controlled Substances with Intent to
Deliver.

The evidence presented at the hearing established that Kittleson was arrested in possession
of approximately 2% - 3 ounces of cocaine. His truck at the time contained a notebook with names,
weights and dollar amounts which Det. Hill testified was of the type used by drug dealers in
tracking orders for illicit drugs. The arrest itself occurred as a result of an early sale of illegal
drugs by Kittleson as part of a “controlled buy” organized by the DEA. Det. Hill testified that 2%
ounces of cocaine is significantly more than what would be possessed by an individual user, and
indicated that the drugs were held for sale. The Committee found Det, Hill’s testimony credible,
as he was involved in the arrest and either directly observed the facts surrounding the arrest, or
received the information from other law enforcement officers as part of their cooperative law
enforcement efforts. No evidence was offered that called into question the accuracy of Det. Hill’s
testimony, and the Committee finds the incident occurred as alleged.

The drug possession incident involving Sharker’s license agent was the subject of a prior
hearing held by the Committee on February 13 and 26, 2020. Based on the evidence presented at
that hearing, the Committee found that grounds for disciplinary action existed under
§125.12(2)(ag)6, Wis. Stats., which applies where “The person (licensee) knowingly allows
another person, who is on the premises for which the license under this chapter is issued, to possess,
with the intent to manufacture, distribute or deliver, or to manufacture, distribute or deliver a
controlled substance or controlled substance analog,” The Committee recommended revocation
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of Shaker’s license at that time. The Common Council, however, opted to give Shaker’s a second
chance, imposing a 48-day suspension instead.

The Committee at that time also determined that the single drug-related incident on the
premises, despite its seriousness, was not enough by ifself to classify Shaker’s as a “disorderly
house” under §12512(2)(ag)2, Wis, Stats. The Committee nevertheless considers it relevant to the
analysis of the “disorderly house™ standard as applied to the overall operation of the licensed
premises.

B. The October 10, 2020 Shooting Incident.

Shaker’s does not dispute that the shooting incident in its parking lot occurred. Nor did it
present any evidence to refute the testimony that the shooting victim was attending the party hosted
at Shaker’s for at least 2-3 hours. The undisputed testimony also established that the victim was
extremely intoxicated when he was later shot outside the bar.

Shaker’s argued at the hearing that it cannot be responsible for what happens outside its
building. The Complainant disagreed, arguing that activities outside of a bar are relevant to
whether a “disorderly house” is being maintained.

In State ex rel. Ruffalo v. Common Council of City of Kenosha, 38 Wis. 2d 518, 157N.W.2d
568 (1968), a licensee challenged the nonrenewal of his liquor license which was based in part on
disturbances that occurred in the street outside the bar. The Wisconsin Supreme Court held that
the common council was within its discretion in considering those incidents in acting on the
renewal application.!

In the more recent case of Smith v. City of Milwaukee, 2014 WI APP 95, 356 Wis, 2d 779,
854 N.W.2d 857, the Wisconsin Court of Appeals upheld the city’s refusal to renew a liquor license
based on a number of incidents, including a shooting of a patron in the parking lot after leaving
the bar, The court noted that, under the Ruffalo decision, the behavior of patrons after they leave
a tavern can be considered in municipal licensing decisions.

The testimony at the hearing was that the shooting victim was inside Shakers for 2-3 hours
or more, and was extremely intoxicated when he left. While Shaker’s is not solely responsible for
the incident, the Committee is satisfied that it played a role in creating the circumstances leading
to the event.

C. Refusal of Entry to Police Officers.
The Complainant alleged two instances where Shaker’s is said to have refused entry to a

police officer, in violation of Section 14.40(g) of the Stoughton municipal code. Officer
Covarrubias testified that in the early morning of October 10, 2020, he attempted a “bar check™ at

! The statutes have been amended since Ruffalo was decided to afford licensees the same due process rights on renewal
as in revocation proceedings. Ruffalo also involved a non-renewal which, at the time, was treated like an initial
application, rather than a revocation, Nevertheless, the recognition by the Supreme Court that a municipality may
consider activities outside the physical limits of the licensed premises remains persuasive,
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Shaker’s and was told he could not enter the premises. While he thought one of them was a
“bouncer,” Shaker’s argued (but did not present evidence) that they were merely patrons.

Shaker’s presented testimony that it had a security person at the door maintaining a head count, as
it believed it was legally limited to 69 patrons in the bar at any time. The testimony of several
witnesses, along with security footage cleatly established that Shaker’s was very busy that night.
The Committee finds it incredible that two patrons would have both the motivation and the
opportunity to deny enfry to a police officer at the door of the bar.

Shortly after the officer was denied entry, Mr. Dillman, Shaker’s manager, came to the
door and allowed the officers in. Nevertheless, it appears from the evidence that Shaker’s security
employees were not adequately trained or experienced to understand that police officers have a
right to inspect licensed establishments.

The second incident occurred later in the day on October 10, 2020 when Sgt. Frisch went
to the bar to assist Shaker’s license agent in her attempt to retrieve the liquor license from the
premises. Sgt. Frisch knocked loudly on the locked doot, but Mr, Dillman, who was inside, refused
to answer the door. It appears from the evidence that Shaker’s was not open at the time. The
Committee does not interpret the City Ordinance to apply during times when the licensed premises
are not open for business, and therefore does not find a violation of the ordinance. See, Float-Rite
Park, Inc. v. Village of Somerset, 2001 WI APP 113, 224 Wis. 2d 34, 629 N.W.2d 818. The
Comumittee also does not find this incident to be indicative of a disorderly house.

D. YViolations of Public Health Orders.

It is undisputed that Shaker’s hosted a party on October 10, 2020. Mr. Steve Meyer,
Shaker’s sole member, testified that 69 people were allowed in the bar at any one time, and ail
others were required to remain in the parking lot. Officer Covarrubias estimated that about 100
people were inside the bar, only about 10% of whom were wearing face coverings.

Mr. Meyer provided the only testimony on behalf of Shaker’s. He testified that Shaker’s
employed security, provided its employees with masks, and that all employees wore masks while
working. He also said they make sure all patrons have masks. He further testified that he
monitored public health orders and he made sure that Mr. Dillman kept up with “rigorous
standards™ for patron health Mr. Meyer imposed.

The Committee did not find Mr, Meyer’s testimony regarding the events of October 10,
2020 to be credible for two reasons. First, Mr. Meyer admitted that he was not present at Shaker’s
at all on October 9 or 10. Whatever his testimony about Shaker’s general policies or operations,
he could not possibly know what was done on October 10, 2020. Secondly, the evidence clearly
contradicted Mr. Meyer’s statements. Testimony was presented that only about 10% of the people
in the bar were wearing masks. Exhibits 5-9 visually depict employees and customers not wearing
masks or maintaining physical distancing, The absence of mask violated §2(a) of the Dane County
Health Order, which required face coverings on all patrons and employees. [See, Exhibit 3].
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The October 10 event also violated the PHMDC order because it was an indoor “mass
gathering™ with more than 10 attendees. Shaker’s also failed to adopt policies sufficient to assure
that patrons and employees wore masks and maintained 6 feet of physical separation as required
by §5(d) of Order #9. Finally, by its own admission, Shaker’s violated §6(b)(v) of Order #9, which
provides that “customers may enter taverns only for the purpose of ordering, pick-up, and payment
of food or beverage or while in transit.” As the Complainant correctly noted, this provision
prohibited all customers from drinking in the licensed establishment on October 10, 2020.

E. After Hours Service.

Uncontroverted evidence at the hearing established that on February 22, 2020, Mr.
Dillman, Shaker’s manager, allowed 4 individuals to drink beer at the bat at 2:40 a.m. Section
125.32(3), Wis. Stats. prohibited Shaker’s from being open after 2:30 a.m. Section 14-40(h) of the
Stoughton Municipal Code allows employees performing job-related functions to remain on the
licensed premises after closing, but prohibits their consumption of alcohol beverages during that
time. Therefore, it was unlawful for anyone to be drinking beer at Shaker’s at the time of this
incident.

RECOMMENDATION

In determining the appropriate sanction for the violation proven, the Commiitee is
primarily concerned with the protection of the public, Earlier this year, Shaker’s was facing a
recommendation from this Committee for revocation of its license. All parties involved
recognized that it was a severe sanction, but the Committee was concerned that Shaker’s had not
shown the motivation to puf in the effort necessary to learn and comply with legal requirements
applicable to tavern operations. The Common Council imposed a 48-day license suspension
instead.

It is abundantly clear to the Committee that Shaker’s fails to comprehend its obligation to
comply with the law. The most obvious example is the fact that it has continued operating more
than a month? after the PHMDC Order #9 took effect, prohibiting any customers indoors. On
October 10 none of the incidents that occurred should have happened, because Shaker’s should
not have been open for regular business.

Instead, an indoor event lasting several hours involving anywhere from 69-100 people,
most of whom were not wearing face coverings or maintaining physical distancing, took place at
Shakers. That event created a significant opportunity for the transmission of COVID19., The
likelihood of a “superspreader” event became more acute when the shooting victim tested positive
for the virus after spending hours inside with the crowd.

While not alleged as separate violations in the Complaint, the hearing testimony disclosed
other conduct which convinces the Committee that Shaker’s is unlikely to right its ship. While
Shaker’s claims to support law enforcement and public safety, its manager falsely told Sgt. Frisch
who was investigating the shooting that Shaker’s security cameras were closed circuit and did not

* PHMDC Order #9 went into effect on September 2, 2020. The evidence presented at the hearing did not establish
whether Shaker’s has continned operating after October 10,
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have recording capabilities. Yef forensic technicians were able to recover recordings on the system
after it was seized in a search watrant.

In addition, while Chatta Huffman is now the license agent for Shaker’s, and has the
responsibility for all activities the licensed premise, she appears to be little more than a figurehead.
She was upset upon learning of the shooting because she had opposed the tavern being open given
her COVID concerns.> On Qctober 10, when she attempted to retrieve the liquor license from
Shaker’s, she was physically removed from the licensed premises by Shaker’s employees. She
appears {o have been given the responsibility of an agent, but none of the authority necessary to
exercise that responsibility.

Section 125.04(6)(a)2, Wis. Stats. provides that an alcohol beverage license may not be
issued to a limited liability company unless:

The entity vests in the agent, by properly authorized and executed written
delegation, full authority and control of the premises described in the license or
permit of the entity, and of the conduct of all business on the premises relative to
alcohol beverages, that the licensee or permittee could have and exercise if it were
a natural person,

Implicit in that requirement is that the entity does not then physically prevent the agent from
exercising any of those duties. Shaker’s said what it had to say to get a license, then effectively
ignored its obligations. In short, Shaker’s appears either unable or unwilling to operate in
accordance with applicable laws, ordinances and community standards.

Finally, Det. Adams testified that the individual whose birthday was being celebrated was
being served 32 “shots.” That example, coupled with the testimony that the shooting victim was
very intoxicated raises serious concerns about overserving of patrons, Overserving may well have
led to the shooting on October 10, and will likely lead to further disturbances if allowed to
continue.

Having determined that Shaker’s has been maintaining a disorderly house, the Committee’s
options for recommended actions are limited to suspension or revocation. §125.12(2)(b)2, Wis.
Stats. In light of the concerns expressed above, the Committee recommends that the combination
Class B alcohol beverage license of Shaker’s Saloon, LL.C be REVOKED.

Respectfully submitted this 16™ day of December, 2020.

CITY OF STOUGHTON
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

By:

Greg Jensen/Chairperson

* 1t was not clear from the evidence presented whether Ms, Huffiman simply considered the gathering a bad idea, or
whether she and others involved were aware it was legally prohibited by PHMDC Order #9,
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Exhibit 1

City of Stoughton
County of Dane
State of Wisconsin

Licenses

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, State of Wisconsin, has, upon application duly made,
granted and authorized the issance of the following Licenses:

r Issued to:

SHAKERS SALOON, LLC 111 CHALET DRIVE
STOUGHTON, WI 53589

Chatta Huffman, Agent

r Trade Name:
Shakers Saloon 111 Chalet Drive
STOUGHTON, WI 53589
License Type License No Effective Expires Fee
Amusement Devices AM DEV 11 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 280.00
Qty: 8
Cabaret CABARET 3 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 100.00
Class B Reserve Liquor & Class "B" Beer B RES COMB 2 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 600.00
Publication fee: 20.00

4,862 SQ FT DOWNSTAIRS BAR AND BANQUET ROOM INSIDE BUILDING, STORED IN
LOCKED CLOSETS

Jukebox JUKEBOX 10 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 10.00
Pool Table - Coin Operated POOLTABLE 7 7/01/2020 6/30/2021 70.00

WHEREAS, this license is subject to all resolutions, ordinances, regulations, and
provisions as may be at any time imposed by the local governing body or any laws of
the State of Wisconsin, and is subject to revocation as provided by law.

Given under my hand and the Great Seal of the City of Stoughton,
County of Dane, this 25th day of June, 2020.

Total fee: %@y P

$1,080.00 :
Holly Licht

This document must be framed and posted on the premises.






,324 Secretary/Member

\/ Treasurer/Member

Exhibit 2

Renewal Alcohol Beverage License Application Applicant's WI Seller's Pormil No_|FEIN Number:
Submit to municipal clerk. Read instructions on reverse side. a1 DIE0R A0 | BAddians0
. i o ) LICENSE REQUESTED p
For the license period beginning: 07 01 2020 ending: 06 30 2021 TYPE FEE
L_—]'(I'HM DD YYYY) (MM DD YYYY) D Class A beer $
Town of
Class B b il
TO THE GOVERNING BODY of the: [] Village of} STOUGHTON s > 100 9
V] Gity of {1 Class A liquor $
County of DANE Aldermanic Dist. No. (if required by ordinance)  |[[] Class A liquor (cider only) |$ N/A acé@
H/} ClassBiquor— $ a6y
CHECK ONE [ Individual  [] Partnership  [/] Limited Liability Company p{[AReserve Class Bliquor__[$ 45 & kI
[] Corporation/Nonprofit Organization [] Class B (wine only) winery |$
Complete A or B. All must complete C. Publication fee $ 20 —>pcf
- . TOTAL FEE $
A. Individual or Partnership:
Full Name(s) (Last, First and Middle Name) Home Address Post Office & Zip Code

B. Full Name of Corporation/Nonprofit Organization/Limited Liability Company p SHAKERS SALOON, LLC
Address of Corporation/Limited Liability Company (if different from licensed premises) p
All Officer(s) Director(s) and Agent of Corporation and Members/Managers and Agent of Limited Liability Company:
Title Name (Inc. Middle Name) Home Address Post Office & Zip Code
President/Member STEVE MEYER 6519 OAKWOOD PLACE, MIDDLETON, WI 53562
Director/Manager  _Joshua Quisling Far View Rd, Mazomanie, WI 53560

Agent p CHATTA HUFFMAN 107 LIBERTY ST, BEAVER DAM, WI 53916
Directors/Managers BRADLEY DITLLMAN 5309 PORTSMOUTH WAY, MADISON, WI 53714
C.1. Trade Name p SHAKERS SALOON Business Phone Number
2. Address of Premises p 111 CHALET DR, STOUGHTON, WI Post Office & Zip Code p 53589

3. Does the applicant understand that they must purchase alcohol beverages only from Wisconsin wholesalers, breweries and brewpubs? ] Yes [] No

4. Premises description: Describe building or buildings where alcohol beverages are to be sold and stored. The applicant must
include all rooms including living quarters, if used, for the sales, service, consu guon. and/or storage of alcohol beverages and records.
(Alcohol beverages may be sold and stored only on the premises described.) 62 SF BAR, STORED IN LOCKED CLOSET

5. Legal description (omit if street address is given above):

6. a. Since filing of the last application, has the named licensee, any member of a partnership licensee, or any member, officer,
director, manager or agent for either a limited liability company licensee, corporation licensee, or nonprofit organization
licensee been convicted of any offenses (excluding traffic offenses not related to alcohol) for violation of any federal
laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of other states, or ordinances of any county or municipality? If yes, complete reverseside [ ] Yes [/] No

b. Are charges for any offenses presently pending (excluding traffic offenses not related to alcohol) against the named

licensee or any other persons affiliated with this license? If yes, explain fully on reverseside ........................ [dYes K1No
7. Except for questions 6a and 6b, have there been any changes in the answers to the questions as submitted by you on your
last application for this license? If yes, explain. CHANGED REGISTERED AGENTS V1 Yes [ No

8. Was the profit or loss from the sale of alcohol beverages for the previous year reported on the Wisconsin Income or
Franchise Tax return of the licensee? If not, explain. IT WILL BE REPORTED ON OWNERS SCHDL-C [Jves ] No

9. Does the applicant understand they must hold a Wisconsin Seller’'s Permit?

[Phone (B08) 2B86-2776] . . . .. ...ttt ittt e ettt et e e e e e e e e e [v] Yes [ No
10. Does the applicant understand that alcohol beverage invoices must be kept at the licensed premises for 2 years from the

date of invoice and made available for inspection by law enforcement? .. ... ... .. .. i i Yes [ No
11. Is the applicant indebted to any wholesaler beyond 15 days for beer or 30 days forliquor? . ... ........................ [JYes [/ No

READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Under penalty provided by law, the undersigned states that each of the above questions has been truthfully
answered to the best of the knowledge of the signer. The signer agrees that hefshe is the person named in the foregoing application; that the applicant
has read and made a complete answer to each question, and that the answers in each instance are true and correct. The undersigned further understands
that any license issued contrary to Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes shall be void, and under penalty of state law, the applicant may be prosecuted

for submitting false statements and affidavits in connection with this application. Any person who knowij ‘ovides materially false information on this
application may be required to forfeit not more than $1,000.

Bzl (O AL

—
(O of Corporation / Member / Manager of Limited Liability Gbmpany / Partner / Individual)

TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK

Date received and filed with municipal derk Date reported to council/board Date license granted

5-U~gO ' | (b~ - N G-~ R
License number issued Date license issued mr,e of ] Dspy_!x_g!e
©Res enlng A G-\ -2 vﬂ w

AT-115 (R 7-18) Wisconsin Department of Revenue
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SCHEDULE FOR APPOINTMENT OF AGENT BY CORPORATION/NONPROFIT
ORGANIZATION OR LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Submit to municipal clerk.

All corporations/organizations or limited liability companies applying for a license to sell fermented malt beverages and/or intoxicating
liquor must appoint an agent. The following questions must be answered by the agent. The appointment must be signed by the officer(s)
of the corporation/organization or members/managers of a limited liability company and the recommendation made by the proper
local official.

[ ] Town

To the governing body of:  [_] Village of STOUGHTON County of DANE
i1 city

The undersigned duly authorized officer(s)/members/managers of SHAKERS SALOON, LLC
(registered name of corporation/organization or limited liability company)

a corporationforganization or limited liability company making application for an alcohol beverage license for a premises known as
SHAKERS SALOON

(trade name)

appoints CHATTA HUFFMAN

(name of appointed agent)

107 LIBERTY ST, BEAVER DAM, WI 53916
(home address of appointed agent)

to act for the corporation/organization/limited liability company with full authority and control of the premises and of all business relative
to alcohol beverages conducted therein. Is applicant agent presently acting in that capacity or requesting approval for any corporation/
organization/limited liability company having or applying for a beer and/or liquor license for any other location in Wisconsin?

[] Yes ] No If so, indicate the corporate name(s)/limited liability company(ies) and municipality(ies).

Is applicant agent subject to completion of the responsible beverage server training course? /] Yes []No
How long immediately prior to making this application has the applicant agent resided continuously in Wisconsin? 33

Place of residence lastyear 107 LIBERTY ST, BEAVER DAM, WI 53916

or: CHATTA HUFFMAN

F
(name of corporation/organization/limited liability company)
By: ) O and

o (s.vgnature of Oliicer/Member/Manager)
And:
(signature of Officer/Member/Manager)
ACCEPTANCE BY AGENT
|, CHATTA HUFFMAN , hereby accept this appointment as agent for the
(print/fype agent’s name)

corporationforganization/limited liability company and assume full responsibility for the conduct of all business relative to alcohol
beverages conducted on the premises for the corporation/organization/limited liability company.

? ——
%ﬁ é% %réfr/:-, 25 /0 Y20 ) Agent's age 33
ature of agent) (date)}

107 Llopo-lu M Baver Damy T S39/6 Date of birth 05/13/1986

(home address of agent)

APPROVAL OF AGENT BY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
(Clerk cannot sign on behalf of Municipal Official)

I hereby certify that | have checked municipal and state criminal records. To the best of my knowledge, with the available information,
the character, record and reputation are satisfactory and | have no objection to the agent appointed.

Approved on bA// 20 by W Title ﬂﬁ-/// / r{u:.)

(Gate) o (signalure of proper local official) (town Fﬁair,'laiﬂage president, police chief)

AT-104 (R. 4-09) Wisconsin Department of Revenue





Auxiliary Questionnaire
Alcohol Beverage License Application

Submit to municipal clerk.

Individual's Full Name (please print)  (last name) (first name) (middle name)

HUFFMAN CHATTA

Home Address (street/route) Post Office City State Zip Code

107 LIBERTY ST BEAVER DAM WI |53916

Home Phone Number Age Date of Birth Place of Birth
(262) 391-2548 33 |05/13/1986 MADISON

The above named individual provides the following information as a person who is (check one):
] Applying for an alcohol beverage license as an individual.

(] Amember of a partnership which is making application for an alcohol beverage license.
] REGISTERED AGENT of SHAKERS SALOON, LLC

(Officer / Director / Member / Manager / Agent) (Name of Corporation, Limited Liability Company or Nonprofit Organization)

which is making application for an alcohol beverage license.

The above named individual provides the following information to the licensing authority:
1. How long have you continuously resided in Wisconsin prior to this date? 33

2. Have you ever been convicted of any offenses (other than traffic unrelated to alcohol beverages) for
violation of any federal laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of any other states or ordinances of any county

EETENR BRI s soi soses 2w sniss mos s s sui S S S R S Y VRS o S S HOE RSEE TRE 5 | [ ]Yes [¥]No
If yes, give law or ordinance violated, trial court, trial date and penalty imposed, and/or date, description and
status of charges pending. (If more room is needed, continue on reverse side of this form.)
3. Are charges for any offenses presently pending against you (other than traffic unrelated to alcohol beverages)
for violation of any federal laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of other states or ordinances of any county or
LD ATt o= T [1Yes [/]No
If yes, describe status of charges pending.
4. Do you hold, are you making application for or are you an officer, director or agent of a corporation/nonprofit
organization or member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for any other alcohol
beverage license OF PEIMIt? . . ... ...ttt e e []Yes [/]No
If yes, identify.
(Name, Localion and Type of License/Permit)
5. Do you hold andfor are you an officer, director, stockholder, agent or employe of any person or corporation or
member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for a wholesale beer permit,
brewery/winery permit or wholesale liquor, manufacturer or rectifier permit in the State of Wisconsin?. ......... [ ]Yes [¢/]No
If yes, identify.
(Name of Wholesale Licensee or Permiilee) {Address By Cily and County)
6. Named individual must list in chronological order last two employers.
Employer's Name Employer's Address Employed From To
KRAFT 419 S CENTER ST,BEAVER DAM (06/01/2016 11/29/2019
Employer's Name Employer's Address Employed From To
WOODMANS 1600 E. MATN ST, WAUKESHA 03/04/2013 05/27/2016

READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Under penalty provided by law, the undersigned states that each of the above questions has
been truthfully answered to the best of the knowledge of the signer. The signer agrees that he/she is the person named in the foregoing
application; that the applicant has read and made a complete answer to each question, and that the answers in each instance are true and
correct. The undersigned further understands that any license issued contrary to Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes shall be void, and
under penalty of state law, the applicant may be prosecuted for submitting false statements and affidavits in connection with this applica-
tion. Any person who knowingly provides materially false information on this application may be required to forfeit not more than $1,000.

(Signalure df Named Individual)

AT-103 (R. 7-18)

Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue






CITY OF STOUGHTON GENERAL LICENSE APPLICATION

Slf\d\*(for:% Saloovi ( iqg.-ﬂ%. Hug;mnn

Business Name Applicant/ Agent Name &

L Chalet De Strghdon 07 15 ke 1. = 529) o
Business Address N Applicant/ Agent Address

OTobacco License $100-.00- Must also complete Tobacco License Application

\/ @ )ukebox $10.00

fepool Tables $35.00/table  # of tables: T

OAmusement Devices $35.00/device  # of devices: 3

O Amusement Device Operator $100.00

/
«Cabaret $100.00 Police Chief Sign Off: / \:/A /{'

OTaxi Cab $15.00/cab  # of cabs: (Please include Evidence of Insurance)

OTaxi Cab Driver License $10.00

DOB:__ (05/)3//986

WIDL#: _ HI155 ~ 102K (12 -03

Total Fee: $3@2¢0 Signature of Applicant
7/ (000 o 6/30/500
Receipt #:__| ) 004 FB52 License Term
RECEIVED
PLEASE RETURN FORM AND PAYMENT TO: JUN 2 § 2020

STOUGHTON CITY HALL

ATTN: CLERK'S OFFICE CITY OF 8STOUGHTON

CO\—\Q S 207 S FORREST ST.
j o A0 STOUGHTON, WI 53589
?66\ x’ﬁ\ﬁ /’](

Ran Qau W\





. Exhibit 3
Y o 1 . Phone (608) 266-4821
“* Public Health Fax (608) 266-4858
MADISON & DANE COUNTY www.publichealthmdc.com
Healthy people. Healthy places. en espa fiol

ORDER OF PUBLIC HEALTH MADISON & DANE COUNTY

DATE OF ORDER: September 1, 2020
Goes into effect on September 2, at 12:.01 a.m.

EMERGENCY ORDER #9 AMENDMENT

This remains a critical time for Dane County to decrease the spread of COVID-19, keep people
healthy, and maintain a level of transmission that is manageable by health care and public
health systems. While research on school-aged children continues to emerge and evolve, a
number of systematic reviews have found that school-aged children contract COVID at lower
rates than older populations. This is particularly pronounced among younger school-aged
children. Locally, as of August 20, 2020, nine (9) percent of all COVID cases were among
children aged 0-17 in Dane County. This population comprises 22% of the county population
overall. Cases among 0-4 year olds comprised 1.3% of all cases; 5-10 year olds comprised 2.7%
of overall cases; and 11-17 year olds comprised 5.3% of all cases. Outbreaks and clusters among
cases aged 5-17 have been rare; of the 401 cases within this age group, 32 (8.0%) were
associated with an outbreak or cluster. A recent analysis also showed a higher proportion of
adults with COVID in Dane County had symptoms compared to school-aged children and that
the most common risk factor among school-aged children was household contact with a
confirmed case. No deaths among children who have tested positive for COVID-19 have
occurred in Dane County. Based on current data and our reopening metrics, PHMDC is allowing
in-person student instruction for grades kindergarten through second grade (K-2), as well as
students in any grade with a disability and/or an Individualized Education Program (IEP) who,
due to their unique needs, may need to receive in-person instruction under 34 CFR Secs.
300.320-300.324 and Wis. Stats. Sec. 115.78(2).

This Order also continues the face covering requirements and limitations on taverns and mass
gatherings for the reasons explained in Order 8.

Based upon the foregoing, |, Janel Heinrich, Public Health Officer of Madison and Dane County,
by the authority vested in me by the Laws of the State, including, but not limited to, Wis. Stats.
Secs. 252.03(1), (2) and (4), order the following as necessary to prevent, suppress, and control
the spread of COVID-19:



https://publichealthmdc.com/documents/2020-09-01_Order_9amendment.pdf#page=17



Page 2

1. Safety of individuals. All individuals should take precautions when leaving their
homes to ensure their safety, the safety of the members of their household, and
the safety of the public.

a. All individuals. For individual safety and the safety of the community, all
individuals should:

i. Maintain physical distancing of six (6) feet between individuals
who are not members of the same living unit or household, to the
greatest extent possible.

ii. Wash hands with soap and water for at least twenty (20) seconds
as frequently as possible or use hand sanitizer.
iii. Cover coughs or sneezes (into the sleeve or elbow, not hands).

iv. Frequently clean high touch surfaces and objects.
V. Not shake hands.
vi. Follow all PHMDC requirements.
Vii. Consider wearing a face covering when outside.
b. Individuals experiencing homelessness. Individuals experiencing

homelessness are strongly urged to obtain shelter.

c. Unsafe homes. Individuals whose homes or residences are unsafe or
become unsafe, such as victims of domestic violence, are urged to leave
their home and stay at a safe alternative location.

2. Face Coverings. Face covering means a piece of cloth or other material that is
worn to cover the nose and mouth completely. A face covering includes but is
not limited to a bandana, a cloth face mask, a disposable or paper mask, a neck
gaiter, or a religious face covering. A face covering does not include face shields,
mesh masks, masks with holes or openings, or masks with vents.

a. Face Covering Required. Every individual, age five (5) and older, shall
wear a face covering when:

i In any enclosed building where other people, except for members
of the person’s own household or living unit are present.
ii. In line to enter any enclosed building.
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iii. Driving or riding in any vehicle where other people, except for
members of the person’s own household or living unit are
present.

iv. Outdoors at a restaurant or tavern.

Face coverings are strongly recommended in all other settings,
including outdoors when it is not possible to maintain physical
distancing.

Children between the ages of two (2) and five (5) are encouraged
to wear a face covering when physical distancing is not possible.
Children under the age of two (2) should never wear a face
covering.

b. Exceptions. Individuals who are otherwise required to wear a face
covering may remove the face covering in the following situations:

i While eating or drinking.

iii. When communicating with an individual who is deaf or hard of
hearing and communication cannot be achieved through other
means.

iiii. While obtaining a service that requires the temporary removal of
the face covering, such as dental services.

iv. While sleeping.
V. While swimming or on duty as a lifeguard.
vi. When engaging in work where wearing a face covering would

create a risk to the individual, as determined by government
safety guidelines.

Vii. When necessary to confirm the individual’s identity, including
when entering a financial institution.
viii. When federal or state law or regulations prohibit wearing a face
covering.
c. The following individuals are exempt from the face covering requirement

in Section 2.a. of this Order:

i Children under the age of 5.
ii. Individuals who are unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise
unable to remove the face covering without assistance.
iii. Individuals with medical conditions, intellectual or developmental
disabilities, mental health conditions, or other sensory
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sensitivities that prevent the individual from wearing a face
covering.

3. Mass Gatherings. A Mass Gathering is a planned event with a large number of
individuals in attendance, such as a concert, festival, meeting, training,
conference, performance, show, or sporting event. Individuals that are members
of the same household or living unit do not count towards the mass gathering
numbers in their own household or living unit.

a. Mass Gatherings Inside. A Mass Gathering inside any property is
permitted with ten (10) individuals or less not including employees.
Individuals must maintain physical distancing.

b. Mass Gatherings Outside. A Mass Gathering outside is permitted with
twenty-five (25) individuals or less not including employees. Individuals
must maintain physical distancing.

4, Child care, youth, education, libraries, public spaces, and sports.

a. Child care and youth settings.

i Child care settings and youth settings must continue to follow
licensing and certification ratio requirements.

ii. Child care settings and youth settings include all licensed,
recreational, and educational camps, licensed and certified
childcare providers, unregulated youth programs, licensed-exempt
public school programs, and four-year old kindergarten (4k).

iii. Individual groups or classrooms may not contain more than fifteen
(15) children if the children are age twelve (12) or under.

iv. Individual groups or classrooms cannot contain more than fifteen
(15) children if age thirteen (13) to seventeen (17).
V. There should be no interaction or contact between individual
groups or classrooms.
vi. To the greatest extent possible, minimize amount of staff
interaction between groups.
Vii. For youth ages five (5) and above, maintain at least six (6) feet

physical distancing to the greatest extent possible.

b. Public outdoor playgrounds and splash pads. Public outdoor
playgrounds and public splash pads are open. Physical distancing must

be maintained.
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c. Courts, Fields, and Sports.

All courts and fields are open.

Physical distancing between individuals not from the same
household or living unit must be maintained at all times.
Games and competitions are allowed for low risk sports with
physical distancing maintained at all times. Low-risk sports are
sports that can be done individually, or with physical distancing,
or no to minimal sharing of equipment or the ability to clean the
equipment between use.

Games and competitions are not allowed between teams for
medium and high-risk sports. Games and competitions within
teams are allowed for medium and high-risk sports if the games
and competitions are modified to ensure physical distancing is
maintained at all times. Medium risk sports are sports that
involve close, sustained contact, but with protective equipment in
place that may reduce the likelihood of respiratory particle
transmission between participants or intermittent close contact
or group sports or sports that use equipment that can’t be
cleaned between participants. High risk sports are sports that
involve close, sustained contact between individuals, lack
significant protective barriers, and have a high probability that
respiratory particles will be transmitted between individuals.
All activities in this section for all individuals must abide by the
Mass Gathering requirements in Section 3 of this Order.

Schools. Public and private school buildings and grounds are only open
for in-person student instruction for grades kindergarten through
second (K-2), as well as students in any grade with a disability and/or an
Individualized Education Program (IEP) who, due to their unique needs,
may need to receive in-person instruction under 34 CFR Secs. 300.320-
300.324 and Wis. Stats. Sec. 115.78(2). Even if open for in-person
instruction, public and private schools must provide a virtual option for
students in grades K-2. Public and private schools also have the
discretion to provide all virtual learning for grades K-2. Staff may be in all
public and private school buildings as long as the requirements in
section 4.d.i-4.d.iv are met. Public and private kindergarten through
twelfth grade schools may be used for food distribution, health care
services, as child care and youth settings, for pickup of student
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materials, and for government functions.* Public and private
kindergarten through twelfth grade schools must abide by the following:

i Develop and implement a written hygiene policy and procedure
that includes:
1. Establishing expectations that employees and students

who have a fever or other symptoms of COVID-19 do not
come or remain at school.

2. Establishing hand-washing expectations and ensuring
supplies are available to employees and students.
3. Describing proper cough and sneeze etiquette.

ii. Develop and implement a written cleaning policy and procedure
that includes:

1. Guidelines for cleaning and disinfecting frequently
touched surfaces multiple times a day.

2. Guidelines for cleaning common areas between use.

3. Protocols for cleaning and disinfecting in the event of a
positive COVID-19 case on site.

iiii. Develop and implement a written protective measure policy and
procedure that includes:

1. Ensuring students ages five (5) and older wear face
coverings when indoors and on buses.

2. Ensuring employees are provided with and wear a face
covering when indoors and on buses.

3. Ensuring students and employees with face coverings
are at least six (6) feet from others to the greatest extent
possible when indoors and on buses.

q, Ensuring that students who cannot wear a face covering
maintain at least six (6) feet distancing at all times from
other students when indoors and on buses.

5. Ensure that students who cannot wear a face covering
maintain six (6) feet distancing from employees to the
greatest extent possible when indoors and on buses.

* On September 10, 2020, the Wisconsin Supreme Court entered a temporary injunction that

allows K-12 schools in Dane County to fully open for in-person instruction. Accordingly, this
provision is not currently in effect.




https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.thewheelerreport.com_wheeler-5Fdocs_files_91120wsc.pdf&d=DwMF-g&c=byefhD2ZumMFFQYPZBagUCDuBiM9Q9twmxaBM0hCgII&r=mwlI27GzFWVV0PkwsUSWseybIuVOnX7OzDVpE4E6d_4&m=wEfXAz-j6SrXwtxu7rmwAXZQOL3P-6DhOn8WV_qh0GA&s=5c4RvZ6Y5lREBiJ0xx09Gnn0IeT4WOETdnyFlGGW4iA&e=
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6. Ensuring that employees who cannot wear a face
covering maintain at least six (6) feet distancing at all
times from other employees when indoors and on buses.

7. Ensuring that employees who cannot wear a face
covering maintain six (6) feet distancing from students to
the greatest extent possible when indoors and on buses.

8. Ensuring students and employees are at least six (6) feet
from other students and employees to the greatest
extent possible outside.

9. Ensuring that student and employee groupings are as
static as possible by having the same group of students
stay with the same employees as much as possible.
Restrict mixing between groups as much as possible.

10. Common areas such as cafeterias, auditoriums, and
gymnasiums can be used as classrooms, to provide food,
as child care and youth settings, and for government
functions. Student groupings should be in distinct
spaces within common areas and students groupings
many not mix with other student groupings.

iv. Implement PHMDC's action plan for COVID-19 case(s) at the
school. Available at
https://publichealthmdc.com/documents/school action plan.pdf

V. Document staff receipt, acknowledgement, or training on the
policies in Sections 4.d.i-4.d.iv of this Order.

vi. Post PHMDC's Workplace requirements for employers and
workers guidance document in a prominent location where all
employees may access and view. Available at
https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-

dane/requirements (English, Spanish, and Mandarin versions are

included)

7. Continuing education and higher education institutions. Continuing
education and higher education institutions may determine policies and
practices for safe operations. However, these institutions may not open
congregate living situations including dormitories without strict policies
that ensure safe living conditions. These institutions must maintain physical
distancing to the greatest extent possible. These institutions must comply
with Section 2 of this Order.




https://publichealthmdc.com/documents/school_action_plan.pdf

https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements

https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements
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8. Libraries and community centers. Libraries and community centers shall
comply with the requirements in Sections 2 and 5 of this Order.
5. Businesses. All businesses are subject to the following requirements:
a. Limit capacity to 50% of approved capacity levels.
b. Develop and implement a written hygiene policy and procedure that
includes:

i Ensuring employees who have a fever or other symptoms of
COVID-19 will not be allowed to work.
ii. Establishing hand-washing expectations and ensuring supplies are
available to employees.
iiii. Describing proper cough and sneeze etiquette.

c. Develop and implement a written cleaning policy and procedure that
includes:

i Guidelines for cleaning and disinfecting frequently touched
surfaces multiple times a day.

ii. Guidelines for frequently wiping down any shared equipment,
such as work spaces, credit card machines, lunchroom items,
carts, and baskets.

iii. Guidelines for cleaning common areas and equipment between
use or shift changes.

iv. Protocols for cleaning and disinfecting in the event of a positive
COVID-19 case on site.

d. Develop and implement a written protective measure policy and
procedure that includes:

i Ensuring individuals are at least six (6) feet from others whenever
possible.
ii. Ensuring employees are provided with and wear face coverings at

all times when required under Section 2 of this Order.
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Document staff receipt, acknowledgement, or training on the policies in
Sections 5b.-5.d of this Order.

Limit staff and customers in offices, facilities, and stores. All businesses
should, to the greatest extent possible, facilitate remote work and other
measures that limit the number of individuals present at an office,
facility, or store. Businesses to the greatest extent feasible should:

Offer online or virtual services, including for, meeting with clients,
providing counsel, or other professional services.

Hold meetings and collaborate online or by phone.

Alternate work teams or stagger shifts.

Safe business requirements when remote work is not possible. All
businesses are required to take the following measures to limit exposure
to COVID-19 to staff, customers, and the public when remote work is not
possible:

Where possible, offer curbside pick-up, curbside drop-off, and
delivery of goods and services.

Where possible, offer online or phone payments, appointments,
and reservations.

Door-to-door solicitation is allowed with physical distancing.
Ensure spacing of chairs in waiting rooms to ensure physical
distancing is maintained between individuals.

Meetings, trainings, and conferences are considered Mass Gatherings
and must comply with Section 3 of this Order.

Adhere to PHMDC requirements and strongly consider implementing the
PHMDC recommendations and guidelines.

Businesses must establish lines outside to regulate entry, with markings
indicating where customers should stand to remain six (6) feet apart from
one another while waiting to enter. Businesses should also offer
alternatives to lines, including allowing customers to wait in their cars for

a text message or phone call and scheduling pick-ups or entries to stores.
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k. Post PHMDC's “Workplace Requirements for Employers and Workers”
guidance document in a prominent location where all employees may
access and view. Available at
https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements

l. Follow all Equal Employment Opportunity Commission guidelines with
regards to face coverings.

m. Post PHMDC's “Face Covering” sign (or a similar sign) about face
coverings being required that is visible upon entering the property. All
residential properties (eg: apartment buildings and condominiums) that
have shared common indoor spaces (eg: mailrooms, lobbies, hallways)
are required to post PHMDC's “Face Covering” sign (or a similar sign)
about masks being required that is visible upon entering the property.
Available at https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-

dane/requirements

6. Industry-specific requirements. In addition to complying with Section 5, the
following businesses have additional requirements:

a. Stores that sell food or groceries, including grocery stores, bakeries, farm
and produce stands, supermarkets, food banks and food pantries,
convenience stores, and other establishments engaged in the retail sale
of groceries, prepared food, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages. Such
establishments shall:

i.  Encourage pickup and delivery options.

ii.  Prohibit customer self-dispensing of unpackaged bulk food items
(e.g. bulk bakery, condiments, or foods where the use of tongs,
tissues, or scoops are used). Beverage stations, coffee grinding
stations, and unpackaged foods stored in enclosed dispensing units
that use a spigot, spout, nozzle or control valve for dispensing are
exempt from this requirement.

i. Except for produce areas, cease any customer self-service
operations of all unpackaged food, such as salad bars, and buffets.

ii. Limitindoor dine-in capacity to 25% of approved seating capacity
levels. Space tables and chairs to ensure at least six (6) feet
physical distancing between customers who are not members of




https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements

https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements

https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements
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iv.

the same household or living unit. Limit each table to six (6)
customers who are members of the same household or living unit.
Outdoor seating is allowed. Space tables and chairs to ensure at
least six (6) feet physical distancing between customers who are
not members of the same household or living unit. Limit each table
to six (6) customers who are members of the same household or
living unit.

Sampling of food is prohibited.

b. Restaurants and taverns. Restaurants and taverns shall:

vi.

“Restaurant” has the meaning as defined in Wis. Stats. Ch. 97.01
(14g) and whose sale of alcohol beverages accounts for 50% or less
of the establishment’s gross receipts. A “tavern” is an
establishment in which alcohol beverages are sold for consumption
on said premises and whose sale of alcohol beverages accounts for
51% or more of the establishment’s gross receipts. “Tavern”
includes breweries, brewpubs, wineries and distilleries. Wis. Stat.
Sec. 125.07(3)(a)6 presumes that an establishment operated
under both a Class “B” or “Class B” license or permit and a license
under Wis. Stat. Sec. 97.30 for a restaurant, is a tavern. This
presumption may be rebutted by competent evidence. To
determine whether an establishment is a restaurant or a tavern,
gross receipts for the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 will be
considered. A restaurant or tavern shall provide receipts showing
their gross sales of food and alcohol to PHMDC within seventy-two
hours of a request by PHMDC for said receipts.

Encourage pick-up and delivery options.

Cease any customer self-service operations of all unpackaged food,
such as salad bars and buffets. Beverage stations are exempt from
this requirement.

At restaurants, limit indoor dine-in capacity to 25% of approved
seating capacity levels. Space tables and chairs to ensure at least
six (6) feet physical distancing between customers who are not
members of the same household or living unit. Limit each table to
six (6) customers who are members of the same household or living
unit.

Customers may enter taverns only for the purposes of ordering,
pick-up, and payment of food or beverage or while in transit.
Outdoor seating is allowed. Space tables and chairs to ensure at
least six (6) feet physical distancing between customers who are
not members of the same household or living unit. Limit each table
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to six (6) customers who are members of the same household or

living unit.

vii.  Inrestaurants, maintain at least six (6) feet between each stool for
customers that are not members of the same household or living
unit.

viii.  Customers must be seated at all times when not in transit.

ix.  Sampling of food is prohibited.

c. Retail stores. Retail stores shall:

i Limit the number of individuals in the business (excluding
employees) up to 50% of approved capacity levels.

ii. Retail stores larger than 50,000 square feet must offer at least
two hours per week of dedicated shopping time for vulnerable
individuals. Vulnerable individuals include people over sixty-five
(65) years of age, people that are pregnant, people in long-term
care facilities, people with compromised or weakened immune
systems, and people with serious underlying health conditions
including high blood pressure, chronic lung disease, serious heart
conditions, liver disease, kidney disease requiring dialysis,
diabetes, obesity, or asthma.

iii. Sampling of goods (ex. food or make-up) is prohibited.

d. Salons and spas. Facilities including hair salons, barber shops, nail salons,
day spas, electrolysis providers, waxing salons, eyebrow-care
establishments, tattoo and piercing parlors, body art establishments,
tanning facilities and similar facilities shall:

i Limit the number of customers or clients to 50% of approved
capacity levels. If capacity level is four (4) or less, one (1) client or
customer is permitted.

ii. Space customer or client chairs, tables, or stations at least six (6)
feet apart from each other.

e. Gyms and fitness centers. Gyms, fitness centers, and similar facilities
shall:

i Provide materials for members to disinfect equipment before and

after exercise at each piece of equipment or station.
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ii. Limit the number of individuals in the business (excluding
employees) to 50% of the approved capacity limit.

iiii. Increase frequency of cleaning of all equipment, common areas,
locker rooms, and restrooms.

iv. To the extent possible, space equipment at least six (6) feet apart,
especially for treadmills and other high-exertion aerobic fitness
equipment.

V. Use floor markings to indicate spacing of individuals, particularly

in areas where individuals congregate or cluster including drinking
fountains, the front desk or reception area, and cleaning stations.

vi. Group exercise classes may only be offered if physical distancing
can be maintained at all times and there is no person-to-person
contact. Group exercises classes must comply with Section 3 of
this Order.

Vii. Activities where physical distancing cannot be maintained are not
allowed unless they are between individuals from the same
household or living unit.

viii. Saunas and steam rooms are closed.

f. Places of amusement and activity. Places of amusement and activity
including water parks, licensed public or private swimming pools,
aquariums, zoos, museums, bowling alleys, amusement parks, outdoor
miniature golf, movie theaters, theaters, concert and music halls, golf
courses and similar places shall:

i To the extent possible, all reservations and payments must be
made in advance online or by phone.

ii. Businesses shall limit the number of individuals on the premises
(excluding employees) to 50% of approved capacity limits. Events
such as, but not limited to, concerts, festivals, carnivals, fairs,
parades, movies, performances, and shows are subject to
Section 3 of this Order.

iii. Tee times, appointments, performances, shows, or other
scheduled events must be scheduled to ensure that physical
distancing can be maintained between all individuals, not within

the same household or living unit, at all times.
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iv. Seating, stations, or recreational areas must be spaced to ensure
at least six (6) feet of physical distancing between individuals not
within the same household or living unit.

V. All equipment provided or rented should be cleaned in between
each customers use.

8. Lodging, including hotels, motels, campgrounds, B&B, and vacation
rentals.

i Prohibit guests from congregating in lobbies or other common
areas, including providing adequate space to adhere to physical
distancing while queuing for front desk services.

ii. Adopt cleaning protocols for guest rooms and common areas
based on PHMDC guidelines. Provide training for housekeeping
associates for proper handling of linens and cleaning/disinfecting
supplies and provide appropriate personal protective equipment.

iii. Follow all requirements in Section 6 of this Order.

h. Drive-in Activities. Drive-in movie theaters and other drive-in activities
may occur, with the following restrictions:

i Drive-in activities may not offer outdoor seating.

ii. Individuals may leave their vehicles to purchase or pick up food or
drink or to use the restroom. Individuals must remain in their
vehicles at all other times.

iii. Any food or drink sales must comply with Sections 6.b. ii., iii., iv.
and x.

iv. Food may be delivered to individuals patrons waiting in their
vehicles.

V. To the extent possible, reservations and payments should be made
in advance online or over the phone.

vi. Drive-in activities are exempt from Section 3 of this Order.

7. Health care operations, public health operations, human services operations,
infrastructure operations, manufacturing and government functions. These
operations, as defined in Emergency Health Order #2, are required to only follow
Sections 2, 5.b through 5.g. and 5.i. through 5.m. of this Order. Long-term care
and assisted living facilities must follow all applicable Wisconsin Department of
Health Services recommendations, all applicable U.S. Centers for Disease Control
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10.

and Prevention recommendations, and all applicable Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services recommendations for prevention of COVID-19 in these
facilities.

Religious Entities and Groups. Religious entities and groups are entities that are
organized and operated for a religious purpose. Examples include, but are not
limited to mosques, synagogues, temples, religious studies, churches and
nondenominational ministries. Religious entities and groups shall comply with
Sections 2, 5.a. through 5.g. and 5.i through 5.m. of this Order. Religious entities
are exempt from mass gathering requirements for religious services and religious
practices only. Religious entities are not exempt from the mass gathering
requirements for other events outside of a religious service or practice such as
picnics or staff meetings.

Leased Premises. Landlords or rental property managers may enter leased
residential premises and show properties if all individuals are wearing face
coverings and maintaining physical distancing.

Businesses must follow all regulatory and licensing requirements. If this Order
contains provisions that are more restrictive than otherwise permitted in any
regulatory or licensing requirement, the provisions of this Order shall control.

ENFORCEMENT AND APPLICABILITY

11.

12,

13.

Enforcement. Violation or obstruction of this Order is a violation of Madison
Municipal Ordinance Sec. 7.05(6), Dane County Ordinance Sec. 46.40(2) and any
subsequent or similar ordinance adopted by a local municipality in conformity
therein.

Severability. If any provision of this Order or its application to any person or
circumstance is held to be invalid, then the remainder of the Order, including the
application of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances, shall not
be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions
of this Order are severable.

Duration. This Order shall become effective Wednesday, September 2, 2020 at
12:01 a.m. This Order shall remain in effect until further notice.

ITIS SO ORDERED.






Page 16

Janel Heinrich
Health Officer, Public Health Madison & Dane County
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Healthy people. Healthy places.

ORDEN DE SALUD PUBLICA DE MADISON Y EL CONDADO DE
DANE

FECHA DE LA ORDEN: 1 de Septiembre del 2020
Entra en efecto el 2 de Septiembre del 2020 a las 12:01 a.m.

ENMIENDA A LA ORDEN DE EMERGENCIA N° 9

Este sigue siendo un momento critico para que el condado de Dane reduzca la propagaciéon de
COVID-19, mantenga a las personas saludables y mantenga un nivel de transmision que sea
manejable por los sistemas de salud publica y de atencion médica. Si bien la investigacién sobre
nifios en edad escolar continula surgiendo y evolucionando, una serie de revisiones sistematicas
han encontrado que los nifios en edad escolar contraen COVID en tasas mas bajas que las
poblaciones mayores. Esto es particularmente marcado entre los nifios mas pequefios en edad
escolar. A nivel local, al 20 de agosto de 2020, el nueve (9) por ciento de todos los casos de
COVID ocurrieron entre nifios de 0 a 17 afios en el condado de Dane. Esta poblacién comprende
el 22% de la poblacion del condado en general. Los casos entre los nifios de 0 a 4 afios
representaron el 1.3% de todos los casos; los de edades entre 5 a 10 afios representaron el
2.7% del total de casos; y los de 11 a 17 afos representaron el 5.3% de todos los casos. Los
brotes y conglomerados entre los casos de 5 a 17 afos han sido raros; de los 401 casos dentro
de este grupo de edad, 32 (8.0%) se asociaron con un brote o conglomerado. Un analisis
reciente también mostré que una mayor proporcion de adultos con COVID en el condado de
Dane tenian sintomas en comparacién con los nifios en edad escolar y que el factor de riesgo
mas comun entre los nifios en edad escolar era el contacto del hogar con un caso confirmado.
No se han producido muertes entre los nifios que dieron positivo por COVID-19 en el condado
de Dane. Basado en los datos actuales y nuestras métricas de reapertura, PHMDC (Salud
Publica) esta permitiendo la instrucciéon estudiantil en persona para los grados de jardin infantil
hasta segundo grado (K-2), asi como también para los estudiantes de cualquier grado con una
discapacidad y / o un Programa de Educacion Individualizado (IEP, por sus siglas en inglés) que,
debido a sus necesidades Unicas, es posible que deban recibir instrucciéon en persona segin 34
CFR Secs. 300.320-300.324 y Wis. Stats. Sec. 115,78 (2).

Esta Orden también continda con los requisitos y limitaciones del uso de mascaras en tabernas
y reuniones masivas por las razones explicadas en la Orden 8.





En base a lo anterior, yo, Janel Heinrich, administradora de Salud Publica de Madison vy el
Condado de Dane, por la autoridad que me otorgan las leyes estatales, entre las que se incluyen
Wis. Stats. Secs. 252.03(1), (2) y (4), ordeno lo siguiente como necesario para prevenir, eliminar
y controlar la propagacién del COVID-19:

1. Seguridad de las personas. Todas las personas deben tomar precauciones al salir
de sus casas para garantizar su seguridad, la de los miembros de su hogar y la del
publico en general.

a. Todas las personas. Para la propia seguridad individual y la de Ia
comunidad, todas las personas deben:

i. Mantener, al maximo posible, una distancia fisica de seis (6) pies
de distancia entre personas que no son miembros de un mismo
hogar o comparten vivienda.

ii. Lavarse, con la mayor frecuencia posible, las manos con agua y
jabdn por al menos veinte (20) segundos o usar desinfectante de

manos.
iii. Cubrirse la tos o los estornudos (con el codo o la manga, no con la
mano).
iv. Limpiar con regularidad superficies y objetos de contacto
frecuente.
V. No darse la mano.
vi. Cumplir con todos los requisitos de Salud Publica (PHMDC).
Vii. Considerar el uso de una cubierta facial de tela en el exterior.
b. Personas sin hogar. A las personas que se encuentran sin techo o sin

hogar se les ruega encarecidamente que consigan un lugar donde vivir.

c. Hogares inseguros. A las personas que viven en hogares o viviendas que
no sean seguros o con riesgo de inseguridad, como las victimas de
violencia doméstica, se les pide que abandonen la vivienda y se hospeden

en un lugar alternativo que sea seguro.






2. Cubiertas faciales. Cubiertas faciales se refiere a un pedazo de tela u otro material
que se use para cubrir completamente la nariz y la boca. Una cubierta facial incluye,
entre otros, un pafiuelo, una mascarilla de tela, una mascarilla desechable o de papel,
una bufanda para el cuello o una cubierta religiosa para el rostro. Una cubierta facial
no incluye protectores faciales, mdscaras de malla, mascaras con agujeros o aberturas,
0 mdscaras con ventilaciones.

a. Serequiere cubierta facial. Todas las personas, de cinco (5) afios o0 mas, debe
llevar una cubierta facial cuando estén:

iv.

En cualquier edificio cerrado donde pueda haber otras personas,
a excepcion de los miembros del propio hogar o quienes
compartan vivienda.

En fila para entra a un lugar interior.

Manejando o utilizando cualquier vehiculo donde haya otras
personas, excepto miembros del hogar o quienes compartan
vivienda.

Restaurantes y tabernas al aire libre.

Se recomienda encarecidamente cubrirse la cara en todos los
demads entornos, incluso en exteriores, cuando no es posible
mantener la distancia fisica.

Se anima a los nifos entre las edades de dos (2) y cinco (5) a que
se cubran la cara cuando no sea posible el distanciamiento fisico.
Los ninos menores de dos (2) afios nunca deben usar una
cubierta facial.

b. Excepciones. Las personas que de otra manera requieran usar una cubierta facial
pueden quitdrsela en las siguientes situaciones:

iv.

Cuando estén comiendo o bebiendo.

Cuando estén comunicdndose con una persona sorda o con
problemas de audicién y la comunicacién no se pueda realizar
por otros medios.

Mientras se esté recibiendo un servicio que exija quitarse
temporalmente la cubierta facial, como por ejemplo servicios
dentales.

Mientras esté durmiendo.

Cuando esté nadando o como salvavidas de turno.





vi. Cuando realice un trabajo en el que el uso de una cubierta facial
creard un riesgo para la persona, segun lo determinado por las
pautas de seguridad del gobierno.

vii. Cuando sea necesario para confirmar la identidad de la persona,
incluyendo al entrar a una institucion financiera.
viii. Cuando las leyes federales o estatales prohiben llevar una

cubierta facial.

C. Los siguientes individuos estan exentos de llevar una cubierta facial, requisito en
la Seccion 2.a. de esta Orden:

i Los ninos menores de 5 afios.
ii. Las personas que estan inconscientes, incapacitadas o que no
pueden quitarse la cubierta facial sin ayuda
iii. Personas con una condicién médica, de salud mental o con una
discapacidad que les impida llevar una cubierta facial.

3. Reuniones masivas. Una reunién masiva es un evento organizado al que asisten
un gran numero de personas, como un concierto, festival, reunion,
entrenamiento, conferencia, actuacion, espectaculo o acontecimiento deportivo.
Las personas que forman parte de un mismo hogar o que viven juntas no
cuentan cdmo reunidn masiva en su propio hogar o vivienda.

a. Reuniones masivas en el interior. En interiores se permiten reuniones
masivas de diez (10) personas o menos sin contar a empleados. Se debe
mantener la distancia fisica entre personas.

b. Reuniones masivas al aire libre. Al aire libre se permiten reuniones
masivas de veinticinco (25) personas o menos, sin contar a empleados.
Se debe mantener la distancia fisica entre personas.

4, Guarderias, instalaciones para jovenes y educativas, bibliotecas, espacios
publicos y deportes.

a. Entornos de guarderias y para jovenes.

i Los entornos de guarderia e instalaciones para jovenes deben
continuar cumpliendo con la proporcién de ocupacién requerida
por su licencia o certificacion.

ii. Los entornos de guarderias e instalaciones para jovenes incluyen
todos los campamentos educativos, recreativos y con licencia,
proveedores de cuidado de nifios certificados y con licencia,






programas juveniles no regulados, programas de escuelas publicas
exentos de licencia y jardin de infantes de 4 afos (4k).

iii. Cada grupo o clase no puede contar con mas de quince (15) nifios
si tienen 12 aflos 0 menos.

iv. Cada grupo o clase no puede contar con mas de quince (15) nifios
si tienen entre trece (13) y diecisiete (17) afios.
V. No debe haber interaccién o contacto entre grupos o clases.
vi. En la medida de lo posible, minimizar la interaccién del personal en
los grupos.
Vii. En la medida de los posible, mantener una distancia fisica de seis

(6) pies de distancia entre ninos de cinco (5) afios 0 mas.

b. Areas de juego al aire libre y zonas de juegos acuaticos. Las areas de
juego al aire libre y las zonas de juegos acuaticos estan abiertas al
publico. Se debe mantener la distancia fisica.

c. Canchas, campos y deportes.
i. Todas las pistas, canchas o campos estan abiertos.
ii. Se debe mantener en todo momento la distancia fisica entre

personas que no forman parte de un mismo hogar o que no viven
juntas.

iii. Se permiten los juegos y competencias para deportes de bajo
riesgo, manteniendo la distancia fisica en todo momento. Los
deportes de bajo riesgo son aquellos que se pueden realizar
individualmente, o en los que se mantiene la distancia fisica, o en
los que no hay intercambio de material o éste sea minimo, o
exista la posibilidad de limpiar el material entre usos.

iv. No se permiten los juegos ni competencias entre equipos para
deportes de riesgo medio y alto. Se permiten los juegos y
competencias entre equipos para deportes de riesgo medio y alto
si los juegos y competencias se modifican para asegurar que se
mantiene la distancia fisica en todo momento. Los deportes de
riesgo medio son aquellos que requieren contacto cercano y
continuo, pero que disponen de equipo de proteccidn que puede
reducir la probabilidad de transmisién de particulas respiratorias
entre los participantes o aquellos que implican un contacto
cercano intermitente o deportes de grupo o deportes que
emplean equipo que no puede limpiarse entre el uso de los
participantes. Los deportes de alto riesgo son aquellos en los que

se requiere un contacto cercano y constante entre personas, no






disponen de barreras de proteccidn significativas y hay una alta
probabilidad de que se transmitan particulas respiratorias entre
individuos.

Todas las actividades de esta secciéon deben cumplir con los
requisitos para reuniones masivas de la seccién 3 de esta Orden.

Escuelas. Los edificios y terrenos de las escuelas publicas y privadas solo
estan abiertos para la instruccion estudiantil en persona desde el jardin
infantil hasta el segundo grado (K-2), asi como también para los
estudiantes de cualquier grado con una discapacidad y / o un Programa
de Educacion Individualizado (IEP, por sus siglas en ingles) gue, debido a
sus necesidades Unicas, puede gue necesiten recibir instruccién en
persona bajo 34 CFR Secciones 300.320-300.324 y los estatutos de
Wisconsin. Seccidon 115.78 (2). Incluso si las escuelas publicas y privadas
estan abiertas para la instruccidén en persona, deben brindar una opcion
virtual para los estudiantes en los grados K-2. Las escuelas publicas y
privadas también tienen la discrecidén de proporcionar todo el
aprendizaje virtual para los grados K-2. El personal puede estar en todos
los edificios escolares publicos y privados siempre que se cumplan los
requisitos de la seccion 4.d.i-4.d.iv. Las escuelas publicas y privadas de
jardin infantil al grado doce se pueden utilizar para la distribucién de

alimentos, servicios de atencién médica, cuidado de nifios y entornos
para jévenes, para recoger materiales de los estudiantes y para
funciones gubernamentales. * Las escuelas de jardin infantil publicas y
privadas al grado doce deben cumplir con lo siguiente:

Desarrollar y poner en practica una politica y procedimientos de
higiene que estén por escrito y que incluyan:
1. Establecer expectativas de que los empleados y

estudiantes que tengan fiebre u otros sintomas de
COVID-19 no asistan o permanezcan en la escuela.

2. Establecer expectativas de lavado de manos y asegurarse
de que haya suministros disponibles para empleados y
estudiantes.

3. Describir un protocolo adecuado para tosery
estornudar.

Desarrollar y poner en practica una politica y procedimientos de
limpieza que estén por escrito y que incluyan:

1. Normas para limpieza y desinfeccion de superficies de

contacto frecuente varias veces al dia.





2. Normas para la limpieza de zonas comunes entre usos.
3. Protocolos para limpieza y desinfeccidén en caso de que
haya caso positivo de COVID-19 en las instalaciones.

iii. Desarrollar y poner en practica una politica y procedimientos de
medidas de proteccidn que estén por escrito y que incluyan:

1. Asegurar que los estudiantes de cinco (5) afilos o mas
usen cubiertas faciales cuando estén adentro y en los
autobuses.

2. Asegurar que los empleados reciban y usen una cubierta
facial cuando estén adentro y en los autobuses.

3. Asegurar que los estudiantes y los empleados se cubran
la cara y que en la medida de los posible mantengan al
menos seis (6) pies de distancia los demas cuando se
encuentren adentro y en los autobuses.

4. Asegurar que los a estudiantes que no puedan cubrirse
la cara mantengan al menos seis (6) pies de distancia de
otros estudiantes en todo momento que estén adentroy
en los autobuses.

5. Asegurar que los a estudiantes que no puedan cubrirse
la cara mantengan al menos seis (6) pies de distancia de
los empleados en la mayor medida posible cuando estén
adentro y en los autobuses.

* El 10 de septiembre de 2020, la Corte Suprema de Wisconsin emitié una orden judicial
temporal que permite que las escuelas K-12 en el condado de Dane abran completamente para
la instruccion en persona. En consecuencia, esta disposicion no estd actualmente en vigor.

6. Asegurar que los empleados que no puedan cubrirse la
cara mantengan una distancia de al menos seis (6) pies
en todo momento de otros empleados cuando estén en
el interior y en los autobuses.

7. Asegurar que los empleados que no puedan cubrirse la
cara mantengan una distancia de seis (6) pies de los
estudiantes en la mayor medida posible cuando estén
adentroy en los autobuses.

8. En la medida de lo posible, asegurar que los estudiantes
y empleados estén al menos a seis (6) pies de otros

estudiantes y empleados.






9. Asegurar que los grupos de estudiantes y empleados
sean lo mas estaticos posible haciendo que el mismo
grupo de estudiantes permanezca con los mismos
empleados tanto como sea posible. Restrinja la mezcla
entre grupos tanto como sea posible.

10. Las areas comunes como cafeterias, auditorios y
gimnasios se pueden utilizar como aulas, para
proporcionar alimentos, como entornos de cuidado
infantil y juvenil, y para funciones gubernamentales. Los
grupos de estudiantes deben estar en espacios distintos
dentro de las dreas comunes y los grupos de estudiantes
no deben mezclarse con otros grupos de estudiantes.

iv. Implementar el plan de accion de PHMDC para brote (s) de
COVID-19 en la escuela. Disponible en
https://publichealthmdc.com/documents/school action plan.pdf

V. Documentar recibos, admisién y capacitacion del personal en las
politicas de las secciones 4.d.i-4.d.iv. de esta Orden.

vi. Publicar el documento de orientacion de PHMDC en un lugar
destacado donde todos los empleados puedan acceder. Este
documento provee los requisitos del lugar de trabajo para
empleadores y trabajadores. Disponible en
https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-

dane/requirements (incluye las versiones en inglés, espafiol y

mandarin)

7. Instituciones de educacion continuada y de educacidn superior. Las
instituciones de educacién continuada y de educacién superior pueden
establecer politicas y practicas para operar de manera segura. Sin
embargo, estas instituciones no pueden abrir instalaciones de vivienda
comunitaria, incluidos dormitorios y residencias, sin unas estrictas
politicas que garanticen unas condiciones seguras de vivienda. Estas

instituciones deben mantener la distancia fisica al maximo posible. Estas

instituciones deben cumplir con la Seccién 2 de esta Orden.




https://publichealthmdc.com/documents/school_action_plan.pdf
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https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements



8. Bibliotecas y centros comunitarios. Las bibliotecas y centros
comunitarios deben cumplir con los requerimientos de las Secciones 2 y 5
de esta Orden.

5. Negocios. Todos los negocios estan sujetos a los siguientes requerimientos:
a. Limitar la capacidad al 50% del nivel de capacidad aprobado.
b. Desarrollar y poner en practica una politica y procedimientos de higiene

gue estén por escrito y que incluyan:

i. Garantizar que no se les permita trabajar a los empleados que
tengan fiebre u otros sintomas de COVID-19.
ii. Establecer expectativas de lavado de manos y asegurarse de que
haya suministros disponibles para los empleados.
iii. Describir un protocolo adecuado para toser y estornudar.
c. Desarrollar e implementar una politica y un procedimiento de limpieza

por escrito que incluya:

i Normas para limpiar y desinfectar varias veces al dia las
superficies que se tocan con frecuencia.

ii. Normas para limpiar con frecuencia cualquier equipo compartido,
como espacios de trabajo, maquinas de tarjetas de crédito,
articulos en el comedor, carritos y cestas.

iii. Normas de limpieza de dreas comunes y equipos entre uso y uso o
en cambios de turno.

iv. Protocolos de limpieza y desinfeccion en caso de un caso positivo
de COVID-19 en las instalaciones.

d. Desarrollar e implementar una politica y un procedimiento escrito de
medidas de proteccidn que incluya:

i Garantizar que las personas estén al menos a seis (6) pies de las
demads siempre que sea posible.

ii. Garantizar que los empleados reciban y usen mascarillas en todo
momento cuando sea requerido bajo la Seccidén 2 de esta Orden.






e. Documentar recibos, constancia o capacitacion del personal sobre las
politicas en las Secciones 5b.-5.d. de esta Orden.

f. Limitar el personal y los clientes en oficinas, instalaciones y tiendas.
Todos los negocios deben, en la mayor medida posible, facilitar el trabajo
de manera remota y otras medidas que limiten el nimero de personas
presentes en una oficina, instalacién o tienda. En la mayor medida
posible, los negocios deben:

i. Ofrecer servicios en linea o virtuales, incluso para, reunirse con
clientes, proporcionar asesoramiento u otros servicios
profesionales.

ii. Llevar a cabo reuniones y colaboraciones en linea o por teléfono.

iii. Alternar equipos de trabajo o programar turnos escalonados.

g. Requisitos de seguridad para negocios cuando el trabajo a distancia no
es posible. Todas las empresas deben tomar las siguientes medidas para
limitar la exposicion del personal, los clientes y el publico al COVID-19
cuando no sea posible trabajar a distancia:

i Siempre que sea posible, ofrecer la opcidn de recogida en la
acera, entrega en la acera, y entrega a domicilio de bienes y
servicios.

ii. Siempre que sea posible, ofrecer pagos en linea o por teléfono,
citas y reservas.

iii. Se permiten las promociones y colectas de donativos de puerta a
puerta con distanciamiento fisico.

iv. Cerciorarse de la distancia entre las sillas en las salas de espera
para asegurarse de mantener el distanciamiento fisico entre las
personas.

h. Las reuniones, capacitaciones y conferencias se consideran reuniones de
masas y deben cumplir con la Seccién 3 de esta Orden.

i. Cumpla con los requisitos del PHMDC y considere seriamente la
implementacidn de las recomendaciones y directrices del PHMDC.






Los negocios deben establecer colas exteriores para regular la entrada,
con marcas que indiquen donde deben ponerse los clientes para
permanecer a seis (6) pies de distancia entre si mientras esperan entrar.
Los negocios también deben ofrecer alternativas a las colas, incluyendo
permitir que los clientes esperen en sus autos un mensaje de texto o una
llamada telefdnica y programar las recogidas o turnos de entrada a las
tiendas.

Exhibir el documento "Requisitos en el lugar de trabajo para los
empleadores y los trabajadores" de PHMDC en un lugar destacado donde
todos los empleados pueden acceder y verlo. Disponible en
https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements).

Seguir todas las normas de la Comisién de Igualdad de Oportunidades en
el Empleo con respecto a las mascarillas.

Exhibir el letrero de PHMDC "Cubiertas Faciales" (Face Coverings) o un
letrero similar sobre la necesidad de cubrirse el rostro de manera que sea
visible al ingresar a la propiedad. Todas las propiedades residenciales (p.
Ej., Edificios de apartamentos y condominios) que tienen espacios
interiores comunes compartidos (p. Ej., Salas de correo, vestibulos,
pasillos) deben colocar el letrero de PHMDC "Cubiertas Faciales" (Face
Coverings) o un letrero similar sobre la necesidad de mascaras que estén
visibles en entrando a la propiedad. Disponible en
https://publichealthmdc.com/coronavirus/forward-dane/requirements

6. Requisitos para industrias especificas. Ademas de cumplir con la Seccién 5, los
siguientes negocios tienen requisitos adicionales:

Tiendas que venden alimentos o comestibles, incluyendo tiendas de
comestibles (supermercados), panaderias, puestos con productos de
granjas y de frutas y verduras, supermercados, bancos de alimentos y
despensa de alimentos, tiendas de autoservicio y otros establecimientos
dedicados a la venta al por menor de comestibles, alimentos preparados,
bebidas alcohdlicas y no alcohdlicas. Dichos establecimientos deberan:

Fomentar opciones de recogida y entrega.

Prohibir a los clientes la auto dispensacién de alimentos a granel
sin empacar (por ejemplo, panaderia a granel, condimentos o
alimentos donde se usan pinzas, pafiuelos de papel o cucharas).
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Las estaciones de bebidas, las estaciones para moler café y los
alimentos sin empacar almacenados en envases cerrados que
utilizan un grifo, pico, boquilla o valvula de control estan exentos
de este requisito.

i. Con excepcion de las areas de produccion, cesar las operaciones
de autoservicio de todos los alimentos no envasados, como las
barras de ensalada y los bufets.

ii. Limitar el drea de cena en el interior al 25% de acuerdo a la
cantidad de mesas permitidas. Separe las mesas y sillas para
asegurar al menos seis (6) pies de distancia fisica entre los clientes
gue no sean miembros del mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.
Limitar cada mesa a seis (6) clientes que sean miembros del
mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.

iii. Se permiten las mesas al aire libre. Separar las mesas y sillas para
asegurar al menos seis (6) pies de distancia fisica entre los clientes
gue no sean miembros del mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.
Limitar cada mesa a seis (6) clientes que sean miembros del
mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.

iv.  Estd prohibido ofrecer muestras de alimentos gratuitos.

b. Restaurantes y bares. Los restaurantes y bares deberan:

i El significado de “Restaurante” esta definido en Wis Stats. Cap.
97.01 (14g) y cuya venta de bebidas alcohdlicas representa el 50%
o menos de los ingresos brutos del establecimiento. “Taverna” es
un establecimiento en el que las bebidas alcohdlicas se venden
para consumo en dichos locales y cuya venta de bebidas
alcohdlicas representa el 51% o mas de los ingresos brutos del
establecimiento. “Taberna” incluye cervecerias, bodegas y
destilerias. Wis. Stat. Segundo. 125.07 (3) (a) 6 presume que un
establecimiento operado bajo una licencia o permiso Clase “B” o
“Clase B” y una licencia bajo Wis. Stat. Segundo. 97.30 para un
restaurante, es una taberna. Esta presuncién puede ser refutada
por pruebas competentes. Para determinar si un establecimiento
es un restaurante o una taberna, se consideraran los ingresos
brutos para el periodo del 1 de julio de 2019 al 30 de junio de
2020. Un restaurante o taberna deberd proporcionar recibos que
muestren sus ventas brutas de comida y alcohol a PHMDC dentro
de las setenta y dos horas de una solicitud de PHMDC para dichos
recibos.

ii. Fomentar opciones de recogida y entrega.






iii. Cesar las operaciones de autoservicio de todos los alimentos no
envasados, como las barras de ensalada y los bufets. Las
estaciones de bebidas estan exentas de este requisito.

iv. En restaurantes, limitar la cena en el interior al 25% de acuerdo al
numero de mesas permitidas. Separar las mesas y sillas para
asegurar al menos seis (6) pies de distancia fisica entre los clientes
gue no son miembros del mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.
Limitar cada mesa a seis (6) clientes que sean miembros del
mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.

V. Los clientes pueden entrar a las tabernas solamente con el
propésito de ordenar, recoger y pagar comida o bebida o
mientras estan en transito.

vi. Se permiten mesas al aire libre. Separar las mesas y sillas para
asegurar al menos seis (6) pies de distancia fisica entre los clientes
gue no sean miembros del mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.
Limitar cada mesa a seis (6) clientes que sean miembros del
mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.

vii. En los restaurantes, mantener por lo menos seis (6) pies entre
cada asiento para los clientes que no sean miembros del mismo
hogar o unidad habitacional.

viii. Los clientes deben estar sentados en todo momento cuando no
estén en transito.

ix. Esta prohibido ofrecer muestras de alimentos gratuitos.

c. Tiendas minoristas. Las tiendas minoristas deberan:

i Limitar el nUmero de personas en el negocio (excluyendo
empleados) al 50% de los niveles de capacidad aprobados. Las
tiendas de mas de 50,000 pies cuadrados deben ofrecer un
tiempo de al menos dos horas por semana dedicado a las compras
de las personas vulnerables.

ii. Las personas vulnerables incluyen personas mayores de sesenta y
cinco (65) afos, personas que estan embarazadas, personas en
centros de atencién a largo plazo, personas con sistemas
inmunitarios comprometidos o debilitados y personas con
problemas de salud subyacentes graves, como presion arterial
alta, enfermedad pulmonar, afecciones cardiacas graves,
enfermedad hepdtica, enfermedad renal que requiera didlisis,
diabetes, obesidad o asma.

iii. Se prohiben las pruebas y la degustacion de productos (por
ejemplo, alimentos o maquillaje).






d. Salonesy spas. Las instalaciones tales como los salones de belleza, peluquerias,
salones de ufias, spas diurnos, proveedores de electrdlisis, salones de cera,
establecimientos de cuidado de cejas, salones de tatuaje y perforacion,
establecimientos de arte corporal, instalaciones de bronceado e instalaciones
similares deberan:

i Limitar el numero de clientes o clientes al 50% de los niveles de
capacidad aprobados. Si el nivel de capacidad es de cuatro (4) o
menos, se permite un (1) cliente.

ii. Mantener una separacién de al menos seis (6) pies de distancia
entre las sillas, mesas o estaciones para los clientes.

e. Gimnasios y centros de gimnasia. Los gimnasios, centros de gimnasia e
instalaciones similares deberén:

i Proporcionar materiales para que los miembros desinfecten el
equipo antes y después del ejercicio en cada equipo o estacion.

ii. Limitar el niumero de personas en el negocio (excluyendo
empleados) al 50% de capacidad aprobada.

iii. Aumentar la frecuencia de limpieza de todo el equipo, areas
comunes, vestuarios y banos.

iv. En la medida de lo posible, colocar los equipos a por lo menos seis
(6) pies de distancia, especialmente caminadoras y otros equipos
de ejercicio aerébico de alto esfuerzo.

V. Usar marcas en el piso para indicar la distancia entre los
individuos, particularmente en areas donde los individuos se
congregan o agrupan, tales como fuentes de agua potable, el
mostrador de recepcion o drea de recepcion, y estaciones de
limpieza.

vi. Las clases de ejercicio en grupo solo se pueden ofrecer si el
distanciamiento fisico se puede mantener en todo momento y no
hay contacto de persona a persona. Las clases de ejercicios en
grupo deben cumplir con la Seccién 2 de esta Orden.

vii. Las actividades en las que no se pueda mantener el
distanciamiento fisico no estan permitidas a menos que sean
entre individuos del mismo hogar o unidad habitacional.

viii. Los saunas y las salas de vapor estan cerradas.






f. Lugares de diversidn y actividades. Los lugares de diversiony
actividades, tales como los parques acuaticos, piscinas (albercas) publicas
o privadas con licencia, acuarios, zoolégicos, museos, boleras, parques de
diversiones, minigolf al aire libre, cines, teatros, salas de conciertos y
musica, campos de golf y lugares similares deberan:

i En la medida de lo posible, todas las reservas y pagos deben
realizarse por adelantado en linea o por teléfono.

ii. Los negocios deberan limitar el nimero de personas en las
instalaciones (excluyendo empleados) al 50% de capacidad
aprobada. Eventos tales como, pero no limitados a, conciertos,
festivales, carnavales, ferias, desfiles, peliculas, actuaciones y
espectdculos estan sujetos a la Seccion 3 de esta Orden.

iii. Las horas de salida para golf, citas, actuaciones, espectaculos u
otros eventos programados deben ser programados para asegurar
que el distanciamiento fisico se pueda mantener entre todos los
individuos, no dentro del mismo hogar o unidad habitacional, en
todo momento.

iv. Los asientos, las estaciones o las areas recreativas deben estar
espaciadas para asegurar al menos seis (6) pies de distancia fisica
entre individuos que no sean del mismo hogar o unidad
habitacional.

V. Todo el equipo que se proporcione o alquile a los clientes debe
limpiarse entre usos.

g. Alojamiento, incluyendo hoteles, moteles, campings, B&B, y alquileres de
vacaciones.

i Prohibir que los huéspedes se congreguen en vestibulos u otras
areas comunes, lo cual incluye proporcionar espacio adecuado
para cumplir con el distanciamiento fisico mientras hacen cola
para los servicios de recepcion.

ii. Adoptar protocolos de limpieza para las habitaciones y zonas
comunes en base a las directrices de PHMDC. Proporcionar
capacitacidn a los trabajadores de limpieza para el manejo
adecuado de la ropa de cama y los suministros de
limpieza/desinfeccion y proporcionar el equipo de proteccion
personal adecuado.

iii. Seguir todos los requisitos de la Seccion 6 de esta Orden.






h. Actividades en automoviles. Se permiten las salas de cine con entrada en
automovil y otras actividades de entrada en automavil, con las siguientes
restricciones:

i Las actividades con entrada en automoviles no pueden ofrecer
asientos al aire libre.

ii. Las personas pueden dejar sus vehiculos para comprar o recoger
alimentos o bebidas o para usar el bafo. Las personas deben
permanecer en sus vehiculos en cualquier otro momento.

iii. Cualquier venta de alimentos o bebidas debe cumplir con las
secciones 6.b. ii., iii., iv. y x.

iv. Se puede entregar alimentos a los clientes que esperan en sus
vehiculos.

V. En la medida de lo posible, las reservas y pagos deben realizarse
por adelantado en linea o por teléfono.

vi. Las actividades de entrada en automavil estan exentas de la

Seccion 3 de esta Orden.

7. Actividades de atencion de salud, actividades de salud publica, actividades de
servicios humanos, actividades de infraestructura, manufactura y funciones
gubernamentales. Estas actividades, segun se definen en la Orden médica de
emergencia No2 (Emergency Health Order #2), deben seguir solamente las secciones
2,5.bal5.g.y5.i. al 5.m. de esta Orden. Los centros de cuidado a largo plazoy
hogares con cuidados especiales deben seguir todas las recomendaciones aplicables
del Departamento de Servicios de Salud de Wisconsin, todas las recomendaciones
aplicables de los Centros para el Control y la Prevencion de Enfermedades de los
Estados Unidos y todas las recomendaciones aplicables de los Centros para Servicios
de Medicare y Medicaid para la prevencion de COVID-19 en estas instalaciones.

8. Entidades y grupos religiosos. Las entidades y grupos religiosos son entidades que
se organizan y operan con fines religiosos. Algunos ejemplos son, pero no se limitan
a mezquitas, sinagogas, templos, estudios religiosos, iglesias y ministerios sin
denominacién. Las entidades y grupos religiosos deberan cumplir con las secciones
del 2, 5.a al 5.g. y del 5.i. al 5.m. de esta Orden. Las entidades religiosas estan
exentas de los requisitos de reunidn masiva para servicios religiosos y practicas
religiosas Unicamente. Las entidades religiosas no estan exentas de los requisitos de
reunién masiva para otros eventos fuera de un servicio o practica religiosa, como
picnics o reuniones de personal.






9. Locales arrendados. Los propietarios o los administradores de propiedades de alquiler
pueden entrar en locales residenciales arrendados y mostrar propiedades si todos los
individuos estan usando mascarillas y manteniendo distanciamiento fisico.

10. Las empresas deben cumplir todos los requisitos normativos y para la licencia. Siesta
Orden contiene disposiciones que son mas restrictivas de lo que estaria permitido en
cualquier requisito normativo o para la licencia, las disposiciones de esta Orden
prevaleceran.

APLICACION Y APLICABILIDAD

11. Cumplimiento. La violacion u obstruccién de esta Orden es una violacién de la
Ordenanza Municipal de Madison Sec. 7.05(6), Ordenanza del Condado de Dane Sec.
46.40(2) y cualquier ordenanza subsiguiente o similar adoptada por un municipio local
de conformidad con el mismo.

12. Divisibilidad. Si alguna disposicion de esta Orden o su aplicacion a cualquier persona o
circunstancia se considera invalida, entonces el resto de la Orden, incluida la aplicaciéon
de dicha parte o disposicion a otras personas o circunstancias, no se vera afectada y
continuara en pleno vigor y efecto. Con este fin, las disposiciones de esta Orden son
separables.

13. Duracidn. Esta Orden entrard en vigor el miércoles 2 de septiembre del 2020 a las

12:01 a.m. esta Orden permanecera en vigor hasta nuevo aviso.

SE DISPONE QUE ASI SEA.

i

Janel Heinrich

Administradora de Salud

Salud Publica de Madison y del Condado de Dane






Exhibit 4

State of Wisconsin
Department of Health Services

Tony Evers, Govetnor
Andtrea Palm, Secretary

EMERGENCY ORDER #3

LIMITING PUBLIC GATHERINGS

The State of Wisconsin is in the midst of a deadly, uncontrolled, and
exponentially growing spike in cases of COVID-19. The State is the nation’s
COVID-19 hot spot, and intervening measures are necessary to slow the rampage
of illness and death caused by the virus.

Without a vaccine, the only tools to slow the spread of COVID-19 are wearing a
face covering in public, staying at least six feet away from other people when you
leave your home, washing your hands regularly, and staying home as much as
possible. Without using these simple but vital life-saving tools, Wisconsin will
suffer from unnecessary illness and death.

During the first three months of the pandemic (March-May), when Wisconsin’s
mass gathering bans and Safer at Home orders were in place, Wisconsin
experienced a total of 20,000 cases of COVID-19. However, after the Legislature
sued to end Safer at Home, which the Wisconsin Supreme Court ended on May
13, 2020, the spread of the virus rapidly accelerated. Wisconsin’s next 20,000
cases occurred over six weeks and the subsequent 20,000 occurred in only three
weeks.

Wisconsin is now a COVID-19 hotspot. It had the third highest number of new
cases in the past seven days (17,641 cases), with only California and Texas
having more new cases (and 6.8 times and 5 times the population, respectively).
Wisconsin is also third in the nation in new cases per 100,000 residents (303
cases per 100,000 residents in the past seven days), with only North Dakota and
South Dakota having higher rates. Compared to neighboring states that have
statewide mitigation efforts in place, Wisconsin’s increase in cases (17,641) over
the last 7 days is more than double both Minnesota’s increase (7,093 cases) and
Michigan’s increase (6,878 cases) (New York Times, October 5, 2020).

Wisconsin must use all its tools, including keeping people physically apart and
wearing face coverings, to slow this dangerous spike. The consequences of failing
to act could be devastating and deadly. Because of the time period between
infection, diagnosis, and the development of serious symptoms, hospitalizations
and deaths lag behind case counts. Wisconsin is now experiencing increases in
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both of these serious indicators because of the steep rise in cases of COVID-19
over the past month.

Hospital capacity strains in some parts of the state are at record high levels. The
State of Wisconsin is divided into seven healthcare emergency readiness coalition
regions (HERC regions), which coordinate how public health, healthcare
institutions, and first responder agencies respond to health emergencies and
catastrophic events.

As of September 29, every HERC region in the state has very high disease activity
level (i.e., greater than 350 cases per 100,000 population during the past two
weeks). On July 29, 2020, while all of the HERC regions had a high disease
activity level (i.e., greater than 100 cases and less than 350 cases per 100,000
population during the past two weeks), none of the HERC regions were
experiencing a very high disease burden.

This high level of disease activity is now manifesting itself with increased
hospitalizations. On September 34, there were 293 patients hospitalized with
COVID-19 in Wisconsin. One month later, on October 3rd, this number had more
than doubled to 692 patients across the state and more than quadrupled in the
Fox Valley, Northeast, Northwest, Northcentral, and Western regions of the state.
Hospital leaders in Green Bay, Appleton, Neenah, and Wausau are reporting
ICU’s at capacity, transfers of patients to other facilities, and critical staffing
shortages.

Over the past six months, significant gains have been made in the care for
patients with COVID-19; however, despite these gains, the disease continues to
take the ultimate toll for too many Wisconsinites. On September 4th, the average
number of newly reported deaths among patients with COVID-19 over the past
seven days was six. By October 4t this average had doubled to fourteen. In the
first six months of the COVID-19 pandemic, 1,242 deaths were reported across
the state. In comparison, during the 2019-2020 influenza season, there were
183 deaths from influenza in our state. Assuming deaths increase at the same
rate, COVID-19 would rank as the sixth leading cause of death in Wisconsin in
2020 behind only heart disease, cancer, unintentional injuries, lower respiratory
disease, and stroke.

While the current death rate for COVID-19 is 1.1% of all cases, the risk of death
increases with age. In Wisconsin, 23% of people in their nineties, 14% of people
in their eighties, and 5% of people in their seventies who contract COVID-19 die.
The lower overall mortality rate is a reflection of the disproportionate
representation of the disease in younger populations where 55% of all Wisconsin
COVID-19 cases have been diagnosed in people under age 40 and 92% in people
under age 70.





For these reasons, I, Andrea Palm, Department of Health Services Secretary-
designee, in fulfilling my constitutional duty under Article I, Section I, as part of
the government instituted by the people to secure the rights of all people to life,
liberty, and the pursuit of happiness, the Laws of this State including Section
252.02(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes, and consistent with Wisconsin Legislature
v. Palm, 2020 WI 42, order the following:

1. Definitions.

a. Public gathering means an indoor event, convening, or collection of
individuals, whether planned or spontaneous, that is open to the
public and brings together people who are not part of the same
household in a single room.

i. Places that are open to the public include, but are not limited
to:

1. Rooms within a business location, store, or facility that
allow members of the public to enter.

2. Ticketed events where tickets are available for free or for
purchase by any individual or by any individual within
a specific class of people.

ii. Places that are not open to the public, and therefore are not
part of the definition of a public gathering and are not limited
by this order, include, but are not limited to:

1. Office spaces, manufacturing plant, and other facilities
that are accessible only by employees or other
authorized personnel.

2. Invitation-only events that exclude uninvited guests.

3. Private residences. Except, a residence is considered
open to the public during an event that allows entrance
to any individual; such public gatherings are limited to
10 people.

2. Public gatherings limited.

a. Public gatherings are limited to no more than 25% of the total
occupancy limits for the room or building, as established by the local
municipality.

b. For indoor spaces without an occupancy limit for the room or
building that is established by the local municipality, such as a





private residence, public gatherings are limited to no more than 10
people.

c. The following are exempt from limitations on public gatherings:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

Child care settings, including all licensed and certified child
care providers who provide care for any age or ages of children
up to 13 years of age or children with disabilities up to 19
years of age; Head Start and Early Head Start programs;
programs providing before or after school care or virtual
learning support during the school day.

Placements for children in out-of-home care, including but not
limited to residential care centers, group homes, foster homes,
and shelter care; overnight service providers for homeless and
runaway youth.

4K-12 schools.
Institutions of higher education.

Health care and public health operations, which includes:
hospitals; medical facilities; clinics; ambulatory surgery
centers for response to urgent health issues or related COVID-
19 activities; manufacturers, technicians, logistics, and
warehouse operators and distributors of medical equipment,
personal protective equipment (PPE), medical gases,
pharmaceuticals, blood and blood products, vaccines, testing
materials, laboratory supplies, cleaning, sanitizing
disinfecting or sterilization supplies, and tissue and paper
towel products; dental offices; pharmacies; public health
entities, including those that compile, model, analyze, and
communicate public health information; pharmaceutical,
pharmacy, medical device and equipment, and biotechnology
companies (including operations, research and development,
manufacture, and supply chain); healthcare information
technology companies; organizations collecting blood,
platelets, plasma, and other necessary materials;
obstetricians, gynecologists, and midwife practices; eye care
centers, including those that sell glasses and contact lenses;
home health agencies and providers; mental health and
substance abuse providers; detoxification and alcohol or drug
treatment programs and facilities; syringe access programs,
and naloxone distribution programs; other healthcare
facilities and suppliers and providers of any related or any
ancillary healthcare services; entities that transport and





vi.

vii.

viii.

dispose of medical materials and remains; personal care
agencies; hospices; allied health providers; veterinary care;
acupuncturists; massage therapists; chiropractors; and adult
family homes.

Human services operations, which includes: long-term care
and assisted living facilities, as long as the facility follows all
current DHS Recommendations for Prevention of COVID-19
in Long-Term Facilities and Assisted Living Facilities and all
applicable L% Centers for Disease Control
Recommendations; residential settings and shelters for
adults, seniors, children, victims of domestic abuse, people
with disabilities, people with substance use disorders, or
mental illness; transitional facilities; home-based settings to
provide services to individuals with physical, intellectual, or
developmental disabilities, seniors, adults, or children; adult
day care, adult day services, and supportive home care; field
offices that provide and help to determine eligibility for basic
needs including food, cash assistance, medical coverage,
vocational services, or rehabilitation services; developmental
centers; adoption agencies; businesses that provide food,
shelter, social services, or other necessities of life for
economically disadvantaged individuals, individuals with
physical, intellectual, or developmental disabilities, or
otherwise needy individuals.

Public Infrastructure operations, which includes: food
production, food distribution and fulfillment centers, food
storage facilities; construction; building management and
maintenance; airports and airport operations; utilities
operation and maintenance, including water, sewer, gas, and
electric (including power generation, distribution, production
of raw materials, and Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources-certified and registered drinking water and
wastewater testing laboratories); Wisconsin Home Energy
Assistance, Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program,
and Public Benefits Energy Assistance Program offices,
customer service centers, and public intake centers; oil and
biofuel refining; roads, highways, railroads, and public
transportation; ports; cybersecurity operations; flood control;
solid waste and recycling collection and removal; and internet,
video, and telecommunications systems.

State and local government operations and facilities, including
polling locations.





ix. Churches and other places of religious worship.

x. Political rallies, demonstrations, and other speech protected
by the First Amendment.

xi. State facilities under the control of the Wisconsin Supreme
Court and the Wisconsin Legislature.

xii. Federal facilities under the control of the federal government.

3. Public heath directives and orders. All individuals are strongly
encouraged to take personal responsibility for following public health
guidance from local health officials, the Department of Health Services,
and the Center for Disease Control. Individuals must follow all directives
and orders issued by local or state authorities regarding measures to
combat COVID-19, including any local or state orders regarding wearing
face coverings.

ENFORCEMENT AND APPLICABILITY
4. Tribal Nations.

a. These restrictions do not apply to activities by Tribal members
within the boundaries of their Tribal reservations and federal
land held in trust for any one of the eleven federally recognized
Tribes in Wisconsin, but Tribal members may be subject to
restrictions by Tribal authorities.

b. Non-tribal members should be respectful of and avoid non-
essential travel to Tribal territory.

c. Wisconsin’s local governments shall coordinate, collaborate, and
share information with the Tribal Nations in their region.

5. Local Orders. Local governments may issue orders that are more
restrictive than the provisions in this order.

6. Enforcement. This order is enforceable by civil forfeiture. Wis. Stat. §
252.25; Legislature v. Palm, 2020 WI 42.

7. Severability. If any provision of this order or its application to any person
or circumstance is held to be invalid, then the remainder of the order,
including the application of such part or provision to other persons or
circumstances, shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and
effect. To this end, the provisions of this order are severable.





8. Duration. This order shall become effective at 8:00 a.m. on October 8,
2020. This order shall remain in effect for two incubation periods of
COVID-19, which will end November 6, 2020.

(0] 06/2020

“Andrea Palm Date
Secretary-designee
Department of Health Services
State of Wisconsin
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Exhibit 10

Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON
Date//Time: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m.
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to

COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/668671461. You can also dial in
using your phone: United States: +1 (312) 757-3117 Access Code: 668-
671-461.

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom,
Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa
Reeves, and Brett Schumacher

CALL TO ORDER

Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.

Clerk Licht called roll and noted that there were 11 alders present.

Volunteer of the Year Proclamation—Tricia Suess Charleston

Volunteer of the Year Proclamation—Sharon Mason-Boersma

Stoughton’s Friend of Youth Proclamation—Cynthia Shlegel

Stoughton’s Business Person of the Year—Kendall & Trish Gulseth, Koffee Kup
Election Update

Minutes and Reports:

Public Comment Period:
None

CONSENT AGENDA
A. March 10, 2020 Council Minutes

Motion by Jenson, second by Hirsch to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 11-0.

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

HEARING: Discussion and possible decision on the complaint seeking Revocation of the “Class B”
Reserve Combination License held by Shaker Saloon, LLC d/b/a Shakers Saloon located at 111 Chalet
Dr.

Motion by Jenson, second by Heili to revoke the “Class B” Reserve Combination License held by
Shaker Saloon, LLC d/b/a Shakers Saloon located at 111 Chalet Dr. Attorney Watt presented his
objection to the report, noting that the agent and the corporation are the same person. He added that



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/668671461



there was a presumption of “intent to deliver” and Mr. Kittleson has not yet been convicted of any crime.
He stated that Shakers would not take further legal action if the council agreed to a suspension until June
1, 2020. Rick Manthe stated that Shakers, LLC knowingly allowed Mr. Kittleson on the premise with
2.5 ounces of cocaine. He noted that Mr. Kittleson and Shakers Saloon, LLC are 2 different entities. He
argued that on the day of the hearing, Shakers had taken no steps to remove Kittleson from the LLC.

Motion by Ligocki, second by Hirsch to suspend the license for 48 days with June 8 being the effective
end date. Motion carried on a vote of 6-5 with Boersma, Caravello, Doom, Jenson and Reeves voting
no.

Original motion as amended carried 7-4 with Doom, Jenson, Reeves, and Boersma voting ‘no’.

R-49-2020- Possible action to approve the appointment of Chatta Huffman as agent for Shakers Saloon,
LLC d/b/a Shakers Saloon, located at 111 Chalet Dr.

Motion by Heili, second by Bartlett to approve R-49-2020 Possible action to approve the appointment of
Chatta Huffman as agent for Shakers Saloon, LLC d/b/a Shakers Saloon, located at 111 Chalet Dr.
Motion carried 11-0.

Discussion and possible action regarding Mayor Swadley’s Emergency Declaration

Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to ratify Mayor Swadley’s Emergency declaration. Motion carried
11-0.

R-50-2020- Approving City of Stoughton employees, volunteers and vendors that are deemed essential
during the COVID-19 Pandemic

Motion by Jenson, second by Schumacher to approve R-50-2020 Approving City of Stoughton
employees, volunteers and vendors that are deemed essential during the COVID-19 Pandemic. Motion
carried 11-0.

R-51-2020- Authorizing City of Stoughton Department Heads to generate and make changes to
emergency polices on an as needed basis for the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic

Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve R-51-2020 Authorizing City of Stoughton Department
Heads to generate and make changes to emergency polices on an as needed basis for the duration of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Motion carried 11-0.

R-52-2020- Authorizing and approving a Memorandum of Understanding with the Stoughton
Professional Police Association regarding schedule changes

Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to approve R-52-2020 Authorizing and approving a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Stoughton Professional Police Association regarding schedule
changes. There will be an approximate cost of $87,000 to make the changes to 12 hours per week.
Motion carried 11-0.





R-53-2020- Identifying Emergency Responders for the purposes of the Families First Coronavirus
Response Act

Motion by Reeves, second by Caravello to approve R-53-2020 Identifying Emergency Responders for
the purposes of the Families First Coronavirus Response Act. Motion carried 11-0.

R-54-2020- Approving the Interim Compensation Plan through April 30, 2020 as outlined in the March
19, 2020 Memo

Motion by Reeves, second by Ligocki to approve R-54-2020 Approving the Interim Compensation Plan
through April 30, 2020 as outlined in the March 19, 2020 Memao. Council agreed that we should stay
with this plan until the Safer at Home Order has been lifted.

Motion by Ligocki, second by Heili to amend the interim compensation plan as outlined in the March
19, 2020 to be ratified through the expiration of the until Safer at Home Order or as otherwise modified
by the council. Motion carried 11-0.

Original motion as amended 11-0.

R-55-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Parisi
Construction Co., Inc. for the 2020 Street and Utility Reconstruction Contract 1-2020

Motion by Schumacher, second by Hirsch to approve R-55-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper
City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Parisi Construction Co., Inc. for the 2020 Street and
Utility Reconstruction Contract 1-2020. Boersma expressed concerns about COVID-19 policies that the
construction company would be following and the costs of residents during this time. Motion carried 11-
0.

R-56-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to amend the 2020-2024 City of
Stoughton Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Budget in relation to the Street and Construction contract 1-
2020

Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-56-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper
City official(s) to amend the 2020-2024 City of Stoughton Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Budget in
relation to the Street and Construction contract 1-2020. Motion carried 11-0.

Discussion and possible action regarding recovery of Unlawful Tax Request from Ryan Tax
Compliance on behalf of Aldi, Inc. to refund taxes of $1,543.90

Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to pay the unlawful tax $1,543.90 to Aldi, Inc. Motion
carried 11-0.





R-57-2020- Authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government,
Federal Land and Water Conservation Fund, and Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant application
by the Parks & Recreation Director for Yahara Riverfront Development Project

Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve R-57-2020 Authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin
DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government, Federal Land and Water Conservation Fund, and
Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant application by the Parks & Recreation Director for Yahara
Riverfront Development Project. Motion carried 11-0.

R-58-2020-Authorizing the Participation in the Department of Natural Resources Municipal Dam Grant
Program

Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve R-58-2020 Authorizing the Participation in the
Department of Natural Resources Municipal Dam Grant Program. Motion carried 11-0.

R-59-2020-Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to amend the 2020-2024 City of
Stoughton Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Budget

Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-59-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper

city officials to amend the 2020-2024 City of Stoughton Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Budget.
Motion carried 10-1 with Boersma voting ‘no’.

R-60-2020- Annual Report-Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit

Motion by Heili, second by Reeves to approve R-60-2020 Annual Report-Municipal Separate Storm
Sewer System (MS4) Permit. Motion carried 11-0.

R-61-2020-Approving a Conditional Use Permit by Zink Power at 2443 County Highway A,
Stoughton, WI

Motion by Caravello, second by Majewski to approve R-61-2020 Approving a Conditional Use Permit
by Zink Power at 2443 County Highway A, Stoughton, WI. Motion carried 11-0.

Discussion and possible action regarding recommendation to rebid 1-2020 Alternate Bid No.1 for
Sanitary Sewer Work as a Separate Contract

Motion by Hirsch, second by Schumacher to re-bid 1-2020 alternate bid no. 1 for sanitary sewer works
as a separate contact. Motion carried 11-0.

Approval of a Communication Cabinet Easement L ocated at Stoughton Utilities Well No. 4 at 921
N. Van Buren Street






Motion by Hirsch, second by Schumacher to approve a communication cabinet easement located at
Stoughton Utilities Well. No. 4 at 921 N. VVan Buren St. Motion carried 11-0.

Adjournment:

Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to adjourn at 10:19 p.m. Motion carried 11-0.

Respectfully Submitted,
Holly Licht, City Clerk





		Exhibit 1

		Exhibit 2

		Exhibit 3

		2020-09-01_Order_9amendment

		Order_9_spanish



		Exhibit 4

		Exhibit 5

		Exhibit 6

		Exhibit 7

		Exhibit 8

		Exhibit 9

		Exhibit 10








To Stoughton City Council

| am requesting that the City Council grant me an extension to the written and oral arguments. | have
had ongoing health issues and repeatedly been in and out of the hospital. | received the transcripts of
the public safety committee meeting one day before the written and oral arguments are due. The
report the public safety committee submitted is based on testimony that referenced a police report that
we have been denied access to. It would be a lack of due process to not grant us an extension. | realize
this request is coming close to the deadline and | apologize however my health issues have not allowed
for any earlier correspondence.

Sincerely,
Steven J Meyer

Owner Shakers Saloon LLC






STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF STOUGHTON DANE COUNTY

In the Matter of the Consideration

Of the Revocation of the Class B
Reserve Combination License Held by
Shakers Saloon, LLC

COMPLAINANT’S RESPONSE ARGUMENT

INTRODUCTION

Shakers Saloon, LLC (“Shakers”) squandered the second chance the City of
Stoughton provided. Shakers held parties during a global pandemic in contravention of
Dane County public health orders; a shooting occurred on its premises; it refused to
cooperate with police officers; and it over-served patrons. These egregious acts can lead
to only one result: revocation of Shakers’ liquor license.

ARGUMENT
. The Public Safety Committee Made the Correct Decision.

The Public Safety Committee correctly determined revocation was appropriate. The
thorough report stands on its own and does not require further support. Complainant fully
agrees with the report’s findings and conclusions, and the City Council should adopt the
recommendation.

1. There is no Due Process Violation.
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Shakers did not provide any written argument, but did make a baseless assertion that
it would be denied Due Process. In reality, Shakers has had every opportunity to present
its case, and was provided Due Process in these proceedings.

Constitutional Due Process requires “notice and opportunity for hearing appropriate
to the nature of the case.” Cleveland Bd. of Educ. v. Loudermill, 470 U.S. 532, 542 (1985).
Shakers received notice of the hearing, and had an opportunity to present its side of the
story at the revocation hearing. It had an opportunity to cross-examine witnesses, and call
its own witnesses. All statutory procedures and ordinance requirements were followed in
this case.

Contrary to Shakers’ claims, it had more than enough time to prepare for the hearing
and written argument. Shakers was provided a copy of the Complaint in late October. The
initial revocation hearing was scheduled for November 5, 2020. Shakers then requested to
postpone the hearing, which was granted. The rescheduled revocation hearing took place
on December 3. Since November 4™ Shakers has had contact information for the
complainant’s counsel. The complainant’s attorney emailed Shakers’ representative
Bradley Dillman on November 30, but did not receive a response. Shakers never even
attempted to contact the complainant to request evidence. Had Shakers made any requests
prior to the hearing, it could have received evidence. Indeed, the initial revocation hearing
was supposed to occur within ten days of the summons being issued. Wis. Stat.
8 125.12(2)(ar). However, Shakers was given substantially more time to prepare. Yet,

they waited until the day of the December 3 revocation hearing to contact an attorney.
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Revocation Hearing Transcript at 14:5-7. Shakers is responsible for the position it is in
through its inaction, and it has no basis for any Due Process claim.

Arguing the process was unfair or violated any rights is disingenuous and
completely ignores Shakers’ complete lack of effort prior to the hearing. Therefore, the
Common Council should adopt the recommendation of the Public Safety Committee and
revoke Shakers’ liquor license.

Respectfully submitted this 8" day of January, 2021.

STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP
By_ Electronically signed by Rick Manthe

Rick Manthe (State Bar #1099199)
Of Attorneys for the City of Stoughton

222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900
P.O. Box 1784

Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1784

Email: rmanthe @staffordlaw.com
608.256.0226
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RESOLUTION NO. R-1-2021

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROJECT PLAN OF
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 4,
CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton (the “City”) has determined that use of Tax
Incremental Financing is required to promote development and redevelopment within the City;
and

WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 4 (the “District”) was created by the City on
March 23, 1999 as a blighted area district; and

WHEREAS, the City now desires to amend the Project Plan of the District (the
“Amendment”) in accordance with the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105 (the
"Tax Increment Law"); and

WHEREAS, such Amendment will allow excess revenue to be transferred to Tax
Incremental Districts No. 5 & 8 (the “Recipient Districts”) as permitted under Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105(6)(f)2.

WHEREAS, an amended Project Plan for the District has been prepared that includes:

a. A statement listing of the kind, number and location of all proposed public works or
improvements within the District, or to the extent provided in Wisconsin Statutes
Sections 66.1105(2)(f)1.k. and 66.1105(2)(f)1.n., outside of the District;

b. An economic feasibility study;

A detailed list of estimated project costs;

A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time

when the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred,;

A map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the District;

A map showing proposed improvements and uses in the District;

Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, map, building codes and City

ordinances;

A list of estimated non-project costs;

A statement of the proposed plan for relocation of any persons to be displaced;

A statement indicating how the amendment of the District promotes the orderly

development of the City;

k. An opinion of the City Attorney or of an attorney retained by the City advising that the
Project Plan is complete and complies with Wisconsin Statutes Section
66.1105(4)(f).; and

Lo
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WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was sent to the
chief executive officers of Dane County, the Stoughton Area School District, and the Madison
Area Technical College District, and any other entities having the power to levy taxes on
property located within the District, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax
Increment Law; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law, the
Planning Commission, on January 11, 2021 held a public hearing concerning the proposed
amendment to the Project Plan of the District, providing interested parties a reasonable
opportunity to express their views thereon; and

City of Stoughton Wisconsin TID No. 4 Amendment Council Resolution





WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Planning Commission adopted the Project
Plan, and recommended to the Common Council that it amend the Project Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of
Stoughton that:

The boundaries of the District named "Tax Incremental District No. 4, City of

That this Amendment is effective as of the date of adoption of this resolution.
The Common Council finds and declares that:

(a) The improvement of such area is likely to enhance significantly the value of
substantially all of the other real property in the District.

(b) The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District will
likely be devoted to retail business at the end of the District's maximum
expenditure period, pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b).

(c) Under the amended Project Plan, excess tax increments will be transferred to

(d) The District and the Recipient Districts lie within the same overlapping taxing

(e) The District has sufficient revenue to pay for all current Project Costs and has
sufficient excess revenue to pay for eligible project costs of the Recipient

() The Recipient Districts are blighted area districts which qualifies it as an
eligible recipient of excess revenue.
The Project Plan for "Tax Incremental District No. 4, City of Stoughton" (see

Exhibit A), as amended, is approved, and the City further finds the Project Plan is
feasible and in conformity with the master plan of the City.

day of , 2021.

Mayor

1.
Stoughton” remain unchanged.
2.
3.
the Recipient Districts.
jurisdictions.
Districts.
4,
Adopted this
City Clerk

City of Stoughton Wisconsin TID No. 4 Amendment Council Resolution





EXHIBIT A -

PROJECT PLAN

[DISTRIBUTED SEPARATELY]





CITY OF STOUGHTON

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
207 S Forrest St, Stoughton, WI. 53589

(608) 873-6677 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us

Date: December 3, 2020
To: Plan Commission
From: Ryan Wiesen

Assistant Director of Finance
Subject:  TIF 4 Amendment to donate excess increment to TIF 5 and 8 and public hearing request.

TIF 4’s expenditure period is ending in March 2021 and all project costs are expected to be cover by tax
increment at that time. State law requires the city to close the TIF at that time unless an allocation
amendment is approved prior to March 2021.

An allocation amendment will permit TIF 4 to donate excess increment to TIF 5 and 8. The allocation

amendment will allow TIF 4 to collect tax revenue through tax year 2026, payable 2027 and generate
approximately $1,055,000 in excess increment. TIF 5 and 8 will use the TIF 4 contributions to limit the
city’s need to subsidize the TIF 5 and 8 via general property taxes or loans.

TIF 5 is projected to receive $783,000. TIF 8 is projected to receive $271,000. The actual amounts
contributed will vary depending on final costs in TIF 4, tax base development in the TIFs, and actual
expenditures incurred in TIF 5 and 8 in future years.

Ehlers will be preparing the allocation amendment for the city. Below is a brief timeline of the actions
needed to approve the allocation amendment. The first step is for the plan commission to call a public
hearing on January 11, 2020 to consider the allocation amendment.

December 14, 2020, 6:00 pm: Plan Commission makes motion to call for a public hearing.

January 11, 2021, 5:30 pm: Joint Review Board reviews plan, appoints chair and public member and
sets meeting date.

January 11, 2021, 6:00 pm: Plan Commission public hearing on amendment. Review and approval.
January 12, 2021, 7:00 pm: Common Council reviews and adopts resolution approving the amendment.
January to February 2021: Joint Review Board meets and approves amendment.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & REDEVELOPMENT

December 1, 2020

PROJECT PLAN AMENDMENT
Tax Incremental District No. 4

(Downtown)

City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

Organizational Joint Review Board Meeting Held: Scheduled for January 11, 2021
Public Hearing Held: Scheduled for January 11, 2021
Approval by Plan Commission: Scheduled for January 11, 2021
Adoption by Common Council: Scheduled for January 12, 2021
Approval by the Joint Review Board: TBD

= EHI ERS BUILDING COMMUNITIES, IT'S WHAT WE DO,
- N , 7 info@ehlers-inc.com - 1(800Q) 552-171 G5 www.ehlers-in¢c.com
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SECTION 1:
Executive Summary

Description of District
Tax Incremental District (“TID”) No. 4 (“District”) is a 29.82-acre Blighted Area
District created on March 23, 1999. The District was created to:

e Eliminate blight in the Downtown by upgrading public infrastructure and
provide grants to businesses and property owners to improve their
buildings, among other things.

The first amendment occurred in September 2006, allowing for TID 4 to receive
excess revenue from TID 2. The second amendment occurred in January 2010
for the purpose of adding territory and project costs, including project costs
within a half-mile of the District boundaries.

Purpose of Amendment
The purpose of this amendment, referred to hereafter as the Plan, the
Amendment, or the Plan Amendment, is to:

e Allow excess revenue to be transferred to Tax Incremental District No. 5
and Tax Incremental District No. 8 (“Recipient Districts”) as permitted
under Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(6)(f)l. The Plan Amendment meets the
following criteria necessary to allow for the transfer of excess revenue:

1. The District and the Recipient District lie within the same overlapping
taxing jurisdictions.

2. The District is within its expenditure period, which expires March 23,
2021.

3. The District has enough revenue to pay for all current Project Costs
and has enough excess revenue to pay for eligible project costs of the
Recipient District.

4. Recipient Districts are blighted area districts which qualify as eligible
recipients of excess revenue.

Estimated Total Project Cost Expenditures

The City anticipates making total expenditures (sharing of increment with TID
5 and TID 8) of approximately $1,034,326 (“Project Costs”) to assist with the
overall cashflow of TID 5 and TID 8. New project costs for TID 4 only include
the revenue sharing with TID 5 and TID 8.

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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Incremental Valuation

The City does not expect that new value will result from this amendment, rather
it will allow TID 5 and TID 8 to have improved cashflow and closeout 2 years
and 17 years, respectively, earlier. However, the City does expect that TID 8 will
have future development that will cover future projects of TID 8.

Expected Termination of District

Based on the Economic Feasibility Study located within Section 8 of this Plan,
after the revenue sharing with TID 5 and TID 8, the City anticipates that the
District will generate enough tax increment to pay all Project Costs and
closeout at the mandatory closure date of March 23, 2026.

Summary of Findings
As required by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as documented in this Plan and the
exhibits contained and referenced herein, the following findings are made:

v" That “but for” the creation of this District, the development projected to
occur as detailed in this Plan: 1) would not occur; or 2) would not occur
in the manner, at the values, or within the timeframe desired by the City.
In reaching this determination, the City has considered:

Current and projected tax increment collections for the Recipient Districts
will be insufficient to pay for project costs already incurred and/or the
additional projects that need to be completed in the District to achieve the
objectives of the Project Plan.

v' The economic benefits of the District, as measured by increased
employment, business and personal income, and property value, are
sufficient to compensate for the cost of the improvements. In making this
determination, the City has considered the following information:

This amendment is to share excess revenue with underperforming TIDs. As
such, this amendment will not directly lead to increased employment,
business and personal income, and property value increases

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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v The benefits of the proposal outweigh the anticipated tax increments to
be paid by the owners of property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions.

Given that it is likely that the Recipient Districts will not achieve all of the
objectives of its Project Plan or in the same manner without the ability to
share in the surplus increments of the Donor District, the City reasonably
concludes that the overall additional benefits of the District outweigh the
anticipated tax increments to be paid by the owners of property in the
overlying taxing jurisdictions. It is further concluded that since the “but for”
test is satisfied, there would, in fact, be no foregone tax increments to be
paid in the event the Project Plan is not amended. Finding Required by
Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4m)(c)l.c.

v" The boundaries of the District are not being amended.

Improvements to be made in the District are likely to significantly enhance
the value of substantially all of the other real property in the District.

v' The Plan for the District is feasible and is in conformity with the Master Plan
of the City.

v' The City estimates that redevelopment of the territory within the District will
likely include retail business.

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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SECTION 2:
Maps of Current District Boundary

Maps identifying the current boundaries of the Districts can be found on the
following pages. The District’s boundaries are not being amended.

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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TID 4 Boundary Map
1999 Creation & 2010 Addition of Parcels Amendment

City of Stoughton

Tax increment District #4
Stoughton, Wisconsin
Allocatson Amendment

| Map #1: Boundary and Parcel
1 Map with Overlapping Districts

o
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TID 8 Boundary Map
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SECTION 3:
Map Showing Existing Uses and Conditions

The District’s boundaries are not being amended. The “Map Showing Existing
Uses and Conditions” included within the District’s amended Project Plan dated
January 12, 2010 remains unchanged and is incorporated by reference as part
of this Plan Amendment.

SECTION 4.
Equalized Value Test

No territory will be added to the District. Demonstration of compliance with the
equalized value test is not required for this Plan Amendment.

SECTION 5:

Statement Listing the Kind, Number and Location
of All Proposed Public Works or Improvements
Within the District

No changes to Project Costs are planned. The “Statement Listing the Kind,
Number and Location of All Proposed Public Works or Improvements Within
the District” included in the District’s amended Project Plan dated January 12,
2010 remains unchanged and is incorporated by reference as part of this Plan
Amendment.

SECTION 6:
Map Showing Proposed Improvements and Uses

The District’s boundaries are not being amended. The “Map Showing Proposed
Improvements and Uses” included within the District’s amended Project Plan
dated January 12, 2010 remains unchanged and is incorporated by reference as
part of this Plan Amendment.

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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SECTION 7:
Detailed List of Estimated Project Costs

No changes to Project Costs are planned. The “Detailed List of Estimated
Project Costs” included in the District’s amended Project Plan dated January 12,
2010 remains unchanged and is incorporated by reference as part of this Plan
Amendment.

While not considered to be a Project Cost, this Plan Amendment provides
authority for the District to transfer excess revenue to TID 5 and TID 8.

SECTION 8:

Economic Feasibility Study, Description of the
Methods of Financing Estimated Project Costs and
the Time When Related Costs or Monetary
Obligations are to be Incurred

This Section includes an updated forecast of the valuation increases expected
within the District, the associated tax increment collections, a summary of how
remaining Project Costs would be financed, and a projected cash flow
demonstrating that the District remains economically feasible.

Key Assumptions

Assuming the City’s current equalized TID Interim tax rate of $22.14 per
thousand of equalized value, and no economic appreciation or depreciation,
TID 4 is expected to generate approximately $7,866,100 in new incremental
value over the 27-year term of the District as shown in Table 1.

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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Table 1 - Development Assumptions - TID 4

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #4

Development Assumptions

Construction Year Growth Annual Total Construction Year
Needed
Prior to 2018 7,607,900 Prior to 2018

20 2018 379,500 2018 20

21 2019 (121,300) 2019 21

22 2020 0 2020 22

23 2021 0 2021 23

24 2022 0 2022 24

25 2023 0 2023 25

26 2024 0 2024 26

Totals 0 15,474,000
Notes:

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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Table 2 - Tax Increment Projection Worksheet - TID 4

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #4

Tax Increment Projection Worksheet

Base Value
Appreciation Factor
Base Tax Rate

Rate Adjustment Factor

Type of District

District Creation Date

Valuation Date

Max Life (Years)

Expenditure Period/Termination
Revenue Periods/Final Year
Extension Eligibility/Years
Eligible Recipient District

Years Extended

Construction Inflation Total Revenue
Year Value Added Valuation Year  Increment Increment Year Tax Rate Tax Increment
19 2017 -36,400 2018 0 7,607,900 2019 $22.96
20 2018 379,500 2019 0 7,987,400 2020 $22.58
21 2019 -121,300 2020 0 7,866,100 2021 $22.14
22 2020 0 2021 0 7,866,100 2022 $22.14
23 2021 0 2022 0 7,866,100 2023 $22.14
24 2022 0 2023 0 7,866,100 2024 $22.14
25 2023 0 2024 0 7,866,100 2025 $22.14
26 2024 0 2025 0 7,866,100 2026 $22.14

Notes:

Actual results will vary depending on development, inflation of overall tax rates.
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Financing and Implementation

The initial projects identified in the plan are intended to be funded with the
cashflow of the district and the revenue sharing. Based on the Project Cost
expenditures as included within the cash flow exhibit (Table 4), the District is
projected to accumulate sufficient funds by the year 2026 to pay off all Project
cost liabilities and obligations. The projected closure is based on the various
assumptions noted in this Plan and will vary dependent on actual Project Costs
incurred and the actual amount of tax increments collected.

Table 3 - Financing Plan

Since no financing except the anticipated revenue sharing is to take place, the
cashflows starting on Page 15 of this plan incorporate the financing plan.
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Table 4 - Cash Flow - TID 4 - Before Sharing

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #4

Cash Flow Projection

Projected Revenues Projected Expenditures Balances
Year Interest
Tax Earnings/ Land Sales Intergov. Total Total Debt Service Capital Revolving  Professional Total Principal

Increments (Cost) / Misc Rev Revenues Revenues Principal Interest Expenditures  Loan Fund Services Admin. Expenditures Annual Cumulative  Outstanding Year
2019 174,694 23,264 5,000 2,634 205,592 100,000 4,800 39,618 65,000 10,100 150 219,668 (14,076) 1,118,748 100,000 2019
2020 180,369 5,450 104,000 6,982 296,801 100,000 1,625 950,000 235,000 20,000 150 1,306,775 | (1,009,974) 108,774 o| 2020
2021 174,190 218 6,900 181,308 0 0 100,000 10,000 150 110,150 71,158 179,931 0 2021
2022 174,190 360 6,900 181,450 0 0 10,000 150 10,150 171,300 351,231 0 2022
2023 174,190 702 6,900 181,792 0 0 10,000 150 10,150 171,642 522,873 0 2023
2024 174,190 1,046 6,900 182,136 0 0 10,000 150 10,150 171,986 424,831 0 2024
2025 174,190 850 6,900 181,940 0 0 10,000 150 10,150 171,790 596,621 0 2025
2026 174,190 1,193 6,900 182,283 0 0 10,000 150 10,150 172,133 768,753 2026
Total 1,400,201 33,083 109,000 51,016 1,593,300 200,000 6,425 989,618 400,000 90,100 1,200 1,687,343 Total

Notes: - per 2019 audit Projected TID Closure
Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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Table 4 - Cash Flow - TID 4 - After Sharing

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #4

Cash Flow Projection

Projected Revenues Expenditures Balances
Year Interest
Tax Earnings/ Land Sales Intergov. Total Total Debt Service Capital Revolving  Donation Donation Prof. Total Principal

Increments (Cost) /MiscRev Revenues Revenues | Principal Interest | Expenditures LoanFund toTID5 toTID8 Services Admin. Expenditures Annual Cumulative Outstanding Year
2019 174,694 23,264 5,000 2,634 205,592 100,000 4,800 39,618 65,000 0 0 10,100 150 219,668 (14,076) 1,118,748 100,000 2019
2020 180,369 5,450 104,000 6,982 296,801 100,000 1,625 950,000 235,000 20,000 150 1,306,775 | (1,009,974) 108,774 0 2020
2021 174,190 0 6,900 181,090 0 0 100,000 183,153 10,000 150 293,303 (112,213) (3,439) 0 2021
2022 174,190 7) 6,900 181,083 0 0 153,849 20,530 10,000 150 184,529 (3,446) (6,885) o 2022
2023 174,190 (14) 6,900 181,076 0 0 154,200 20,179 10,000 150 184,529 (3,453) (10,338) 0 2023
2024 174,190 (21) 6,900 181,069 0 0 152,163 22,216 10,000 150 184,529 (3,460) (13,798) 0 2024
2025 174,190 (28) 6,900 181,062 0 0 161,620 4,332 10,000 150 176,102 4,960 (8,838) 0 2025
2026 174,190 (18) 6,900 181,072 0 0 162,084 10,000 150 172,234 8,838 0 2026
Total 1,400,203 28,626 109,000 51,016 1,588,845 200,000 6,425 989,618 400,000 783,916 250,410 90,100 1,200 2,721,669 Total

Notes: - per 2019 audit Projected TID Closure
Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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Table 4 - Cash Flow - TID 5 Before Sharing

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #5

Cash Flow Projection

Projected Revenues Expenditures Balances
Year Interest
Tax Earnings/ Total Total Debt Service Capital Total Principal

Increments (Cost) Grants Levy Support  Revenues Principal Interest Expenditures ~ Admin. | Expenditures Annual Cumulative  Outstanding Year
2019 0 1,311 39,592 40,903 53,462 54,199 21,753 1,000 130,414 (89,511) (677,594) 1,412,478 2019
2020 50,678 300 39,592 90,570 55,475 47,046 2,000 104,521 (13,951) (691,545) 1,357,003 2020
2021 49,617 39,592 89,209 67,708 45,230 5,000 117,938 (28,729) (720,274) 1,289,294 2021
2022 49,617 39,592 65,000 154,209 111,461 42,388 5,000 158,849 (4,640) (724,914) 1,177,833 2022
2023 49,617 39,592 65,000 154,209 115,700 38,500 5,000 159,200 (4,991)  (729,905) 1,062,133 | 2023
2024 49,617 39,592 65,000 154,209 117,673 34,490 5,000 157,163 (2,954) (732,859) 944,461 2024
2025 49,617 39,592 75,000 164,209 131,411 30,209 5,000 166,620 (2,411) (735,270) 813,049 2025
2026 49,617 39,592 75,000 164,209 136,247 25,837 5,000 167,084 (2,875) (738,145) 676,803 2026
2027 49,617 39,592 80,000 169,209 147,745 21,384 5,000 174,129 (4,920) (743,065) 529,058 2027
2028 49,617 39,592 89,209 99,781 17,551 5,000 122,332 (33,123) (776,188) 429,276 2028
2029 49,617 39,592 89,209 47,429 15,025 5,000 67,454 21,755 (754,433) 381,847 | 2029
2030 49,617 39,592 89,209 49,089 13,365 5,000 67,454 21,755 (732,678) 332,758 2030
2031 49,617 39,592 89,209 50,807 11,647 5,000 67,454 21,755 (710,923) 281,951 2031
2032 49,617 39,592 89,209 52,558 9,895 5,000 67,453 21,756 (689,167) 229,393 2032
2033 49,617 39,592 89,209 54,425 8,029 5,000 67,454 21,755 (667,412) 174,968 2033
2034 49,617 39,592 89,209 56,330 6,124 5,000 67,454 21,755 (645,657) 118,638 | 2034
2035 49,617 39,592 89,209 58,301 4,152 5,000 67,453 21,756 (623,901) 60,336 2035
2036 49,617 39,592 89,209 60,336 2,118 5,000 67,454 21,755 (602,146) 0 2036
2037 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 (517,937) 2037
2038 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 (433,728) 2038
2039 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 (349,519) 2039
2040 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 (265,310) 2040
Total 1,043,018 1,611 871,024 425,000 2,340,653 1,465,938 427,189 21,753 103,000 2,017,880 Total

Notes: - per 2019 audit Projected TID Closure
- 3 year extension
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Table 4 - Cash Flow - TID 5 After Sharing

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #5

Cash Flow Projection

Projected Revenues Expenditures Balances
Year Interest
Tax Earnings/  Intergov. Levy Donations Total Total Debt Service Capital Total Principal

Increments (Cost) Revenues Support fromTID4 Revenues | Principal Interest | Expenditures  Admin. | Expenditures Annual Cumulative  Outstanding Year
2019 0 1,311 39,592 40,903 53,462 54,199 21,753 1,000 130,414 (89,511) (677,594) 1,412,478 2019
2020 50,678 300 39,592 0 90,570 55,475 47,046 2,000 104,521 (13,951) (691,545) 1,357,003 2020
2021 49,617 39,592 0 89,209 67,708 45,230 5,000 117,938 (28,729)  (720,274) 1,289,294 | 2021
2022 49,617 39,592 153,849 243,058 111,461 42,388 5,000 158,849 84,209 (636,065) 1,177,833 2022
2023 49,617 39,592 154,200 243,409 115,700 38,500 5,000 159,200 84,209 (551,856) 1,062,133 2023
2024 49,617 39,592 152,163 241,372 117,673 34,490 5,000 157,163 84,209 (467,647) 944,461 2024
2025 49,617 39,592 161,620 250,829 131,411 30,209 5,000 166,620 84,209 (383,438) 813,049 2025
2026 49,617 39,592 162,084 251,293 | 136,247 25,837 5,000 167,084 84,209 (299,229) 676,803 | 2026
2027 49,617 39,592 80,000 169,209 147,745 21,384 5,000 174,129 (4,920) (304,149) 529,058 2027
2028 49,617 39,592 89,209 99,781 17,551 5,000 122,332 (33,123) (337,272) 429,276 2028
2029 49,617 39,592 89,209 47,429 15,025 5,000 67,454 21,755 (315,517) 381,847 2029
2030 49,617 39,592 89,209 49,089 13,365 5,000 67,454 21,755 (293,762) 332,758 2030
2031 49,617 39,592 89,209 50,807 11,647 5,000 67,454 21,755 (272,007) 281,951 2031
2032 49,617 39,592 89,209 52,558 9,895 5,000 67,453 21,756 (250,251) 229,393 2032
2033 49,617 39,592 89,209 54,425 8,029 5,000 67,454 21,755 (228,496) 174,968 2033
2034 49,617 39,592 89,209 56,330 6,124 5,000 67,454 21,755 (206,741) 118,638 2034
2035 49,617 39,592 89,209 58,301 4,152 5,000 67,453 21,756 (184,985) 60,336 [ 2035
2036 49,617 39,592 89,209 60,336 2,118 5,000 67,454 21,755 (163,230) 0 2036
2037 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 (79,021) 2037
2038 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 5,188 2038
2039 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 89,397 2039
2040 49,617 39,592 89,209 5,000 5,000 84,209 173,606 2040
Total 1,043,018 1,611 871,024 80,000 783,916 2,779,569 | 1,465,938 427,189 21,753 103,000 2,017,880 Total

Notes: - per 2019 audit Projected TID Closure
- 3 year extension
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Table 4 - Cash Flow - TID 8 Before Sharing

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #8

Cash Flow Projection

Projected Revenues Projected Expenditures Balances
Interest
Tax Earnings/ Debt Total Total Debt Service Prof Total Principal
Year Increments (Cost) Grants Levy Support Proceeds Revenues Principal Interest Capital Services Admin. | Expenditures Annual Cumulative  Outstanding Year
2019 0 4,669 300,001 304,670 0 22,928 461,239 46,834 9,648 540,649 (235,979) (16,681) 728,319 2019
2020 0 232,235 232,235 0 17,289 183,065 25,000 7,000 232,354 (119) (16,800) 728,319 2020
2021 5,596 670,174 24,741 260,000 960,511 0 24,740 929,083 25,000 5,000 983,823 (23,312) (40,112) 988,319 2021
2022 5,596 150,000 155,596 98,546 30,286 25,000 5,000 158,832 (3,236) (43,348) 889,773 2022
2023 5,596 125,000 130,596 102,603 26,734 5,000 134,337 (3,741) (47,088) 787,171 2023
2024 5,596 125,000 130,596 104,435 22,991 5,000 132,426 (1,830) (48,918) 682,736 2024
2025 5,596 125,000 130,596 108,507 19,052 5,000 132,560 (1,964) (50,882) 574,229 2025
2026 5,596 125,000 130,596 113,105 14,950 5,000 133,056 (2,460) (53,341) 461,123 2026
2027 5,596 125,000 130,596 117,194 11,223 5,000 133,418 (2,822) (56,163) 343,929 2027
2028 5,596 125,000 130,596 118,024 7,905 5,000 130,929 (333) (56,496) 225,905 2028
2029 5,596 60,000 65,596 53,379 5,565 5,000 63,945 1,651 (54,844) 172,526 2029
2030 5,596 5,596 12,330 4,744 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (71,323) 160,196 2030
2031 5,596 5,596 12,669 4,405 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (87,801) 147,526 2031
2032 5,596 5,596 13,018 4,057 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (104,280) 134,509 2032
2033 5,596 5,596 13,376 3,699 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (120,759) 121,133 2033
2034 5,596 5,596 13,743 3,331 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (137,237) 107,389 2034
2035 5,596 5,596 14,121 2,953 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (153,716) 93,268 2035
2036 5,596 5,596 14,510 2,565 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (170,195) 78,758 2036
2037 5,596 5,596 14,909 2,166 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (186,673) 63,849 2037
2038 5,596 5,596 15,319 1,756 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (203,152) 48,531 2038
2039 5,596 5,596 15,740 1,335 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (219,631) 32,791 2039
2040 5,596 5,596 16,173 902 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (236,109) 16,618 2040
2041 5,596 5,596 16,618 457 5,000 22,075 (16,479) (252,588) 0 2041
2042 5,596 5,596 0 0 5,000 5,000 596 (251,992) 0 2042
2043 5,596 5,596 0 0 5,000 5,000 596 (251,396) 0 2043
2044 5,596 5,596 0 0 5,000 5,000 596 (250,800) 0 2044
2045 5,596 5,596 5,000 5,000 596 (250,204) 0 2045
2046 5,596 5,596 5,000 5,000 596 (249,608) 0 2046
Total 156,688 4,669 902,409 984,741 560,001 2,608,508 988,319 236,034 | 1,573,387 121,834 146,648 3,066,222 Total
Notes: - per 2019 audit Projected TID Closure
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Table 4 - Cash Flow - TID 8 After Sharing

City of Stoughton, WI

Tax Increment District #8

Cash Flow Projection

Projected Revenues Projected Expenditures Balances
Year Interest
Tax Earnings/ Donations Debt Total Total Debt Service Prof Total Principal

Increments (Cost) Grants Levy Support fromTID4  Proceeds Revenues Principal Interest Capital Services Admin. | Expenditures Annual Cumulative  Outstanding Year
2019 0 4,669 300,001 304,670 0 22,928 461,239 46,834 9,648 540,649 (235,979) (16,681) 728,319 2019
2020 0 232,235 232,235 0 17,289 183,065 25,000 7,000 232,354 (119) (16,800) 728,319 2020
2021 5,596 670,174 24,741 183,153 260,000 1,143,664 0 24,740 929,083 25,000 5,000 983,823 159,841 143,041 988,319 2021
2022 5,596 129,470 20,530 155,596 98,546 30,286 25,000 5,000 158,832 (3,236) 139,805 889,773 2022
2023 5,596 104,821 20,179 130,596 102,603 26,734 5,000 134,337 (3,741) 136,065 787,171 2023
2024 5,596 102,784 22,216 130,596 104,435 22,991 5,000 132,426 (1,830) 134,235 682,736 2024
2025 5,596 112,241 4,332 122,169 108,507 19,052 5,000 132,560 (10,391) 123,844 574,229 2025
2026 5,596 112,705 118,301 113,105 14,950 5,000 133,056 (14,755) 109,090 461,123 2026
2027 5,596 125,000 130,596 117,194 11,223 5,000 133,418 (2,822) 106,268 343,929 2027
2028 5,596 125,000 130,596 118,024 7,905 5,000 130,929 (333) 105,935 225,905 2028
2029 5,596 134,939 140,535 53,379 5,565 5,000 63,945 76,590 182,526 172,526 2029
2030 5,596 5,596 12,330 4,744 10,000 27,075 (21,479) 161,047 160,196 2030
2031 5,596 5,596 12,669 4,405 17,075 (11,479) 149,569 147,526 2031
2032 5,596 5,596 13,018 4,057 17,075 (11,479) 138,090 134,509 2032
2033 5,596 5,596 13,376 3,699 17,075 (11,479) 126,611 121,133 2033
2034 5,596 5,596 13,743 3,331 17,075 (11,479) 115,133 107,389 2034
2035 5,596 5,596 14,121 2,953 17,075 (11,479) 103,654 93,268 2035
2036 5,596 5,596 14,510 2,565 17,075 (11,479) 92,175 78,758 2036
2037 5,596 5,596 14,909 2,166 17,075 (11,479) 80,697 63,849 2037
2038 5,596 5,596 15,319 1,756 17,075 (11,479) 69,218 48,531 2038
2039 5,596 5,596 15,740 1,335 17,075 (11,479) 57,739 32,791 2039
2040 5,596 5,596 16,173 902 17,075 (11,479) 46,261 16,618 2040
2041 5,596 5,596 16,618 457 17,075 (11,479) 34,782 0 2041
2042 5,596 5,596 0 0 0 5,596 40,378 0 2042
2043 5,596 5,596 0 0 5,596 45,974 0 2043
2044 5,596 5,596 0 0 0 5,596 51,570 0 2044
2045 5,596 5,596 0 0 0 5,596 57,166 0 2045
2046 5,596 5,596 0 0 0 5,596 62,762 0 2046
Total 156,688 4,669 902,409 971,701 250,410 560,001 2,845,878 988,319 236,034 | 1,573,387 121,834 71,648 2,991,222 Total

Notes: - per 2019 audit Projected TID Closure
Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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SECTION 9:

Annexed Property

A tax incremental district cannot include annexed territory unless at least three
years have elapsed since the annexation, or certain other requirements are met.
No territory is being added to the District as part of this Plan Amendment.

SECTION 10:
Estimate of Property to be Devoted to Retail
Business

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. 8 66.1105(5)(b), the City estimates that redevelopment
of the territory within the District will likely include retail business.

SECTION 11:
Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Master
Plan, Map, Building Codes and City Ordinances

Zoning Ordinances

The proposed Plan Amendment is in general conformance with the City’s
current zoning ordinances. Individual properties may require rezoning at the
time of development. Land within the District zoned industrial at the time of
District creation will remain in a zoning classification suitable for industrial sites
for the life of the District.

Master (Comprehensive) Plan and Map

The proposed Plan Amendment is in general conformance with the City’s
Comprehensive Plan identifying the area as appropriate for blight district.
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Building Codes and Ordinances

Development within the District will be required to conform to State Building
Codes and will be subject to the City's permitting and inspection procedures.
The proposed Plan Amendment conforms to all relevant State and local
ordinances, plans, and codes. No changes to the existing regulations are
proposed or needed.

SECTION 12:
Statement of the Proposed Method for the
Relocation of any Persons to be Displaced

Should the continued implementation of this Plan require relocation of
individuals or business operations, relocations will be handled in compliance
with Wis. Stat. Chapter 32 and Wis. Admin. Code ADM 92.

SECTION 13:
How Amendment of the Tax Incremental District
Promotes the Orderly Development of the City

This Plan Amendment promotes the orderly development of the City by
eliminating blighted areas, providing necessary public infrastructure
improvements, and providing appropriate financial incentives for private
development projects. Through use of tax increment financing, the City can
attract new investment that results in increased tax base. Development will
occur in an orderly fashion in accordance with approved plans so that the
Projects will be compatible with adjacent land uses. Development of new uses
in the District will add to the tax base and will generate positive secondary
impacts in the community such as increased employment opportunities.
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SECTION 14:
List of Estimated Non-Project Costs

Non-project costs are public works projects which only partly benefit the
District. Costs incurred that do not benefit the District may not be paid with tax
increments. Examples of non-project costs are:

e A public improvement made within the District that also benefits
property outside the District. That portion of the total Project Costs
allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-project
cost.

e A public improvement made outside the District that only partially
benefits property within the District. That portion of the total Project
Costs allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-
project cost.

e Projects undertaken within the District as part of the implementation of
this Project Plan, the costs of which are paid fully or in part by impact
fees, grants, special assessments, or revenues other than tax increments.

No improvements to be made within the District will benefit property outside
the District. Furthermore, there will be no improvements made outside the
District that will only partially benefit the District.

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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SECTION 15:

Legal Opinion Advising Whether the Plan is
Complete and Complies with Wis. Stat. 8
66.1105(4)(f)

Mayor

City of Stoughton

381 E Main St

Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589

RE: Project Plan Amendment for Tax Incremental District No. 4
Dear Mayor:

Wisconsin Statute 66.1105(4)(f) requires that a project plan for a tax
incremental financing district include an opinion provided by the City Attorney
advising as to whether the plan is complete and complies with Wisconsin
Statute 66.1105. As City Attorney for the City of Stoughton, | have been asked
to review the above-referenced project plan amendment for compliance with
the applicable statutory requirements. Based upon my review, in my opinion,
the amended Project Plan for the City of Stoughton Tax Incremental District
No. 4 is complete and complies with the provisions of Wisconsin Statute
66.1105.

Sincerely,

City Attorney

Tax Incremental District No. 4 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton
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Holly Licht

From: Holly Licht

Sent: Friday, January 8, 2021 10:23 AM

To: Holly Licht

Subject: FW: TIF No. 4 Amendment Schedule

Attachments: 11-R-163-2020 TID 4 Project Plan Amendment_10_13_2020_01_21_44.pdf; 05 TIF 4
Amendment.pdf

From: Jamin Friedl|

Sent: Tuesday, December 15, 2020 9:03 AM

To: Ben Heili <bheili@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Brett Schumacher <bschumacher@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Fred Hundt
<fhundt@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Jean Ligocki <jligocki@ci.stoughton.wi.us>;
Joyce Tikalsky <JTikalsky@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Leonard Doom <ldoom@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Lisa Reeves
<LReeves@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Phil Caravello <pcaravello@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Regina Hirsch
<RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Sid Boersma <SBoersma@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Thomas Majewski
<TMajewski@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>

Subject: TIF No. 4 Amendment Schedule

Good morning,

Although | do not recall Plan Commission items brought to Council for action the following night being contested in the
past, | wanted to notify you that Plan Commission approval of the TIF No. 4 amendment is set for January 11, 2021 and
Council approval the following night (January 12, 2021). | wanted to bring this to your attention because the amount of
time you will have to review the Council packet information will be the same as if this item were coming from the
Finance Committee on the same night. Similar to most Council meetings, the packet containing the amendment
information will be sent out the Friday before (January 8, 2021). It is possible the information may be available earlier
with the Plan Commission and/or the Joint Review Board meeting materials, but the latest you will see it is January 8,
2021.

The schedule below was agreed to by the Plan Commission yesterday evening. There is a fair amount of work that goes
into planning TIF amendments (publication in the local newspaper, Public Hearing notices, Joint Review Board member
schedule conflicts, Municipal Advisor scheduling, etc.), so if you have any concerns please let me know at your earliest
convenience. It should be noted that the timing below has been expedited to account for the TIF 4 expenditure period
closing in March 2021.

- December 14, 2020 — Plan Commission action to schedule a Public Hearing

- January 11, 2021 at 5:30 pm — Joint Review Board reviews plan amendment

- January 11, 2021 at 6:00 pm — Plan Commission holds Public Hearing and approves the amendment
- January 12, 2021 at 7:00 pm — Council reviews and adopts resolution approving the amendment

- TBD - Joint Review Board meets and approves the amendment

| apologize for any inconvenience this may cause, but we will be happy to answer any questions you may have along the
way to make sure you are comfortable with the information that will be presented.

Thank you,

Jamin Friedl, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller
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CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, W1 53589

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS
APPROVAL OF A PORTION OF THE TOWN OF RUTLAND TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON,
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends Council approval unanimously

Fiscal Impact: Unknown
File Number: 0-1- 2021 First Reading: January 12, 2021
Second Reading: January 26, 2021
RECITALS

A Kettle Park West LLC (“Owner”) owns land in the Town of Rutland as described in Exhibit A
and shown in Exhibit B (the “Territory”) and is seeking to annex the Territory (part of parcel
#052/0510-013-8385-0) by unanimous approval to the City of Stoughton, pursuant to Wis.
Stat. § 66.0217(2).

B. The City of Stoughton Plan Commission has recommended that the Territory be annexed to the
City, and that the Territory be assigned a zoning classification of | — Institutional (Park).

C. The proposed annexation has been reviewed by the Wisconsin Department of Administration
(MBR #14357) to and has been determined to be in the public interest.

D. The population of the annexation area is 0.
E. The annexation represents approximately 4.010 acres from the Town of Rutland.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin,
does ordain as follows:

ORDINANCE

1. Recitals. The above recitals are material to and are incorporated in this Ordinance.

2. Territory Annexed. The Territory is annexed to the City of Stoughton pursuant to Wis.
Stat. 8 66.0217(2).

3. Effect of Annexation. From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the Territory
shall be a part of the City of Stoughton for any and all purposes provided by law, and all
persons coming or residing within such Territory shall be subject to all ordinances,

rules, and regulations governing the City of Stoughton.
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4, Zoning Designation. The Territory shall be zoned I — Institutional (Park).

5. Ward Designation. The Territory shall be added to Ward No. 9 of the City of
Stoughton.

6. Clerk Duties. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of and provide copies
of this Ordinance in accordance with the applicable Wisconsin Statutes.

7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as
provided by law.

APPROVED:

By:
Tim Swadley, Mayor

ATTEST:

Holly Licht, City Clerk
APPROVED:
PUBLISHED:
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EXHIBIT A

PARKLAND DEDICATION

Legal Description

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 01, Township 05 North, Range 10
East, Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the South Quarter corner of Section 01, aforesaid; thence North 00 degrees 04 minutes
33 seconds West along the East line of the Southwest Quarter, aforesaid, 1320.87 feet to the Southeast
corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter, also being the Point of Beginning; thence
North 87 degrees 05 minutes 33 seconds West along the South line of the Northeast Quarter of the
Southwest Quarter of Section 01, aforesaid, 521.10 feet; thence North 00 degrees 04 minutes 33
seconds West, 337.39 feet; thence South 86 degrees 42 minutes 21 seconds East, 521.30 feet to the
East line of the Southwest Quarter of Section 01, aforesaid; thence South 00 degrees 04 minutes 33
seconds East along said line, 333.87 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 174,661 square feet or 4.010 acres.
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EXHIBIT B
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Request for
Annexation Review

Wisconsin Department of Administration

WI Dept. of Administration

Municipal Boundary Review

PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
608-264-6102 Fax: 608-264-6104
wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.qov
htip:/[doa.wi.gov/imunicipalboundaryreview

Petitioner Information
Name: KETTLE PARK WEST, LLC

Office use only:

Address: C/O FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC

161 HORIZON DR., STE. 101A

VERONA, WI 53593

Email. DMJ@FORWARDDEVGROUP.COM

1. Town where property is located: RUTLAND

Petitioners phone;

2. Petitioned City or Village: STOUGHTON

608-848-9050

3. County where property is located: DANE

4. Population of the territory to be annexed: 0

Town clerk’'s phone:
608-455-3925

5. Area (in acres) of the territory to be annexed: 4.010

8. Tax parcel number(s} of territory to be annexed
(if the territory is part or all of an existing parcel):
052/051001383850

City/Village clerk’s phone:
608-873-6677

Contact Information if different than petitioner:

DAN.OCALLAGHAN@CARLSONBLACK.CO

M E-mait;

Representative’s Name and Address: Surveyor or Engineering Firm's Name & Address:
ATTY. DAN O'CALLAGHAN JSD PROFESSIONAL SERVIES, INC.
CARLSON BLACK O'CALLAGHAN &

BATTENBERG , LLLLP 161 HORIZON DR.

222 W. WASHINGTON AVE.,, STE., 705 VERONA, WI

MADISON, WI 53703

Phone: 608-888-1685 Phone: 608-848-5060

E-mail:

Required ltems to be provided with submission (to be compl'eted by petitioner):

1. X Legal Description meeting the requirements of 5.66.0217 (1) (c) [see attached annexation guide]

3. [X] Signed Petition or Notice of Intent to Circulate is included
4. Indicate Statutory annexation method used:

. Unanimous per s. 66.0217 (2), or,

OR

« [ | Direct by one-half approval per s. 66.0217 (3}

2. [X] Map meeting the requirements of 5. 86.0217 (1) (g) [see attached annexation guide]

5. Check or money order covering review fee [see next page for fee calculation]

(2012)






Annexation Review Fee Schedule
A Guide for Calculating the Fee Required by ss5.16.53 (4) and 66.0217, Wis. Stats.

Required Fees
There is an initial filing fee and a variable review fee

$350 Initial Filing Fee (required with the first submittal of all petitions)
$200 ~ 2 acres or less
$350 — 2.01 acres or more

$600 Review Fee (required with all annexation submittals except those that consist ONLY of road right-of-way)

$200—- 2 acresorless

$600—- 2.01to 10acres

$300 - 10.01to 50 acres
$1,000 - 50.01to 100 acres
$1,400 — 100.01 to 200 acres
$2,000 — 200.01 to 500 acres
$4,000 — Over 500 acres

$950 TOTAL FEE DUE (Add the Filing Fee to the Review Fee})

Include check or money order, payabie to: Department of Administration
Do not attach the check with staples. tape. ...

THE DEPARTMENT WILL NOT PROCESS
AN ANNEXATION PETITION THAT 1S NOT ACCOMPANIED
BY THE REQUIRED FEE.

THE DEPARTMENT’S 20-DAY STATUTORY REVIEW PERIOD
COMMENCES UPON RECEIPT OF THE PETITION AND REVIEW FEE

Shaded Area for Office Use Only
Date fee received: ” '-g; - 30D

payee: K =TT = Park W esT Le c Check Number: 2 (OO 2

Check Date: (- 30- 271

e






CARLSON BLACK

CARLSON BLACK O'CALLAGHAN & BATTENBERG LLP

Dan O’Callaghan

222 W. Washington Ave., Ste. 705
Madison, WI 53703-2745

direct: 608.888.1685
dan.ocallaghan@carlsonblack.com

November 10, 2020

VIA U.S. MAIL AND EMAIL RECEIVED

Holly Licht, City Clerk November 10, 2020
207 S. Forrest St.
Stoughton, WI 53589 Municipal Boundary Review

Wisconsin Dept. of Admin.

Re: Annexation Petition filed by Kettle Park West, LLC
Dear Ms. Licht:

On behalf of Kettle Park West, LLC, enclosed for filing please find a Petition for Direct
Annexation by Unanimous Consent, which seeks to annex approximately 4 acres from the Town
of Rutland to the City of Stoughton, as more fully described in the petition. Copies of the
petition are being filed with the Department of Administration and the Rutland Town Clerk.

Very truly yours,
CARLSON BLACK O’CALLAGHAN & BATTENBERG LLP
Ll ©
AN
Daniel O’Callaghan
Enclosure
CC: David Jenkins, Kettle Park West, LLC
Dawn George, Clerk, Town of Rutland

Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review, DOA
Rodney Scheel, Planning Director, City of Stoughton

CARLSON BLACK O'CALLAGHAN & BATTENBERG Lip carlsonblack.com
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PETITION FOR DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT
PURSUANT TO § 66.0217(2) OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES

The undersigned, constituting the only owner of the real property described on the
attached Exhibit A and depicted on the scale map attached as Exhibit B, which property is
currently located within the Town of Rutland and is contiguous to the City of Stoughton, hereby
petitions the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to annex said tetritory to the City of
Stoughton,

The territory proposed for annexation from the Town of Rutland to the City of Stoughton
consists of part of the foliowing tax parcel: 052/0510~013-8000-8. There are no electors residing
within the territory to be annexed and the population of the tetritory to be annexed is zero. The
territory to be annexed has no improvements.

The undersigned requests that this annexation be approved and take effect in the manner
provided for by law and that the City of Stoughton may designate a temporary zoning
classification which is consistent with City of Stoughton zoning ordinances.

Dated this 10th day of November , 2020,

OWNER:

KETTLE PARK WEST, LLC
By: Forward Development Group, LL.C, its manager

W)W OWA T

David M. Jenkins ger






Madison Regional Office

Professional Services, Inc. 161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101
Verona, WI| 53593
* Engineers ® Surveyors * Planners 608.848.5060

PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF

SECTION 01, TOWNSHIP 05 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Legal Description

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 01, Township 05 North, Range 10 East, Town of
Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the South Quarter corner of Section 01, aforesaid; thence North 00 degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds West
along the East line of the Southwest Quarter, aforesaid, 1320.87 feet to the Southeast corner of the Northeast Quarter of
the Southwest Quarter, also being the Point of Beginning; thence North 87 degrees 05 minutes 33 seconds West along
the South line of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 01, aforesaid, 521.10 feet; thence North 00
degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds West, 337.39 feet; thence South 86 degrees 42 minutes 21 seconds East, 521.30 feet to
the East line of the Southwest Quarter of Section 01, aforesaid; thence South 00 degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds East
along said line, 333.87 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 174,661 square feet or 4.010 acres.

¢ Idaho ¢ lllinois * Wisconsin

www.jsdinc.com

0000





EXHIBIT B

SCALE MAP

[Attached]
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TONY EVERS

GOVERNOR
JOEL BRENNAN
SECRETARY
DEPARTMENT OF Municipal Boundary Review
ADMINISTRATION PO Box 1645, Madison W1 53701
N Voice (608) 264-6102  Fax (608) 264-6104
20,160} Email: wimunicipalboundar yr eview@wi.gov

Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview

November 12, 2020 PETITION FILE NO. 14357
HOLLY LICHT, CLERK DAWN GEORGE, CLERK

CITY OF STOUGHTON TOWN OF RUTLAND

207 SFORREST ST 4177 OLD STAGE RD

STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724 BROOKLY N, WI 53521-9473

Subject: KETTLE PARK WEST ANNEXATION

Section 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats., provides that the annexation of landsto cities and villages within a county
having a population of 50,000 or more shall be reviewed by the Department of Administration in order to
determine if the proposed annexation isin the public interest or against the public interest. The proposed
annexation from the TOWN OF RUTLAND to the CITY OF STOUGHTON (see attached description)
must be reviewed pursuant to the statute.

To assist us in making this determination, we urge that you promptly supply the data requested on the
enclosed questionnaire (where possible) and return the questionnaire to the department.

The purpose of this questionnaire isto assist the department in determining "Whether the governmental
services, including zoning, to be supplied to the territory could clearly be better supplied by the town...."
The statute further stipulates that the department shall study the "shape of the proposed annexation and the
homogeneity of the territory with the annexing municipality.” In addition, we would appreciate receiving
from you any comments or information bearing on governmental services or shape and homogeneity that
would indicate whether the annexation isin or against the public interest.

Please return the questionnaire as soon as possible so that the information can be reviewed prior to the
department's statutory deadline of November 30, 2020. Direct any questions and comments to Erich
Schmidtke at (608) 264-6102. Thank you for your cooperation.

For additional information on annexation or other land use issues, visit our web site at
http://doa.wi.gov/municipal boundaryreview/.

Sincerely,

S

Erich Schmidtke

Enclosures





An nexation Review WI Dept. of Administration

Municipal Boundary Review

. u PO Box 1645
Questionnaire Madison Wi 53701

608-264-6102 Fax: 608-264-6104
Wisconsin Department of Administration imunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov

http://doa.wi.gov/imunicipalboundaryreview

Petitioner: Kettle Park West Petition Number: 14357
1. Territory to be annexed: |From TOWN OF RUTLAND To CITY OF STOUGHTON
2. Area (Acres). _H.0/0
3. Pick one: I Property Tax Payments OR 0O Boundary Agreement
a. Annual town property tax on territory to be annexed: a. Title of boundary agreement

$_ fo be conKirnted buf estmafed fo be < ’fc/ycar b. Year adopted
b. Total that will be paid to Town ¢. Participating jurisdictions

(annual tax multiplied by 5 years): es'fl maled ﬂé‘a d. Statutory authority (pick one)
c. Paid by: [ Petitioner 0O City O Village O s.66.0307 0O s.66.0225 O s.66.0301

O Other:

4. Resident Population: Electors: #, Total: __ (7

5. Approximate present land use of territory:
Residential: % Recreational: % Commercial: % Industrial: %

Undeveloped: _ /00 %

6. If territory is undeveloped, what is the anticipated use?
Residential: % Recreational: _ /00 % Commercial: % Industrial: %
Other: %

Comments: _ The th\;/ cuf:m:mh‘f 'M: pavce,[ Plo Le LtSc:p por Pﬂik ¢ ofor Space p‘“ﬁ”‘*"

7. Has a O preliminary or O final plat been submitted to the Plan Commission: O Yes & No L Pk
Plat Name: }\)Df Q'_ thes 'Dchcef gpa.(\ml/}, hu } is ch.;(lt.(m,‘} {o ;Ze, Hecuiuug (Lf ’{/"H EUQSTL

8. What is the nature of land use adjacent to this territory fn the city or village?
E- A r/t‘;c'icerv{ 'fo‘ Cily pm‘pe‘-‘{ y P}q,w,,;,;l o P/x}rh’ P open S(Bat‘e,

In the town?: _/V# W - Ag g S - Geweral Farmland Presesveduw E’wu.?

9. What are the basic service needs that precipitated the request for annexation?

[ Sanitary sewer Water supply O Storm sewers
O Police/Fire protection O EMS H  Zoning

Other Expa.vsq,.u or C-‘ty pa..-"i k; Opev S'ﬂuu;






10. Is the city/village or town capable of providing needed utility services?

City/Vilage [ Yes O No Town O Yes @ No

If yes, approximate timetable for providing service: City/Village Town
Sanitary Sewers immediately O O
or, write in number of years. 5 .
Av Ucbon Secvice Prea Ameadment 15 Neces sary bu‘;gcre ectansiom o ( Services 9o
Water Supply immediately o O fhis peepecty.
or, write in number of years. S -

Will provision of sanitary sewers and/or water supply to the territory proposed for annexation require capital
expenditures (i.e. treatment plant expansion, new lift stations, interceptor sewers, wells, water storage facilities)?

O Yes [E No

If yes, identify the nature of the anticipated improvements and their probable costs:

11. Planning & Zoning:
a. Do you have a comprehensive plan for the City/Village/Town? B Yes O No

Is this annexation consistent with your comprehensive plan? @ Yes O No

b. How is the annexation territory now zoned? __ (ouuly 2 VLS EP-35 Getianal Fasulsnd Fosersslion

c. How will the land be zoned and used if annexed? QH - Qu-*o\i chmé fo s}aj Thew /dlek; fwsf«iui.md (Pcm"v)

12. Elections: O New ward or [ Existing ward? Will the annexation create a new ward or join an existing ward? For
more information, please contact the Wisconsin Election Commission at (608) 266-8005, elections@wi.gov or see their

annexation checklist here: http://elections.wi.gov/forms/el-100

13. Other relevant information and comments bearing upon the public interest in the annexation:
The P(\L»;Ppgu_d" anwercdiow 16 s cluded 1w The Cﬁy‘_'.‘ Compre hiisiin Wlis T !5ec cre
Par"l 0( '“\L Cl(l{)i- '_."/hti parc el g Ccmd Guous '{0 Sfcugl‘ fen,  Huwie rP“’ /)ourwl)unc-s
and CLCM ace&/'f 1'(/ Cliy ~oweed laed -

Prepared by: 0O /'{own @ City O Vilage Please RETURN PROMPTLY to:
Name: Hcﬁfﬂ'vev g('.[wv/ wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Email: . . SC.I)Q(’? & a2, S?’ouq/)'fa»v, We. s Municipal Boundary Review

Phone: (&-O §) 573 -6619 i PO Box 1645, Madison WI| 53701
Date: 1) 2y / 2020 Fax: (608) 264-6104

(March 2018)





TONY EVERS

GOVERNOR
JOEL BRENNAN
SECRETARY
DEPARTMENT OF - .
Municipal Boundary Review
ADMINISTRATION PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
Voice (608) 264-6102  Fax (608) 264-6104
204 w1.6S Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview
November 30, 2020 PETITION FILE NO. 14357
HOLLY LICHT, CLERK DAWN GEORGE, CLERK
CITY OF STOUGHTON TOWN OF RUTLAND
207 S FORREST ST 4177 OLD STAGE RD
STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724 BROOKLYN, WI 53521-9473

Subject: KETTLE PARK WEST ANNEXATION

The proposed annexation submitted to our office on November 10, 2020, has been reviewed and found to be in the
public interest. In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the
Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with the
annexing village or city...." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The statute also
requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide needed municipal services to
the territory. The subject petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the CITY OF
STOUGHTON, which is able to provide needed municipal services.

Note: The boundary of the territory to be annexed as shown on the scale map does not match the boundary described
in the legal description; please revise so that the boundary map and description match prior to inclusion in the
annexation ordinance.

Note: The Dane County Land Records Review Analyst has the following comments: The legal description used as a
description for the annexed lands does not match the area shown on the corresponding map. The legal description
also does not match the description of lands deeded to the petitioner, so if the described lands are annexed it would
include lands of others. If the legal description were to be amended to match the lands displayed on the map it would
then include lands of the petitioner.

The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. Stats.,
which states:

"The clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of administration a
certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each company that provides any
utility service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance with the register of deeds and file a
signed copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school district..."

State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through failure to file
with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, including a statement
certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR number 14357 with your ordinance.
Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on "Help on How to Submit Municipal Records".
Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin
Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary Review, PO Box 1645, Madison W1 53701-1645.




http://mds.wi.gov/

mailto:mds@wi.gov



Page 2 PETITION FILE NO. 14357
November 30, 2020

The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?1D=2431
Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review.

Sincerely,

S

Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review cc: petitioner



http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2431
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CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, W1 53589

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS
APPROVAL OF A PORTION OF THE TOWN OF RUTLAND TO THE CITY OF STOUGHTON,
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends Council approval unanimously
Fiscal Impact: Unknown

File Number: O -2- 2021 First Reading: January 12, 2021
Second Reading: January 26, 2021

RECITALS

A JUNCTION 138, LLC (“Owner”) owns land in the Town of Rutland (parcel #052/0510-121-
8031-0) as described in Exhibit A and shown in Exhibit B (the “Territory”) and is seeking to
annex the Territory by unanimous approval to the City of Stoughton, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §

66.0217(2).

B. The City of Stoughton Plan Commission has recommended that the Territory be annexed to the
City, and that the Territory be assigned a temporary zoning classification of RH - Rural
Holding.

C. The proposed annexation has been reviewed by the Wisconsin Department of Administration

(MBR #14356) and has been determined to be in the public interest.
D. The population of the proposed land is 0.

E. The annexation represents approximately 1.152 acres from the Town of Rutland.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin,
does ordain as follows:

ORDINANCE
1. Recitals. The above recitals are material to and are incorporated in this Ordinance.
2. Territory Annexed. The Territory is annexed by unanimous approval to the City of

Stoughton pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0217(2).

3. Effect of Annexation. From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the Territory

shall be a part of the City of Stoughton for any and all purposes provided by law, and all
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\01-12-2021\08a-Junction 138 Annexation 2021.doc






persons coming or residing within such Territory shall be subject to all ordinances,
rules, and regulations governing the City of Stoughton.

4. Temporary Zoning Designation. The Territory shall be temporarily zoned R-H Rural
Holding.

5. Ward Designation. The Territory shall be added to Ward No. 5 of the City of
Stoughton.

6. Clerk Duties. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of and provide copies
of this Ordinance in accordance with the applicable Wisconsin Statutes.

7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as
provided by law.

APPROVED:

By:
Tim Swadley, Mayor

ATTEST:

Holly Licht, City Clerk
APPROVED:
PUBLISHED:

T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\01-12-2021\08a-Junction 138 Annexation 2021.doc





EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 05 North, Range 10 East, Town
of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 12, aforesaid; thence North 87 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds
West along the North line of the Northeast Quarter, aforesaid, 294.30 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence
South 02 degrees 53 minutes 47 seconds West, 250.87 feet; thence North 87 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds
West, 200.00 feet; thence North 02 degrees 53 minutes 47 seconds East, 250.87 feet to the North line of the
Northeast Quarter; thence South 87 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds East along said line, 200.00 feet to the
Point of Beginning.

Containing 50,174 square feet or 1.152 acres.

T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\01-12-2021\08a-Junction 138 Annexation 2021.doc
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CARLSON BLACK

CARLSON BLACK Q' CALLAGHAN & BATTENBERG wp

Dan O'Callaghan

222 W. Washington Ave., Ste. 705
Madison, WI 53703-2745

direct: 608.888.1685
dan.ocallaghan@carlsonblack.com

Qctober 19, 2020

VIA U.S. MAIL ‘ RECEIVED

Attn: Municipal Boundary Review

Department of Administration October 22, 2020
State of Wisconsin Municioal B d Revi
PO Box 1645 unicipal Boundary Review
Madison Wi 53701 _ Wisconsin Dept. of Admin.

Re:  Annexation Petition filed by Junction 138, LLC with the City of Stoughton
Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of the annexation petition recently filed with the City of Stoughton by
Junction 138, LLC concerning property currently located within the Town of Rutland.

Very truly yours,

CARLSON BLACK Q'CALLAGHAN & BATIENBERG LLP

Daniel O’'Callaghan

Enclosure

CARLSON BLACK O'CALLAGHAN & BATTENBERG wp carisenblack.com
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PETITION FOR DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT
PURSUANT TO § 66.0217(2) OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES

The undersigned, constituting the only. owner of the real property described on the

aitached Exhibit A and depicted on the scale map attached as Exhibit B, which property is
currently located within the Town of Rutland and is contiguous to the City of Stoughton, hereby
petitions the Common Council of the City of Stoughton fo annex said territory to the City of
Stoughton.

The territory proposed for annexation from the Town of Rutland to the City of Stoughton
includes the following tax parcel: 052/0510-121-8031-0. There are no electors residing within
the territory to be annexed and the population of the tesritory to be annexed is zero. The territory
to be annexed has no improvements. '

The undersigned requests that this annexation be approved and take effect in the manner

provided for by law and that the City of Stoughton may designate a temporary zoning
classification which is consistent with City of Stoughton zoning ordinances.

Dated this 30th day of September, 2020,

OWNER: -

JUNCTION 138, LLC

By:
David M. Jenkin ger






EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 05 North, Range 10 East, Town of
Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin, more particuiarly described as foliows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 12, aforesaid; thence North 87 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West
along the North line of the Northeast Quarter, aforesaid, 294.30 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence South 02 degrees
53 minutes 47 seconds West, 250,87 feet; thence North 87 degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds West, 200.00 feet; thence
North 02 degrees 53 minutes 47 seconds East, 250.87 feet to the North line of the Northeast Quarter; thence South 87
degrees 05 minutes 45 seconds East along said line, 200.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 50,174 square feet or 1.152 acres.
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Request for
Annexation Review

Wisconsin Department of Administration

WI Dept. of Administration

Municipal Boundary Review

PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
608-264-6102 Fax: 608-264-6104
wimunicipalboundarvreview@wi.gov
http:/ldoa.wi.gov/imunicipalboundaryreview

Petitioner Information
Name: JUNCTION 138, L1L.C

Office use only:

Address: C/O0 FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC

161 HORIZON DR., STE. 101A

VERONA, WI 53593

Email; DMJ@FORWARDDEVGROUP.COM

1. Town where property is located: RUTLAND

Petitioners phone:

2. Petitioned City or Village: STOUGHTON

608-848-9050

3. County where property is located: DANE

4, Population of the territory to be annexed: 0

Town clerk’s phone:
608-455-3925

5. Area (in acres) of the territory to be annexed: 1.152

6. Tax parcel number(s) of territory to be annexed
(if the territory is part or all of an existing parcel): 052/0510-121-
8031-0

City/Village clerk’s phone:
608-873-6677

Contact Information if different than petitioner:

DAN.OCALLAGHAN@CARLSONBLACK.CO

M E-mail:

Representative’s Name and Address: Surveyor or Engineering Firm's Name & Address:
ATTY. DAN O'CALLAGHAN JSD PROFESSIONAL SERVIES, INC.
CARLSON BLACK O'CALLAGHAN &

BATTENBERG , LLP 161 HORIZON DR.

222 W. WASHINGTON AVE., STE,, 705 VERONA, W1

MADISON, WI 53703

Phone: 608-888-1685 Phone: 608-848-5060

E-mail:

Required Items to be provided with submission (to be completed by petitioner):

1. Legal Description meeting the requirements of $.66.0217 (1) (c} [see attached annexation guide]

3. [X] Signed Petition or Notice of Intent to Circulate is included
4. Indicate Statutory annexation method used:

. Unanimous per s. 66.0217 (2), or,

OR

o [ ] Direct by one-half approval per . 66.0217 (3)

2. Map meeting the requirements of s. 66.0217 (1) (g} [see attached annexation guide]

5. Check or money order covering review fee [see next page for fee calculation]

(2012)






Annexation Review Fee Schedule
A Guide for Calculating the Fee Required by ss.16.53 (4) and 66.0217, Wis. Stats.

Required Fees
There is an initial filing fee and a variable review fee

$200 Initial Filing Fee (required with the first submittal of all petitions)
$200 — 2 acres or less
$350 - 2.01 acres or more

$200 Review Fee (required with all annexation submittals except those that consist ONLY of road right-of-way)

$200 - 2 acres or less

$600- 2.01to 10 acres

$800 - 10.01to 50 acres
$1,000 — 50.01 to 100 acres
$1,400 — 100.01 to 200 acres
$2,000 - 200.01 to 500 acres
$4,000 — Over 500 acres

$400 TOTAL FEE DUE (Add the Filing Fee to the Review Fee)

Include check or money order, payable to: Department of Administration
Do not attach the check with staples, tape, ...

THE DEPARTMENT WILL NOT PROCESS
AN ANNEXATION PETITION THAT IS NOT ACCOMPANIED
BY THE REQUIRED FEE.

THE DEPARTMENT’S 20-DAY STATUTORY REVIEW PERIOD
COMMENCES UPON RECEIPT OF THE PETITION AND REVIEW FEE

Shaded Area for Office Use Only
Date fee received: | (=6 " 2O O

Payee: D iapc it |28 LU Check Number: | 51/
Check Date: 552*.3 @*@{
Amount:@ ﬁ 5}@ -

NS






TONY EVERS

GOVERNOR
JOEL BRENNAN
SECRETARY
DEPARTMENT OF Municipal Boundary Review
ADMINISTRATION PO Box 1645, Madison W1 53701
N Voice (608) 264-6102  Fax (608) 264-6104
20,160} Email: wimunicipalboundar yr eview@wi.gov

Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryr eview

November 09, 2020 PETITION FILE NO. 14356
HOLLY LICHT, CLERK DAWN GEORGE, CLERK

CITY OF STOUGHTON TOWN OF RUTLAND

207 SFORREST ST 4177 OLD STAGE RD

STOUGHTON, WI| 53589-1724 BROOKLYN, WI53521-9473

Subject: JUNCTION 138 LLC ANNEXATION

Section 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats., provides that the annexation of landsto cities and villages within a county
having a population of 50,000 or more shall be reviewed by the Department of Administration in order to
determine if the proposed annexation isin the public interest or against the public interest. The proposed
annexation from the TOWN OF RUTLAND to the CITY OF STOUGHTON (see attached description)
must be reviewed pursuant to the statute.

To assist us in making this determination, we urge that you promptly supply the data requested on the
enclosed questionnaire (where possible) and return the questionnaire to the department.

The purpose of this questionnaire isto assist the department in determining "Whether the governmental
services, including zoning, to be supplied to the territory could clearly be better supplied by the town...."
The statute further stipulates that the department shall study the "shape of the proposed annexation and the
homogeneity of the territory with the annexing municipality.” In addition, we would appreciate receiving
from you any comments or information bearing on governmental services or shape and homogeneity that
would indicate whether the annexation isin or against the public interest.

Please return the questionnaire as soon as possible so that the information can be reviewed prior to the
department's statutory deadline of November 27, 2020. Direct any questions and comments to Erich
Schmidtke at (608) 264-6102. Thank you for your cooperation.

For additional information on annexation or other land use issues, visit our web site at
http://doa.wi.gov/municipal boundaryreview/.

Sincerely,

S

Erich Schmidtke

Enclosures





TONY EVERS

GOVERNOR
JOEL BRENNAN
SECRETARY
DEPARTMENT OF Municipal Boundary Review
ADMINISTRATION PO Box 1645, Madison Wi 53701
Voice (608) 264-6102  Fax (608) 264-6104
Email: wimunicipalboundaryr eview@wi.gov
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview
November 24, 2020 PETITION FILE NO. 14356
HOLLY LICHT, CLERK DAWN GEORGE, CLERK
CITY OF STOUGHTON TOWN OF RUTLAND
207 SFORREST ST 4177 OLD STAGE RD
STOUGHTON, WI 53589-1724 BROOKLYN, WI 53521-9473

Subject: JUNCTION 138 LLC ANNEXATION

The proposed annexation submitted to our office on November 06, 2020, has been reviewed and found to bein the
public interest. In determining whether an annexation isin the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the
Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with the
annexing village or city...." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The statute also
requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide needed municipal servicesto
the territory. The subject petition isfor territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguousto the CITY OF
STOUGHTON, which is able to provide needed municipal services.

The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. Stats.,
which states:

"The clerk of acity or village which has annexed shall fileimmediately with the secretary of administration a
certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each company that provides any utility
servicein the areathat is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance with the register of deeds and file asigned
copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school district..."

State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through failure to file
with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, including a statement
certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR number 14356 with your ordinance.
Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on "Help on How to Submit Municipal Records".
Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin
Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary Review, PO Box 1645, Madison W1 53701-1645.

The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition? D=2430
Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review.

Sincerely,

e — 4

Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review CC: petitioner



http://mds.wi.gov/

mailto:mds@wi.gov

http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2430

http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2430



An nexation Review WI Dept. of Administration

Municipal Boundary Review
= . PO Box 1645
Questionnaire Madison WI 53701
] 608-264-6102 Fax: 608-264-6104
Wisconsin Department of Administration  wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov

http://doa.wi.gov/imunicipalboundaryreview
Petitioner: Junction 138 LLC Petition Number: 14356
1. Territory to be annexed:  |From TOWN OF RUTLAND ToCITY OF STOUGHTON
2. Area (Acres): _[. [57
3. Pick one: [ Property Tax Payments OR 0O Boundary Agreement
a. Annual town property tax on territory to be annexed: a. Title of boundary agreement
5 &S993 b. Year adopted
b. Total that will be paid to Town ¢. Participating jurisdictions
(annual tax multiplied by 5 years): _2 5¢9.¢5 d. Statutory authority (pick one)
c. Paid by: @ Petitioner O City O Village O s.66.0307 0O s.66.0225 0O s.66.0301
O Other:
4. Resident Population: Electors: o Total: O
5. Approximate present land use of territory:
Residential: % Recreational: % Commercial: % Industrial: %
Undeveloped: _ (00 %
6. If territory is undeveloped, what is the anticipated use?
Residential: % Recreational: % Commercial: _ 65 % Industrial: %

Other: 35 %

Comments: Abet 357 will be qu 'Efr rlc,h“?n-»(- Wy fo ceedte leg of f*cuwti<*13‘“L7L'

7. Has a O preliminary or O final plat been submitted to the Plan Commission: O Yes & No
Plat Name:

8. What is the nature of land use adjacent to this territory in the city or village?

‘ﬂ\e, C\{i quwwvs flu- ffxaw? on '”xa/ (iCLS'f 'Sm.k'”\ 3 wcs"/ sy ele c»( “\c/ Pa-’“ﬂl, Gwmerowl nfcv'o'-;aﬂu‘*!
] 7 P;(\'JS "V '“10 Mf?’l\

In the town?:

9. What are the basic service needs that precipitated the request for annexation?
[4d Sanitary sewer B Water supply O Storm sewers
O Police/Fire protection 0O EMS Kl Zoning
Other






10. Is the city/village or town capable of providing needed utility services?

City/Village B Yes O No Town O Yes & No
If yes, approximate timetable for providing service: City/Village Town
Sanitary Sewers immediately O O
or, write in number of years, |

AN LLPI)C\U gQFJ‘Ll’_ Rred HML-‘-‘QW N{- 1S Ne L'.-(“}Sflry bg_&crc (_,wsL'l\chSu‘.\ u{ Seryices '716! ’f[hé
Water Supply immediately ) (] rospecloy
or, write in number of years. |

Will provision of sanitary sewers and/or water supply to the territory proposed for annexation require capital
expenditures (i.e. treatment plant expansion, new lift stations, interceptor sewers, wells, water storage facilities)?
O Yes B No /hie area has heow ch:‘fwccj o gmufﬂ\ Plos ng the Ck‘fy‘ Sewer 3 waber

nSeastepeture will veod fa’ he extend QA. fo ke P“'PQ"L/‘ snce devebpmen] pluas
ace submited fhe by will Qualuade Sarther
If yes, identify the nature of the anticipated improvements and their probable costs:

11. Planning & Zoning:

a. Do you have a comprehensive plan for the City/Village/Town? @ Yes 0O No
Is this annexation consistent with your comprehensive plan? O Yes 0O No
b. How is the annexation territory now zoned? # ,'.mey 2o f~5, R B

¢. How will the land be zoned and used if annexed? T4 w.ll f.de; b zowed P’ckl\lhec‘] Basinvess

12. Elections: 0O New ward or [ Existing ward? Will the annexation create a new ward or join an existing ward? For
more information, please contact the Wisconsin Election Commission at (608) 266-8005, elections@wi.gov or see their
annexation checklist here: http://elections.wi.gov/forms/el-100

13. Other relevant information and comments bearing upon the public interest in the annexation:
The proposed amveratics 15 peludih v Fhe Cnry s (I»Lufj-'eli‘ertf.ﬁ ve P/a v, fo beceme pckwf o(
the (;.J‘/( Thus Parr-_{ 15 cotiguous o Stougen Humaps! Beardancs

Prepared by: %Town o] City 0O Village Please RETURN PROMPTLY to:
Name: Harpww SC/LM/ wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Email: f‘;‘}‘ct\ée[/G',C/::} p %ouq]:fa.u.cw " b Municipal Boundary Review

Phone: [r0e) £73 6619 PO Box 1645, Madison Wi 53701
Date: Fax: (608) 264-6104
f// r‘“{/ 2020

(March 2018)
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CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Amending Zoning Code Sections 78-722 of the Stoughton Municipal Code

Committee Plan Commission recommends approval unanimously

Action:

Fiscal Impact: None

File Number: 0 -3-2020 First Reading: January 12, 2021

Second Reading: January 26, 2021

The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:

Sec. 78-722 — Swimming Pool Standards

(1) Definition. A "swimming pool” means an outdoor structure containing a body of water in
a receptacle or other container having a depth for water at any point greater than 36
inches located above or below the surface of ground elevation or deck, used or intended
to be used solely by the owner, operator or lessee thereof and his by family and by
friends invited to use it, and includes all structural facilities, appliances and
appurtenances, equipment and other items used and intended to be used for the
operation and maintenance of a private or residential swimming pool.

(2) Exempt pools. Nen-filtered storable swimming or wading pools that are so constructed
that they may be readily disassembled for storage and reassembled to their original
integrity and have a maximum water capacity of 36 inches are exempt from the
provisions of this section. Decorative pools that are 36 inches or less in maximum
water depth are exempt from the provisions of this section. Spas and hot tubs with
lockable tops are also exempt.

(3) Permit required. Before work is commenced on the construction or erection of a private or
residential swimming pool or on any alterations, additions, remodeling or other
improvements, an application for a swimming pool building permit to construct, erect,
alter, remodel or add thereto must be submitted in writing to the building inspector.
Plans and specifications and pertinent explanatory data should be submitted to the
building inspector at the time of application. No work or any part of the work shall be
commenced until a written permit for such work is obtained by the applicant. A current
fee shall accompany such application.

(4) Construction requirements. In addition to such other requirements as may be reasonably
imposed by the building inspector, the building inspector shall not issue a permit for
construction as provided for in subsection (3), above, unless the following construction
requirements are observed:

(a) Approved materials. All materials and methods of construction in the construction,
alteration, addition, remodeling or other improvements and pool installation shall be
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in accord with all state regulations and code and with any and all ordinances of the
city now in effect or hereafter enacted.

(b) Plumbing. All plumbing work shall be in accordance with all applicable ordinances
of the city and all state codes. Every private or residential swimming pool shall be
provided with a suitable draining method, and in no case shall waters from any pool
be drained into the sanitary sewer system; or onto lands of other property owners
adjacent to that on which the pool is located or in the general vicinity.

(c) Electrical installations. All electrical installations, including lighting and heating but
not limited thereto, which are provided for, installed and used in conjunction with a
private swimming pool shall be in conformance with the state laws and city
ordinances regulating electrical installations.

(5) Setbacks and other requirements.

(a) Private swimming pools shall be erected or constructed on rear or side lots only and
only on a lot occupied by a principal building. No swimming pool shall be erected
or constructed on an otherwise vacant lot. A lot shall not be considered vacant if the
owner owns the contiguous lot and said lot is occupied by a principal building.

(b) All swimming pools shall be at least six feet from any lot line or building unless
designed and approved as an addition to a building.

(6) Enclosure. Pools within the scope of this section that are not enclosed with a permanent
building shall be completely enclosed by a fence of sufficient strength to prevent access
to the pool. Such fence or wall including gates and doors shall not be less than five
feet in height from ground level, and not less than four feet from the pool edge, and
constructed not to have voids, holes or openings larger than four inches in one
dimension. Gates or doors shall be equipped with self-closing and self-latching devices
located at the top of the gate or door on the pool side of the enclosure, except the door
of any residence that forms a part of the enclosure. Above ground pools with an
attached rail fence system that combined with the side of the pool is at least 5 feet
in overall height above ground level satisfies fencing height requirements. Any
deck or entry attached or adjacent to an above ground pool must be fenced to meet
the 5-foot height requirement and any stairs used to gain entrance to an above
ground pool shall be eqmpped with a gate with self closmq self-latching devices as

(7) Compliance. All swimming pools, including those pools existing at the time of passage of

this section, ehapter notsatisfactorily-fenced shall comply with the fencing requirements

of this section. erwhen-wateris-placed-in-thepoel Enclosures en-existing for pools
shall be inspected by the zoning administrator butHding-taspector for compliance.

Variations in enclosure requirements that do not adversely affect the safety of the public
may be approved.

(8) Draining and approval thereof. No private swimming pool shall be constructed so as to
allow water therefrom to drain into any sanitary sewer nor to overflow upon or cause
damage to any adjoining property. Provisions may be made for draining the contents of
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any swimming pool into a storm sewer, but such installation shall be subject to prior
approval by the Plumbing Inspector.

(9) Filter system required. All private swimming pools within the meaning of this chapter
must have, in connection therewith, some filtration system to assure proper circulation
of the water therein and maintenance of the proper bacterial quality thereof.

(10) Dirt bottoms prohibited. All swimming pools of a permanent nature shall have the sides
and bottom of a smooth finish, and no sand or dirt bottom shall be permitted.
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.
Dates
Council Adopted:

Mayor Approved:

Tim Swadley, Mayor
Published:

Attest:

Holly Licht, City Clerk
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CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589

(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us

Date: November 25, 2020
To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council
From: Rodney J. Scheel

Director of Planning & Development

Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner

Subject: Agenda Item for the December 14, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting and Common
Council Meetings of January 12 and 26, 2021

Request by Vik Malling to amend zoning ordinance section 78-722(7) Swimming Pool
Standards.

This amendment is being proposed as an alternative to placing fencing around a swimming pool and
instead placing fencing on top of the pool wall and around any decking and stairs if applicable to
prevent access without adult supervision. A public hearing was held on October 12, 2020. A
recommendation to Council is necessary. The ordinance, previous minutes and application
information are provided. We believe this could be a workable change to the ordinance if followed
correctly by the property owner.
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City of Stoughton Application for Amendment of Zoning Regulations
(Reqwrerynts er Section 78-902)
41

Applicant Name: I "y 4

Applicant Address: 3 yd gﬁ%wu lp /AP 7//
Applicant Phone and Email: A/)g ))yf ({)Z)j 2 / Vﬁm/zma A] (Aa "7¢’l’ /7/’74

This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application to
amend the Zoning Ordinance text and by the City to ptocess said application. Parts II and III ate to be

used by the Applicant to submit a complete application; Parts I - IV ate to be used by the City when
processing said application.

I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use

Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: l/ ‘;5) 5;9 2 f)
II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for City and Applicant Use

Prior to submitting the complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall
submit a draft application for staff review, followed by one revised final application packet based upon staff
review and comments. The application shall include the following:

(a) A copy of the provisions of the current Zoning Ordinance which are to be
amended.
(b) A copy of the text which is proposed to replace the current text.
O (c) Written justification for the proposed text amendment
Q Indicating reasons why the Applicant believes the proposed text amendment is in
harmony with the recommendations of the City of Stoughton Comptchensive Plan,
particularly as evidenced by compliance with the standards set out in Section 78-

902(4)(c)1.-5.
III Justification of the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment for Applicant and City Use

1. How does the proposed Official Zoning Ordinance amendment futther the purposes of the Zoning
Otrdinance as outlined in Section 78-005?

YX\&(\ & k;\‘? (b

2. How does the proposed text amendment further the purposes of the general Article and specific
Section in which the amendment is proposed to be located?

DA\ @D
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3. Which of the following has arisen that are not propetly addtessed in the current zoning text (Check
One)? :

Q The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance should be brought into conformity with the

Comprehensive Plan. (If a factor related to the proposed amendment, note pertinent portions of
the Comprehensive Plan.)

QO A change has occurred in the land market, or other factors have arisen which requite a new form
of development, a new type of land use, ot a new procedute to meet said change(s).

New methods of development or providing infrastructure make it necessary to alter the Zoning
Ordinance to meet these new factots.

Q Changing governmental finances require amending the Zoning Ordinance to meet the needs of
the government in terms of providing and affording public services.

QO Explain if necessary:

4. If the proposed text amendment is concerned with the provisions of Atticles IT and/ot IIT: how does
the proposed amendment maintain the desired overall consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and
land use impacts within the pertinent zoning districts?

AU DYCL/\C;/B

IV, Final Application Packet Information for City Use

Receipt of final application packet by Zoning Administrator Date: _ | ( 2l 0
Notified Neighboting Property Ownets (within 300 feet) Date: _“] ( 18 [°
Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: __| O (C: (’;D
Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: __] ‘7 ( (‘_'7/0
Class 2 legal notice published on 4 (}Lt( 2-%and (,t::{ 'II"\’)’a Dater—————
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Sec. 78-902. - Amendment of zoning regulations.

(1)

(2)

(©)

Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide regulations which govern the procedure and
requirements for the review and approval, or denial, of proposed amendments to provisions of this
chapter. (Refer to the requirements of Wisconsin Statutes 62.23(7)(d)).

Initiation of request for amendment of this chapter. Proceedings for amendment of this Ordinance may
be initiated by any one of the following three methods:

(a) An application by any member of the general public;
(b) A recommendation of the plan commission; or
(c) By action of the common council.

Application requirements. All applications for proposed amendments to this chapter, regardless of the
party of their initiation per subsection 78-902(2) above shall be approved as complete by the zoning
administrator prior to the formal initiation of this procedure. The submittal of an application to the
zoning administrator to initiate this procedure shall not occur until the zoning administrator has certified
acceptance of the complete application to the zoning administrator. No placement of the application on
any agenda, as an item to be acted upon, shall occur unless said certification has occurred. The item
may be placed on any agenda as a discussion-only item, with the permission of the zoning
administrator, without an application. Prior to the submittal of the Official Notice regarding the
application to the newspaper by the zoning administrator, the applicant shall provide the zoning
administrator with 15 copies of the complete application as certified by the zoning administrator. Said
complete application shall be comprised of all of the following:

(a) A copy of the portion of the current provisions of this chapter which are proposed to be amended,
with said provisions clearly indicated in a manner which is clearly reproducible with a photocopier;

(b) A copy of the text which is proposed to replace the current text; and

(c) As an optional requirement, the applicant may provide written justification for the proposed text
amendment, consisting of the reasons why the applicant believes the proposed text amendment
is in harmony with the recommendation of the comprehensive plan, particularly as evidenced by
compliance with the standards set out in subsection 78-902(4)(c)1 - 4, below.

Review by the zoning administrator. The proposed text amendment shall be reviewed by the zoning
administrator as follows:

(a) The zoning administrator shall determine whether the application is complete and fulfills the
requirements of this chapter. If the zoning administirator determines that the application is not
complete or does not fulfill the requirements of this chapter, he shall return the application to the
applicant. If the zoning administrator determines that the application is complete, he shall so
notify applicant.

(b) Upon notifying the applicant that his application is complete the zoning administrator shall review
the application and evaluate and comment on the written justification for the proposed ‘text
amendment provided in the application per subsection 78-902(3)(a) through (c), above.

(c) The zoning administrator may also evaluate the application to determine whether the proposed
text amendment is in harmony with the recommendations of the comprehensive plan, particularly
as evidenced by compliance with the standards of subsection 78-902(4)(c)1 - 4, below:

1.  The proposed text amendment furthers the purposes of this chapter as outlined in section
78-005.

2. The proposed text amendment furthers the purposes of the general article 0 n which the
amendment is proposed to be located.

3. The proposed text amendment furthers the purposes of the specific section in which the
amendment is proposed to be located.

4. The following factors have arisen that are not properly addressed in the current zoning text:
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a. The provisions of this chapter should be brought into conformity with the
comprehensive plan. (If a factor related to the proposed amendment, note pertinent
portions of the Comprehensive Plan.);

b. A change has occurred in the land market, or other factors have arisen which require a
new form of development, a new type of land use, or a new procedure to meet said
change(s);

c. New methods of development or providing infrastructure make it necessary fo alter this
chapter to meet these new factors;

d. Changing governmental finances require amending this chapter in order to meet the
needs of the government in terms of providing and affording public services.

5. If the proposed text amendment is concerned with the provisions of article Il and/or lll: The
proposed amendment maintains the desired overall consistency of land uses, land use
intensities, and land use impacts within the pertinent zoning districts.

(d) The zoning administrator shall forward the review per subsection 78-902(4)(b), and if it has been
prepared, the report per subsection 78-902(4)(c), to the plan commission for the commission's
review and use in making its recommendation to the common council. If the zoning administrator
determines that the proposal may be in conflict with the provisions of the comprehensive plan, the
zoning administrator shall note this determination in the report.

(5) Review and recommendation by the plan commission. The common council shall not make an
amendment to this chapter without allowing an opportunity for a recommendation from the plan
commission per the provisions of this subsection.

(a) The zoning administrator shall schedule a reasonable time and place for a public hearing to
consider the application within 45 days after the acceptance and determination of the complete
application as determined by the zoning administrator. The applicant may appear in person, by
agent, andfor by attorney. Notice of the proposed amendment and the public hearing shall
conform to the requirements of Section 62.23(7)(d) of the Wisconsin Statutes. Said notice shall
contain a description of the proposed text change. In addition, at least ten days before said public
hearing, the city clerk shall mail an identical notice to the applicant, and to the clerk of any
municipality whose boundaries are within 1,000 feet of any portion of the jurisdiction of this
chapter. Failure to mail said notice, provided it is unintentional, shall not invalidate proceedings
under this section.

(b) Within 60 days after the public hearing (or within an extension of said period requested in writing
by the applicant and granted by the plan commission), the zoning administrator may make a
written report to the common council and/or may state in the minutes, its findings regarding
subsection 78-902(4), above, and its recommendations regarding the application as a whole.
Said report and/or minutes may include a formal finding of facts developed and approved by the
plan commission concerning the requirements of subsection 78-902(4)(c)1 - 4, above.

(c) If the zoning administrator fails to make a report within 60 days after the filing of said complete
application (and in the absence of an applicant-approved extension (per subsection 78-902(5)(b),
above), then the common council may hold a public hearing within 30 days after the expiration of
said 60-day period. Failure to receive said written report andfor minutes from the plan
commission per subsection 78-902(5)(b), above, shall not invalidate the proceedings or actions of
the common council. If such a public hearing is necessary, the common council shall provide
notice per the requirements of 78-902(5)(a), above.

State Law reference— Section 62.23(7)(d).

(d) If the plan commission recommends approval of an application, it shall state in the minutes orin a
subsequently issued written decision, its conclusion and any finding of facts supporting its
conclusion as to the following: that the potential public benefits of the proposed amendment
outweigh any and all potential adverse impacts of the proposed amendment, as identified in
subsection 78-902(4)(c)1 - 4, above, after taking into consideration the proposal by the applicant.

(6) Review and action by the common council. The common council shall consider the plan commission's
recommendation regarding the proposed text amendment. The common council may request further
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information and/or additional reports from the plan commission, zoning administrator, and/or the
applicant. The common council may take final action (by ordinance) on the application at the time of its
initial meeting, or may continue the proceedings, at the common council's, or the applicant's request.
The common council may approve the amendment as originally proposed, may approve the proposed
amendment with modifications (per the recommendations of the zoning administrator, the plan
commission, authorized outside experts, or its own members), or may deny approval of the proposed
amendment. If the common council wishes to make significant changes in the proposed text
amendment, as recommended by the plan commission, then the procedure set forth in Section
62.23(7)(d) of the Wisconsin Statutes shall be followed prior to common council action. Any action to
amend the provisions of proposed amendment requires a majority vote of the common council. The
common council's approval of the requested amendment shall be considered the approval of a unique
request, and shall not be construed as precedent for any other proposed amendment.

Effect of denial. No application which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall be resubmitted
for a period of 12 months from the date of said order of denial, except on grounds of new evidence or
proof of change of factors found valid by the zoning administrator.

(8) Fee. A fee may be required for this procedure. Refer to section 78-919.
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Sec. 78-722. - Swimming pools standards.

(M

3)

“)

(5)

(6)

Definition. A "swimming pool" means an outdoor structure containing a body of water in a receptacle
or other container having a depth for water at any point greater than 36 inches located below the
surface of ground elevation or deck, used or intended to be used solely by the owner, operator or
lessee thereof and his family and by friends invited to use it, and includes all structural facilities,
appliances and appurtenances, equipment and other items used and intended to be used for the
operation and maintenance of a private or residential swimming pool.

Exempt pools. Non-filtered storable swimming or wading pools that are so constructed that they
may be readily disassembled for storage and reassembled to their original integrity are exempt from
the provisions of this section. Decorative pools that are 36 inches or less in depth are exempt from
the provisions of this section. Spas and hot tubs with lockable tops are also exempt.

Permit required. Before work is commenced on the construction or erection of a private or
residential swimming pool or on any alterations, additions, remodeling or other improvements, an
application for a swimming pool! building permit to construct, erect, alter, remodel or add thereto must
be submitted in writing to the building inspector. Plans and specifications and pertinent explanatory
data should be submitted to the building inspector at the time of application. No work or any part of
the work shall be commenced until a written permit for such work is obtained by the applicant. A
current fee shall accompany such application.

Construction requirements. In addition to such other requirements as may be reasonably imposed
by the building inspector, the building inspector shall not issue a permit for construction as provided
for in subsection (3), above, unless the following construction requirements are observed:

(a) Approved materials. All materials and methods of construction in the construction, alteration,
addition, remodeling or other improvements and pool installation shall be in accord with all state
regulations and code and with any and all ordinances of the city now in effect or hereafter
enacted.

(b)  Plumbing. All plumbing work shall be in accordance with all applicable ordinances of the city
and all state codes. Every private or residential swimming pool shall be provided with a suitable
draining method, and in no case shall waters from any pool be drained into the sanitary sewer
system, onto lands of other property owners adjacent to that on which the pool is located or in
the general vicinity.

(c) Electrical installations. All electrical installations, including lighting and heating but not limited
thereto, which are provided for, installed and used in ‘conjunction with a private swimming pool
shall be in conformance with the state laws and city ordinances regulating electrical
installations.

Setbacks and other requirements.

(a) Private swimming pools shall be erected or constructed on rear or side lots only and only on a
lot occupied by a principal building. No swimming pool shall be erected or constructed on an
otherwise vacant lot. A lot shall not be considered vacant if the owner owns the contiguous lot
and said lot is occupied by a principal building.

(b)  All swimming pools shall be at least six feet from any lot line or building unless designed and
approved as an addition to a building.

Enclosure. Pools within the scope of this section that are not enclosed with a permanent building
shall be completely enclosed by a fence of sufficient strength to prevent access to the pool. Such
fence or wall shall not be less than five feet in height and not less than four feet from the pool edge,
and constructed not to have voids, holes or openings larger than four inches in one dimension.
Gates or doors shall be equipped with self-closing and self-latching devices located at the top of the
gate or door on the pool side of the enclosure, except the door of any residence that forms a part of
the enclosure. This section shall not apply to existing fences on the date of adoption of the ordinance
from which this section is derived at least 40 inches in height that otherwise comply with this section.





(7) Compliance. All swimming pools existing at the time of passage of this chapter not satisfactorily
fenced shall comply with the fencing requirements of this section or when water is placed in the pool.
Enclosures on existing pools shall be inspected by the building inspector for compliance. Variations
in enclosure requirements that do not adversely affect the safety of the public may be approved.

(8) Draining and approval thereof. No private swimming pool shall be constructed so as to allow water
therefrom to drain into any sanitary sewer nor to overflow upon or cause damage to any adjoining
property. Provisions may be made for draining the contents of any swimming pool into a storm
sewer, but such installation shall be subject to prior approval by the Plumbing Inspector.

(9) Filter system required. All private swimming pools within the meaning of this chapter must have, in
connection therewith, soma filtration system to assure proper circulation of the water therein and
maintenance of the proper bacterial quality thereof.

(10)  Dirt bottoms prohibited. All swimming pools of a permanent nature shall have the sides and bottom
of a smooth finish, and no sand or dirt bottom shall be permitted.

(Ord. No. 0-6-09, 6-23-2009; Memo. of 3-22-2010; Ord. No. 0-4-2011, § 106, 5-10-2011)
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Step 8 - Attach & Secure Pickets & Handrails & Post Caps

Gather parts for handralls (handrails, pickets, connectors & covers, screws & post caps). There are
three different handralls - small (S), medium (M) & large (L). Note positioning of handrails (see 8.1).
Fit a handrall connector on both ends of all handrails (see 8.2). Make certain large, flat surface of
connector Is towards end of rail (see 8.2). Insert pickets, section by section (S-M-L), into molded
pockets of deck surface (see 8.3). Fit tops of pickets into precut holes in appropriate handralls (see
8.1 & 8.4). Slide connectors to ends of rails, towards posts. Center connectors against posts and
with pencll, mark holes in connectors on the posts (see 8.5). Once all connectors marked, push rail
8 connector out of the way and drill a pllot hole using a 1/8" bit at all pencil marks (see 8.6). Secure
all connectors in place using #8 x 3/4" screws provided (see 8.7 & 8.8). Snap screw cover caps in
place (see 8.9). To keep handralis from moving, drill a 1/8" hole through side of connector & hand-
rail (see 8,10). Secure using same #8 x 3/4" screws (see 8.7 & 8,11), Fit post caps and your railing
Is complete (see 8.10 & 8.11)

Step 9 - Attach Entry Support Angle

Select the G2D angle bolts & #14 x 3/4 screws (see 9.1).
Position the G2D entry support angle In place & align the
two holes (see 9.2 & 9.3 & 9.4). Secure angle to deck
frame using bolts, washers both sides & nuts. TIGHTEN.
The angle will be used for the G2D assembly & installation | |
(see 9.5 + accompanying Instruction page for G2D entry)

Consider adding Vinyl Works Canada’s RESIN POOL FENCING to your pool for added security and cosmetic appeal. The fence kits are
available in both white and taupe colors to match your deck. *Dress up” your pool and backyard today!






Step 10 - Position Deck Against Pool

7 o == dﬁ
/ FRONT OF DECK

_ 1" to 1%"

ENTRY
POSITION

The last remaining tube brace
needs to be attached
(“special”10.1.A). The brace is
attached between posts
beside opening for the G2D
step. Similar to Steps 4 & 6,
position brace between posts
and secure using a #14 X 1"
screw on both ends. Make
certaln posts are level and
plumb. This secures posts

esassssbesERREETRERES

10.1.1

]
CT Jvoprac

LEVEL
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Position deck agalnst pool at desired location. The front of the deck is designed to cantilever the top rall of the pool
sufficient only to prevent stepping on top rall & to eliminate gap between deck & top rall (see 10.1.1). The front
edge of the deck should not protrude past the Inside face of the top rail. It Is IMPORTANT to leave a 1" to 17"
gap between the top rall of the pool & the underside of the deck so the pool is not bearing the weight of the deck.
Also, it allows space to install the winter cover. The seven support posts should sit on 16" square x 2" thick
concrete blocks (see 10.1.2). These concrete footings must be leveled and set at the proper elevation (see 10.1.3)
to maintain proper clearance between deck & pool. Set elevation of blocks rather than cutting posts. Once

complete, make certain deck is level, stable & does not rock. Continue with assembly & Installation of steps & gate
(see 10.2). ABSOLUTELY NO DIVING or JUMPING from deck into pool

57{’; ¢ ww-‘/
/h 5/7; //{’//

The assembly and installation of the deck portion of this product Is now complete. After steps and gate have been
Installed it is important to review the safety instructions and proper use of this product with children and all those
using this product so Injury can be avoided. Do not deviate from the assembly and installation of this product as
outlined within this manual. If you have que:}tlons please do not hesitate to contact the manufacturer for assistance

il 2






RESIN ABOVE GROUND
POOL FENCE SYSTEM

PLEASE READ ENTIRE INSTRUCTION PRIOR TO
ASSEMBLY & INSTALLATION OF FENCE TO FAMILIARIZE
YOURSELF WITH COMPONENTS & PROCEDURES

REMEMBER - NOTHING REPLACES PARENTAL
_ SUPERVISION AROUND A SWIMMING POOL

TOOLS REQUIRED

L @

Mount post brackets to vertical uprights of pool as
DRILL KNIFE  SCREWDRIVER TAPE MEASURE shown (Figures 1-1). We recommend that the brackets be
mounted just beneath top rall connector caps to

maximize strength of fence. Place bracket base plumb

«
ﬁu 4 = against pool post / upright and mark the location of the
4 @ mounting screws (2 of #14 x 1" screws). The rear of the
SAW 5

bracket can be trimmed if pool upright is not level or has

PENCIL  SAFETY GLASSES a center ridge, Predrill 5/32"” holes. Mount base of post
bracket, MAKE CERTAIN NOT TO OVERTIGHTEN

SCREWS AS IT MAY CAUSE HOLES TO STRIP. Snap

CAUTION WHEN USING bracket post supports (left & right) together and slide
POWER TOOLS into bracket base. Make certain top is “open” to fit post
AROUND WATER (see 1-1B). Fit desired post within and slide to bottom of
bracket post supports, Note that pre-drilled screw holes
In post (for rails) should face out, away from pool (see 1- =
3 below). Check that the precut rail holes for the bottom
rall of fence Is no more than 2" above top rall of pool (see
1-1A). The post can be cut down if necessary. Fit bracket [
nose cap over bracket post supports (and posts) and |
secure using 4 of the #8 x 3/4 screws provided. Align bolt |
holes In post bracket parts and secure using 1/4 x 314" |
bolt, washer ‘& nut (see 1-1C). If required, telescope |
bracket In / out to clear top rail cap of pool, Repeat forall |
brackets and posts around pool. ]

Capo

-
Figure 1-1A D

Fence
post

1 L1 Il

Measure distance between fence posts and add 1-1/4"

2" max § Figure 1-2 { Top view of two fence posts )
¢ P I
AP —
1B - T i
' - soston -
11
( 2 ) ( J

t+— =, —.
Determine the length of each fence section (Figure 1-2). Measure the distance | X" +1-1/14" |
between fence posts and add 1-1/4". The end of each fence rall should

protrude 6/8" Inside each fence post, Cut fence rails accordingly using either ﬁu
a hand or power saw. Balance the distance from the last picket to the fence Fence Post

post on both ends of the section so the final installation will look neat. Tip:
cut both fence rails together / at once so that the pickets will be vertically |
plumb with the posts for a neat appearance. Fit bottom rall in place and
balance each end so picket spacing is equal, Insert fence pickets. Fit top rail Fence Rall || 58 Fence Rail
over pickets and into fence posts. Measure, cut and assemble for each
individual fence section as sections may vary in length around your pool. = —
= 3
Top view @ 9 Fence Rail
of fance Fence Post ‘
o Securewith : Secure ends of fence sections using the small #8
71 screws Inskde ‘ screws provided (see Figure 1-3). Make certaln that the
= o n : H F Ploket screws calch the ralls on the Inside of the posts.
o “ o®| Eence ra : ence Ploke! Failure to do so may result in a fence section coming
H apart. For_additional security, use a single screw
A & i through top of post opening Into each rall end. This
L EL + will not allow ralls to pull away from / out of posts.
H : T e Fence Rall Repeat for each post and section. Fit post caps onto
tops of posts, Check to be sure that entire Installation
Seee Tt is secure.
: aastt Fence Post
Figure 1-3
Screw

. ok . QUALITY BY
VI“YIW(!"(Q DESIGN
P.O. Box 96, Port Colborne, Ontario, Canada L3K 5V7

Email: cserv@vinylworkscanada.com
Website: www.vinylworkscanada.com

Connecting the fence to one of our Step
Systems, Ladder or a deck ? Ask about our
CONNECTOR KITS (sold separately)

for our complete product line visit { : COMMENTS ? or QUESTIONS 7
www.vinylwerkscanada.com i d e ] \ Please don't hesitate to contact our
optional | H customer service feam @ toll free
SEND US YOUR PHOTO! | Solar Lights | — 877 - VINYL WK
Each season we select winning installations. ~

Email your picture today - visit our website

e =

Instruction # 1600 - Revised Oct-2015






Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, October 12, 2020 at 6:00 pm
Virtual Meeting

Members Present: Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; Tom
Selsor; and Brett Schumacher

Members Absent: Tom Majewski

Staff: Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator and Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and
Development

Press: None

Guests: Vik Malling; William Montelbano; Mary Allen; Bernie Lange; Nick Allen; Joseph Crubaugh.

1. Call to order. Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 14, 2020.
Motion by Selsor to approve the minutes as presented, 2" by Robinson.

Barman clarified the zoning code does not prohibit internally lit signs in the downtown design
overlay zoning district rather the code prohibits plastic signs.

Motion carried unanimously.

3. Council Representative Report.

Caravello stated the Common Council approved the following:

e Zoning amendment to allow alcohol production in the Central Business District

CSM approvals (2) for Habitat for Humanity at Abel Court
First reading for rezonings at Abel Court
CUP for Mershon’s Cidery
CUP for Lutz Brothers
CUP for Bouzek
ETJ CSM for Lange
ETJ CSM for Chandler
First reading for zoning amendment related to exterior lighting regulation

4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet of
materials. There were no questions.

5. Request by Vik Malling to amend zoning ordinance section 78-722(7) Swimming Pool
Standards.
Scheel explained the request.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.

No one registered to speak.

Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.

T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes 10-12-20.docx
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Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
10/12/20
Page 2 of 3

Barman is concerned about the language related to the gated access to the stairs. Scheel stated
current language requires self-closing, self-latching gates.

Vik Malling stated the proposal is to lock the gate but it could be self-closing, self-latching.
Barman stated the need to take into account all types of products when amending the code.

Motion by Schumacher to postpone this agenda item until the November meeting to allow staff to
revise the language, 2" by Caravello. Motion carried unanimously.

6. Request by William Montelbano for renovation approval at Fosdal’s Bakery, 243 E. Main
Street.
Scheel explained the request.
Joe Crubaugh stated the intent is to provide better access for customers.

William Montelbano gave an overview of the plans.

Scheel noted a survey will be necessary to determine the limits of the front property line for the
ADA ramp.

Barman questioned the decision to change from a demo/addition to a renovation. Bernie Lange
stated the change was driven by cost.

Caravello expressed concern that the ramp could be attractive to kids with skateboards.
The group discussed options to prevent kids from using the ramp for skateboards.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.

No one registered to speak.

Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.

Motion by Robinson to approve the renovation as presented, 2"¢ by Caravello.

Barman questioned the ADA ramp width and how much sidewalk would be left for pedestrians.
Scheel stated the current width of the sidewalk is approximately 12 feet.

Scheel stated if the ramp is in the right-of-way, there will be a separate approval process.

William Montelbano stated the actual size of the ramp will be 3 feet 6 inches to allow for the
railing.

Motion carried unanimously.

T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes 10-12-20.docx





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, November 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm
Virtual Meeting

Members Present: Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; Tom
Selsor; Tom Majewski and Brett Schumacher

Members Absent: None

Staff: Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development

Press: None

Guests: Phil Harrison

1. Call to order. Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 12, 2020.
Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2" by Caravello. Motion carried
unanimously.

3. Council Representative Report.
Caravello stated the Common Council approved the following:

0-19-2020 — Amending the Zoning Classification at 1114 and 1115 Abel Court
0-20-2020 — Amending Zoning Code 78-707 and 78-704 regarding exterior lighting

4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the current status of developments as outlined in the packet of
materials. There were no questions.

5. Request by Vik Malling to amend zoning ordinance section 78-722(7) Swimming Pool
Standards. (postponed from September 12, 2020)
Mr. Malling contacted the City and reported he couldn’t participate tonight.

Barman reported his understanding of our existing ordinances regarding fencing for pools: the
fence is high enough (5 ft) so you don’t have inadvertent accidents and far enough from the edge (4
ft) to prevent someone from jumping over the fence into the pool. He also stressed the “self-
closing, self-latching” requirement is important to him. He suggested that the ordinance as
proposed section 6 conflicts with section 7. He suggests we should clean up this section and has
offered some suggested language to be considered.

Motion by Barman to postpone action until December to allow Mr. Malling to participate and to
have staff incorporate Commissioner Barman’s suggested language into the draft ordinance, 2" by
Robinson. Motion carried unanimously.

6. Proposed zoning ordinance amendment to repeal section 78-205(12) and all references to
group developments.
Scheel explained the request.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.

No one registered to speak.

T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes 11-9-20.docx
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City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton W1 53589

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Standard Construction Details for Concrete Sidewalk & Driveway Entrances
for the City of Stoughton

Committee Action:  Public Works Committee recommended Common Council approval 5-0 on
December 17, 2020

Fiscal Impact: $0

File Number: R-2-2021 Date Introduced:  January 12, 2021

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton values a uniform standard specification for public sidewalks and
driveway entrances within public right-of-way, and

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has created standard construction details for Concrete Sidewalks and
Commercial Driveway Entrances and One & Two-Family Residential Driveway Entrances, and

WHEREAS, the proposed standard details will be used to regulate future sidewalk and driveway entrance
construction in the public rights-of-way; now therefore

BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby supports and approves the
standard construction details for Concrete Sidewalks and Commercial Driveway Entrances and One &
Two-Family Residential Driveway Entrances.

Council Action: I:I Adopted |:| Failed Vote
Mayoral Action: |:| Accept |:| Veto

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

Council Action: [ ] Override Vote

S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R- 2020 - Sidewalk & Driveway Specifications.docx





CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589

=50
e
< e

(608) 873-6619 Www.ci.stoughton.wi.us
Date: December 9, 2020
To: Public Works Committee
From: Rodney J. Scheel

Director of Planning & Development
Subject: Sidewalk and Driveway Specifications
We have been working to update and improve our long-standing generic specifications for public
sidewalks and driveway aprons. We have worked to develop more professional and detailed
drawings that can be shared with citizens, contractors and builders to help inform the community
about standards. We are utilizing our new Engineering Technician to track and inspect public
sidewalk work to help insure compliance.

While the new sheets provide more detail one of the main recommended differences is to require
sidewalks to be at least 5 inches thick instead of 4 inches.

Three standard details are recommended for adoption:
e Concrete Sidewalk

e One & Two-Family Residential Driveway Entrance
e Commercial Driveway Entrance

If you have any questions, please contact me.

S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works Committee 12-9-2020 Sidewalk Specifications.docx
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City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI 53589

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Amending the Council Rules to Include updates to Public Comment Period

Committee Action: CACP recommended approval 5-0 on January 5, 2021
Fiscal Impact: None
File Number: R-3-2021 Date Introduced: ~ January 12, 2021

WHEREAS, the Council Rules have been adopted by the Common Council and last amended in
in 2016; and

WHEREAS, the Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee provided
recommendations for updates to Rule 13: Public Comment Period; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton
authorizes and directs the property city official(s) to amend the Council Rules as recommended.

Council Action: [ | Adopted [ ] Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:| Accept |:| Veto

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote





Rules of the Common Council, Committees, Boards, and Commissions City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin Adopted December 2016
Adopted pursuant to the authority granted in Wis. Stat. § 62.11(3).

Rule 1. MEETINGS

A. Regular Meetings

Following the spring election of each year, the Common Council shall meet on

the third Tuesday of April for the purpose of organization. Regular meetings of the Common
Council shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesday of every month at 7:00 pm, in the
council chambers.

If any meeting date, as fixed by paragraph (1) above, falls on a legal holiday or

election day, the meeting shall instead be held on the first business day succeeding that holiday
or election day at the same hours and place, unless the meeting is cancelled or another date is
specified by the council president.

B. Special Meetings

The mayor or council president may call special meetings by written notice to each council
member and the mayor. The notice shall be delivered to all council members either personally,
electronically to those who have consented to electronic delivery of notices from the city, or left
at their usual abode at least 24 hours before the meeting, unless for good cause a 24-hour
notice is impossible or impractical. In that case, a shorter notice may be given, but the notice
may not at any time be provided less than 6 hours in advance of the meeting. The notice shall
specify the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. Attendance by any council member is a
waiver of any defect of notice.

C. Adjournment

Any council member may move to adjourn a meeting. If any agenda item is not considered
before a motion to adjourn, it shall automatically be referred to the council’s next regular
meeting, unless the motion provides for a specific date and hour.

Rule 2. QUORUM REQUIRED

A quorum is necessary for the transaction of any council business. Two-thirds of all members of
the council shall constitute a quorum. In determining whether a quorum is present, neither
vacancies nor the mayor shall be included in calculating the number of members of the council
or in calculating the number of members present. A quorum always refers to the number of
members present, not to the number voting. If a quorum is present, a vote is valid even though
fewer than the quorum vote.

Rule 3. PRESIDING OFFICER

A. Designation Of

The mayor shall be the presiding officer of the meetings of the council. In the absence of the
mayor, the president of the council shall preside at the meetings of the council. If both the mayor
and the council president are absent, the vice president of the council shall preside at the
meetings of the council. If the mayor, council president, and vice president are absent, the clerk
shall call the council to order and preside until the council selects a member to preside at the
meeting.

B. Function

The presiding officer shall preserve order, conduct the proceedings of the council, and be its
parliamentarian. If a member does not follow the council’s parliamentary rules, the presiding
officer may, on his or her own motion, or shall, at any members’ request, callthe offending 21





member to order. The council, if appealed to, shall decide the matter.

C. Question of Order

Any alderperson may raise a point, or question of order. The question of order must be raised at
the time the alleged breach of order occurs. The presiding officer may confer with legal counsel
during the meeting. The presiding officer shall, in turn, immediately rule on the question of order,
subject to an appeal by a member to the council. The appeal may be sustained by a majority
vote of the members present, exclusive of the presiding officer.

D. Motion

The mayor or other presiding officer may speak on any question. If the mayor or other presiding
officer wishes to make a motion, he or she must first vacate the chair while the motion is
pending. If the mayor or other presiding officer vacates the chair while a motion is pending, the
next officer in line to preside at the meeting shall preside while the motion is pending.

E. Veto
The mayor may veto all acts of the council as permitted by law. The council may override the
mayor’s veto by a two-thirds vote of all members of the council.

Rule 4. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Wisconsin law requires the chief presiding officer of the Common Council or such person’s
designee to give public notice of every Common Council meeting. Such notice must set forth the
time, date, place, and subject matter of the meeting, including that intended for consideration of
any contemplated closed session. The mayor or mayor’s designee shall give notice of every
Common Council meeting in accordance with the Wisconsin Open Meeting Law.

Rule 5. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS

If any alderperson, for any reason, cannot attend a regularly scheduled meeting of the Common
Council, he or she shall notify the city clerk as soon as practically able prior to the meeting, of
his or her anticipated absence.

Rule 6. ORDER OF BUSINESS

The business of the council shall be conducted in the following order:
-Call to order by the presiding officer

-Roll call

-Presentation of accounts and other claims against the city
-Presentation of committee reports and minutes

-Communication, reports of city officers, and recommendations of the mayor
-Comments and suggestions from the preregistered citizens
-Consideration of the minutes of the prior meeting(s).

-Consent agenda

-Unfinished business from previous meetings (old business)

-New business

The council may chose to take business out of order.





Rule 7. INTRODUCTION OF BUSINESS

A. Introduction Requirements

All new, proposed ordinances, resolutions, or other new business (collectively “New Business”)
shall be in writing, shall contain a brief statement of their content, shall indicate the name of the
presenting member(s) or presenting committee, and, prior to their consideration by council, shall
be delivered to the clerk. Once a proper request to add an item to the Common Council agenda
has been made, the Mayor shall approve placement of the item on the agenda for one of the
next two regular Common Council meetings following such timely request. Any item added to an
agenda at the direction of the Common Council shall not be removed from the agenda without
the approval of the Common Council.

B. Agenda

The following individuals and/or bodies may request the city clerk to add an item to the Common
Council agenda:

-The mayor

-The Common Council or any alderperson

-Any standing committee of the Common Council or the chair thereof

-Any city committee, board or commission, or the chair thereof, with respect to an

item of business referred to such committee, board or commission by the

Common Council, or with respect to an item which such committee, board, or

commission is required by law to report or recommend to the Common Council.

The final agenda and packet must be approved by the mayor prior to distribution to the common
council. Once approved by the mayor, the agenda may not be amended without approval from
the mayor. The mayor and council president shall make reasonable efforts to cooperatively
review the agenda before it is approved. Except as otherwise provided by this rule, the final
agenda and packet must be sent to council members no later than noon the Friday prior to the
regular Council meeting. The mayor may, in consultation with the Council President if feasible,
approve sending the final agenda to council members, or amending the agenda, less than 4
days prior to the meeting, when the mayor, in consultation with the Council president if feasible,
deems appropriate to protect the City's interests or to avoid unnecessary delay or hardship for
the City or interested parties

C. Reintroduction Restricted

Unless otherwise provided by city ordinance, or unless allowed by approval of a motion for
reconsideration pursuant to Rule 10, no proposed ordinance or resolution, having been once
defeated, may again be introduced in the same or in substantially the same form until 30 days
after the date when that ordinance or resolution was defeated.

Rule 8. PRESIDENT OF THE COUNCIL

A. Selection

The council president shall be selected by a majority vote of all council members at the annual
organizational meeting conducted on the third Tuesday of April. The Council President is not
eligible to chair standing committees. The Council President is the Chair of the Committee of the
Whole and the Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Committee. The Council President has the
option to defer the chair for the CIP Committee.

B. Absence of Mayor

During the mayor’s absence or inability to serve, the council president shall be acting mayor and
shall be vested with the powers and duties of the mayor, except the council president may not
approve a council act that the mayor has vetoed. When acting as the presiding officer at 3





meetings of the Common Council, the council president or other presiding officer retains his or
her right to vote as an alderperson and if he or she exercises that right, may not vote in case of
a tie.

Rule 9. VOTING
A. Modes of Voting
1. Any alderperson may demand an aye and noe (roll call) vote on any matter.

However, the vote must be by roll call if the council is:

-Confirming appointments

-Adopting any measure that assesses or levies taxes

-Appropriating or distributing money

-Creating any liability or charge against the city or any fund of the city

No member may explain his or her vote during the calling of ayes and noes.
All ayes and noe votes shall be recorded in the journal (minutes of the common
council) by the clerk.

W

B. Majority Vote Required

Any item appearing on the agenda of the Common Council that requires the vote of council for
approval or passage must be approved by a simple majority except where a different vote is
required by law.

C. Tie Vote

The mayor shall not vote except in the case of a tie. When the mayor does vote in the case of a
tie, his or her vote shall be counted in determining whether a sufficient number of the council has
voted favorably or unfavorably on any measure.

D. Abstentions
Any member has the right to abstain from voting on any issue, and must abstain from voting if
he or she has a financial or personal interest in the outcome of the vote.

E. Vote Change
A council member may change his or her vote on a matter up to the time the result of the vote is
announced.

F. Quorum
A guorum always refers to the number of members present, not to the number voting. If a
quorum is present, a vote is valid even though fewer than the quorum vote.

Rule 10. RECONSIDERATION
Any member who voted with the prevailing side on any question may move for reconsideration
immediately after the vote on the question is determined, or at the next succeeding regular
meeting of the council. First a vote is taken on the motion to reconsider, if it passes the question
can be debated and voted on again. A defeated motion for reconsideration is not subject to
further reconsideration. Council actions that have already been implemented, such as approval
of contracts that have been signed or ordinances that have become effective are not subject to
reconsideration. Nothing in this rule prohibits the reintroduction of any business, subject to the
restriction in Rule 7 C.
Rule 11. ORDINANCES
A. All proposed ordinances shall be read a total of two (2) times at two separate meetings
before the council may vote on any of them. Each shall be read:
a. At the time the proposed ordinance is first submitted to the council for its 4





consideration (first reading).
b. Immediately prior to the council’s actual vote on it (second reading).

B. The council may dispense with any required reading.
Rule 12. COMMITTEES, BOARDS, & COMMISSIONS

A. Special Committees
The council may provide for special committees as it may from time to time deem necessary.
Appointments to these special committees shall be made by the mayor.

B. Committee of the Whole.
The council may meet as a committee of the whole pursuant to Robert’s Rules of Order.

C. Minutes

Each committee, board, and commission shall keep minutes. Minutes shall be approved by a
majority of the committee, board, or commission at a subsequent meeting. After approval, the
minutes shall be filed with the clerk.

D. Notice of Meetings
The chairperson or designee shall file notice of each meeting with the clerk. The notice shall
comply with natice requirements found in Wis. Stats. 19.84.

E. Absence of Member.
If any member cannot attend a scheduled meeting, he or she shall notify the city clerk of his or
her anticipated absence as soon as practically able prior to the meeting.

F. Quorum.

A quorum is necessary for the transaction of any business. A majority of all members of the
committee, board, or commission shall constitute a quorum. The mayor, as ex officio member of
standing committees, has the right, but not the obligation, to participate in the proceedings of
standing committees, and he or she is not counted in determining the number required for a
quorum or whether a quorum is present at a meeting.

G. Agenda
The chair of each committee, board, and commission shall approve all agenda items. He or she
shall consider all referrals for the purpose of establishing said agendas.

Rule 13. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

A. Public Comment

A citizen may appear before the council_in-person, through electronic communication, or written
public comment provided the citizen registers with the clerk before the meeting is called to
erder—andorder and indicates his or her interest to address the council; and provided the
agenda provides for a public comment period. It is preferred that citizens appear to read their
own comments. Public Comment period is an opportunity for citizens to share their view with
the Council, including on matters not on the agenda, and should not be conducted as a tweo-
waytwo-way conversation. The Council may not take action on any matter that is not on the
agenda.

B. Time Limited
With the exception of informational and public hearings, speakers shall be limited to a maximum-
of three (3) minutes. The city clerk will maintain the timer and inform the speaker 5





when 30 seconds remain. Written testimony shall be limited to a maximum of 400 words.

C. Other Restrictions
-If the presiding officer decides the comments are not relevant or are abusive, the
presiding officer may:

-Order the citizen to modify his or her comments

-Order the citizen to refrain from speaking

-Order the citizen to leave council chambers

-Take such other steps as may be necessary to insure the efficient conduct of the
council’s business

D. Registration and Time

The city clerk will arrive 30 minutes prior to the start of the council meeting to distribute
registration forms as requested. Each form will be dated, numbered, and distributed on a “first-
come, first-served” basis. A completed registration form is required to speak by each individual
completing his or her own form and is limited to addressing one subject per meeting only.
Speakers will utilize the microphone at the podium and will begin by stating their name and
address prior to addressing the council. The maximum time allotted for public comment is 30
minutes. The council reserves the right to restrict or increase time limits

Rule 14. MANNER OF DELIBERATION

A. Manner Of

No alderperson shall address the council until recognized by the presiding officer. The
alderperson shall then address the presiding officer and keep all remarks to the question under
discussion. The alderperson shall also avoid personal confrontation when speaking.

B. Motions
No motion shall be discussed or acted upon until it has been seconded. No motion shall be
withdrawn without the consent of those alderpersons making and seconding the motion.

C. Motions: Precedence Of
When a question is under consideration, no motion shall be entertained except the motion to:
-Fix the time to adjourn
-Adjourn
-Recess
-Privilege
-Lay on the table
-Move the previous guestion
-Limit or extend limits of debate
-Postpone to a certain day
-Refer to committee
-Amend
-Postpone indefinitely
The above motions shall take precedence in the order listed.





Rule 15. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Clerk’s Responsibilities

The city clerk may create a subsection on any council agenda entitled, “consent agenda.” In a
consent agenda the clerk shall place matters that, in the clerk’s judgment, are routine and
noncontroversial and do not require a special vote or specific action by the council. The consent
agenda shall be approved by the council president prior to being placed on the council agenda.

B. Procedure for Adoption

The following procedure shall apply when a consent agenda is used:
-No separate discussion or debate may be permitted on any matter listed on the
consent agenda
-A single motion, seconded and adopted by a majority vote of all members of the
council shall be required to approve, adopt, and act or otherwise favorably resolve all
matters listed on the consent agenda
-Any alderperson may request removal of any item or part of an item included in
the consent agenda. At the time the consent agenda is considered, the removal of an
item as requested by an alderperson shall be approved without debate or vote

If an item or any part of an item has been removed from the consent agenda in
accordance with this rule, the council shall consider that item at an appropriate time during the
council’s regular order of business

Rule 16. ROBERT’'S RULES OF ORDER

In the absence of a standing rule, the council, committees, boards, and commissions shall be
governed by the most current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, unless contrary
to State law.

Rule 17. SUSPENSION OF RULES
These rules or any part of them may be suspended in connection with any matter under
consideration by a recorded vote of two—thirds of the members present.

Rule 18. VALIDITY OF COUNCIL ACTIONS
No action by the Common Council shall be invalid or subject to challenge on the grounds that
such action was taken in violation of the Rules of the Common Council.
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City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI 53589

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Amending the Agenda Items (Placement of) Policy

Committee Action: CACP recommended approval 5-0 on January 5, 2021
Fiscal Impact: None
File Number: R-4-2021 Date Introduced: ~ January 12, 2021

WHEREAS, the Agenda Items (Placement of) Policy was adopted by the Common Council on
May 26, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee has recommended updates
to address time-sensitive agenda items; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton
authorizes and directs the property city official(s) to amend the Agenda Items (Placement of)
Policy as recommended.

Council Action: [ | Adopted [ | Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:| Accept |:| Veto

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote






AGENDA ITEMS (PLACEMENT OF) POLICY

All items referred to a committee should be placed on an agenda in a timely manner. Agenda
items are passed by committee and submitted to the mayor and council president customarily by
the Thursday before the scheduled council meeting. Items may be placed on agendas in one of
the following ways:

1. The Mayor places it on the Council agenda or asks the committee chair to place it on a
committee agenda.

2. An Alderperson, Department Head, or member of the public makes a request of the
appropriate committee chair for committee consideration and recommendation to the
Council.

3. If the Mayor or committee chair declines a request, a motion can be made at either the
committee or Council level to place the matter on a future agenda. If there is a majority
vote in favor of the request, the chair or Mayor is required to place it on a future agenda.

4. Each standing committee is responsible for reviewing all issues that are to be referred to
the Personnel and Finance Committees for action. The standing committee will make a
recommendation to recommend or deny the request with the understanding that the
Personnel Committee has the overall responsibility in the personnel area and the Finance
Committee has the overall responsibility in the finance area. If the standing committee
and the Personnel or Finance Committees disagree on the issue they may need to have a
joint meeting.

4.5.1f a committee has a time-sensitive agenda item, it may be presented to council on an
accelerated timeframe with prior approval by the Council President and Mayor.

ADOPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL: May 26, 2009

S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\AGENDA ITEM PLACEMENT.docx
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\AGENDA ITEM PLACEMENT .pdf
LASERFICHE:\Stoughton\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\Agenda Item Placement
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RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the continuation of the City of
Stoughton's current COVID absence policy with the exception of excluding day care and
school closures.

Committee: Personnel Committee recommends approval 3-2

File Number: R-5-2021 Date Introduced: January 12, 2021

WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request regarding extending our current COVID
Absence Policy with the exception to exclude day care and school closings. The extension covers
only the employees with a direct exposure and/or positive test result. This extension will be reviewed
by Personnel no later than 60 days from approval, and

WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on January 4, 2021, to consider the continuation of the
Amended City's COVID Absence Policy to be reviewed by Personnel no later than 60 days from
approval, and

WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (3-2) to continue following the City’s
amended COVID Absence Policy. The amended COVID Absence Policy will be reviewed by
Personnel no later than 60 days from approval, now therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to approve the continuation of following the City's amended
COVID Absence Policy. To be reviewed by Personnel no later than 60 days from approval.

Council Action: |:| Adopted |:| Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:| Accept |:| Veto

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

Council Action: I:I Override Vote






